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CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STAT EMENTS

This Report, including information included or imporated by reference in this document, contaiaestents which constitute forwalabking
statements. Forward looking statements made byypstiogk issuers such as the Company are excludettfre safe harbor in Section 21E of
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Forward-loglstatements may relate to our financial conditiesults of operation, plans, objectives, o
future performance. These statements are basedoy assumptions and estimates and are not guasasftagure performance. Our actual
results may differ materially from those anticighiie any forward-looking statements, as they wélpdnd on many factors about which we are
unsure, including many factors which are beyondommtrol. The words “may,” “would,” “could,” “shod|” “will,” “expect,” “anticipate,”
“predict,” “project,” “potential,” “believe,” “coninue, plan,” and “estimateg’s well as similar expressions, are meant to
identify such forward-looking statements.

assume,” “intend,

Forward-looking statements are subject to ceraksrand uncertainties which could cause actualte® differ materially from those
anticipated. Such risk and uncertainties includéhaut limitation, those described below under ItéA- Risk Factors and the following: (1) if
the Company is not able to obtain further finanaieguired for continuing operations, marketing,duct development and research its busi
operations will fail, (2) the Company has not gated substantial revenues, and as a result, fauigh aisk of business failure, (3) the
Company’s lack of diversification and dependencenarterial customers increases the risks assooitedhe Company’s business and an
investment in the Company, and the Company’s firdmondition may deteriorate rapidly if it fails succeed in developing the Company’s
business, (4) the Company may not effectively eteethe Company’s business plan or manage the Coyisppotential future business
development, (5) the Company’s business could Ipaiirad if it fails to comply with applicable regtians, (6) the Company may not be able
to attract and maintain key management personnabitage the Company or laboratory scientists iy caut the Company’s business
operations, which could have a material adversetin the Company’s business, (7) the marketatmgrown diamond may not develop as
anticipated, (8) competition may adversely affaat lnusiness and (9) the Company may expend a suiadtamount of time and resources in
connection with potential inquiries or legal acdn connection with the restatement of its finahstatements and its filings with the Secur
and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) or otherwise, whiedy impair the Company’s ability to raise cap@at to operate its business. You are
cautioned not to place undue reliance on forwaadilyg statements, which speak only as of the datedi. The Company undertakes no
obligation to publish revised forward-looking statnts to reflect events or circumstances afted#tie hereof or to reflect the occurrences of
unanticipated events. You are also urged to reaegvconsider carefully the various disclosures niateafter by the Company from time to
time with its SEC filings.
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ITEM 1. BUSINESS
Corporate History

We were incorporated on September 17, 2009 in téte $f Nevada under the name Krossbow Holdingp@ation (“Krossbow”).
Krossbow's original business plan was focused d¢getting carbon dioxide (“C02") emissions throubk treation and protection of forest-
based carbon “sinks.” Krossbow planned to assab®iaesource potentials, prescribe and implemergystem restorations to develop those
resources, and thereby generate carbon offset gimddowever, we have since abandoned that origimsihess plan and restructured our
business to focus on man-made diamond technologsiaament. We decided to acquire existing technok to seek to efficiently and
effectively produce mamade diamond. In connection with this change inrn&ss purpose, Krossbow acquired the rights tandechanged i
name to Scio Diamond Technology Corporation (therfpany”), to reflect its new business direction.

On August 5, 2011, Edward S. Adams and Michael Bn&han, both of whom now serve on the Company’sdofDirectors,
acquired control of the Company through the purela2,000,000 shares of the Company’s issued atsfamding common stock from Jason
Kropp, Krossbow’s sole director and executive @fiat that time, in accordance with a common smakhase agreement among Mr. Kropp,
Mr. Adams and Mr. Monahan. Concurrent with the exien of the stock purchase agreement, Mr. Krogigreed from all positions with
Krosshow, including, but not limited to, that ofeBident, Chief Executive Officer, Chief FinancidfiGer, Treasurer, Secretary and Director.

On August 5, 2011, the Company executed an AssehRse Agreement (the “Scio Asset Purchase Agregweith another
privately-held Nevada corporation that also hadnfme “Scio Diamond Technology Corporation” (“Ptev&cio”).Under the terms of the S
Asset Purchase Agreement, the Company purchasedithe “Scio Diamond Technology Corporation” anduiiegyl other rights from Private
Scio for 13,000,000 newly issued shares of comnioeksof the Company. Mr. Adams and Mr. Monahan wirectors of Private Scio, and
Joseph D. Lancia, our former President and ChietHtive Officer, was an officer of Private Sciodahey owned 31.5%, 31.5% and 15.4%,
respectively, of Private Scio. Edward S. Adams linthael R. Monahan each acquired, directly or iaclity, 4,100,000 shares of our common
stock pursuant to the Scio Asset Purchase Agreemedtloseph D. Lancia, our former Chief ExecuBiicer, acquired 2,000,000 shares
pursuant to the Scio Asset Purchase Agreement.

On August 31, 2011, the Company acquired certaata®f Apollo Diamond, Inc. (“ADI”) (the “ADI Asgd?urchase”), consisting
primarily of diamond growing machines and intelledtproperty related thereto, for which the Comppaid ADI an aggregate of $2,000,000
in a combination of cash and a promissory note with a September 1, 2012 maturity date. Thisygesory note was paid in full as of
March 31, 2013. In connection with the ADI Assatd¢hase, the Company also agreed to provide cartarent and former stockholders of
ADI that are accredited investors the opporturstat¢quire up to approximately 16 million sharesahmon stock of the Company for $0.01
per share (the “ADI Offering”). Both Mr. Adams, &m executive role, and Mr. Monahan previously ediwn various capacities with ADI
through early 2011.

On June 5, 2012, the Company acquired substantitiltf the assets of Apollo Diamond Gemstone Crafon (“ADGC”) (the
“ADGC Asset Purchase”), consisting primarily of igltown diamond gemstone-related know-how, inventang various intellectual property,
in exchange for $100,000 in cash and the oppostdaitcertain current and former stockholders of @D qualifying as accredited investors to
acquire up to approximately 1 million shares of coon stock of the Company for $0.01 per share (#2GC Offering”) with the intent that
the ADI Offering be conducted substantially coneatty with the ADGC Offering (collectively, the “AIPADGC Stockholder Offering”).
Mr. Adams and Mr. Monahan served in various capEcivith ADGC through early 2011.

The ADI/ADGC Stockholder Offering was completedMiiarch, 2013 and resulted in the issuance of aneggde of 16,766,773 shares
of the Company’s common stock.

In December, 2011 the Company began a build-oits @reenville, South Carolina production facilionstruction was largely
completed in March 2012 and equipment was movead #&®I's former facility in
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Massachusetts to South Carolina over the firstnckequarter of 2012. The Company began initiatlpotion with ten diamond growing
machines in July 2012.

Our Business
General

The Company is first and foremost a materials camphat has developed proprietary technology thihowgich high quality single
crystal diamond materials are produced througheanital vapor deposition (“CVD”) process (the “DiantbTechnology”). The Company’s
primary mission is the development of profitablel anstainable commercial production of its diamovaderials, which are suitable for known,
emerging and anticipated industrial, technology emasumer applications. The Company intends toyaupsogressive development of its core
diamond materials technologies and related intel@qroperty that the Company hopes will evolve iproduct opportunities across various
applications. We believe these opportunities magnbaetized though a combination of end productssgbént ventures and licensing
arrangements with third parties, and through caetindevelopment of intellectual property. Anticgzhipplication opportunities for the
Company'’s diamond materials include the followipgecision cutting devices, diamond gemstone jew@loyer switches, semiconductor
processors, optoelectronics, geosciences, watdication, and MRI and other medical science te¢bgy.

Prior to October 1, 2012, the Company was a devedop stage company. Developmental activities haased and the Company
commenced producing diamond materials in July 2002 Company began generating limited revenue ftansale of diamond materials as
of September 30, 2012. Less than one year intdyat@mn, the Company is already in the initial preasf commercializing the Diamond
Technology and its goal is to become a preferredufaeturer of single crystal diamond and a leadjiodpal supplier of diamond materials for
multiple applications. The Company hopes to furteape the evolution of various markets for itdpiat and to leverage the technical
foundation of the Diamond Technology by expandimg strategic partnerships with select industrgéza with distribution channels alread:
place to capture high value application opporteniti

As of March 31, 2013, nearly all of the Company’squction capacity had been sold for use in pregisutting devices. As of
March 31, 2013 we had generated $881,748 in cuimelaet revenue from sales of our diamond materiasdate, most of our product has
been sold overseas and 100% of these sales haveéderternal customers.

The Diamond Technology

We acquired our Diamond Technology primarily frorDIAADI was originally founded in 1990 with the dad developing and
perfecting two advanced semiconductor materiallipganitride (now used in light emitting diodes)@diamond. From 2000 onward, ADI
focused solely on diamond and developing a prosgsshich large, single-crystal diamond could bevgran a controlled laboratory
environment.

The core Diamond Technology that was acquired byGtbmpany is based on a CVD diamond growth sydbsamond wafers
produced through the Diamond Technology CVD protes® been shown to be exceptionally pure (nitragerient < 10 ppb), and possess
low levels of structural defects. Advances in tieishnology have dramatically improved the quabtyd lowered the cost of high-quality
diamond, resulting in new applications of diamomelectronics, optics, high power devices and guardomputing.

The Diamond Technology provides a materials pradogtlatform and is supported by intellectual pmapeincluding trade secrets,
issued and allowed patents (23 in the United Statds8 in foreign jurisdictions), and approximat26/pending domestic and foreign patents.

Our Diamond Technology utilizes CVD growth techrgpido produce diamond crystals. This technologlyzets a highly scalable
manufacturing process for producing large sizeh{gjgality diamond crystals at a low cost. Unlike ttigh-pressure, high-temperature
(“HPHT") process, the Diamond Technology proce$snad for concurrent production of multiple diamoergstals.
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At March 31, 2013, we are growing an average ¢f-even (57) crystals per growth run per diamorwvgr machine and averaging
over three (3) growth runs per month. Our averageHed rough diamond crystal is approximately k&tats. The Company’s diamond
crystals are grown on small slices of diamond ddlseeds” that the Company either grows internatlgcquires from third parties. At
March 31, 2013 the Company was utilizing 4 mm by seeds and we have been working towards utiliarger seeds. If we are able to
develop seeds that are at least 7 mm by 7 mm, Wevbaitilization of these seeds would allow usntcrease our production by approximately
fifty percent as compared to our production leweb&March 31, 2013.

In addition, during March, 2013 we commenced desand planning for utilization of even larger de¢han 7 mm by 7 mm. We
expect to develop these larger seeds in the sdwihdf fiscal 2014, which we estimate will enahketo increase our production by
approximately forty percent as compared to ourcgdted production level with 7 mm x 7 mm seedhisTseed” size scaling, together with
continued process improvement, is expected to yipltb a 210% cumulative increase in productioracép over the next 18 months, as
compared to our production level as of March 31,320

In addition to the planned utilization of largeetsls,” our process can also be scaled throughrleagacity diamond growing
machines that we believe will enable us to increasgproduction by another fifty percent over tidicpated production with maximum seed
size scaling. In order to move to a larger diamgravth platform we will need to successfully invasresearch and development of the
growth platform. We estimate the cost to develog farger diamond growth platform between $1,000,8nd $2,000,000. We anticipate that
we will be in a position to utilize larger growipdatforms by the end of fiscal 2014 provided we @t to obtain sufficient funding.

Finally, we expect that as we increase our prodadgvels, our production costs per carat will atljudecrease due to economies of
scale.

Facilities

The Company’s production facility is located in €ngille, South Carolina. This facility, coveringd90 square feet of leased space
including both our headquarters and our produdaaility, was substantially completed and readygmyduction as of June 30, 2012. Ten of
the production reactors purchased from ADI weréaifed in the facility and are currently operatiagd the Company has the ability to add
between twenty and thirty additional diamond prditucreactors at the Greenville facility throughexpansion of our leased space. The
Company has an additional facility consisting opiaximately 4,872 square feet located in Hudsons9dahusetts which is used for researct
and development and storage.

Products and Market:

The current market for laboratory-grown diamond a@rs largely unknown and uncertain. Sales of latowy-grown diamond into
the gemstone market are thought to be very smaikitly. The industrial market for these produstsiore developed, but it is diffused
globally and the Company is unable to reliablyraste its size or breadth.

In addition to the precision cutting market and appnities for the Company in the diamond gemstoaeket, we will continue to
explore other opportunities for our diamond materiarough applications where the unique propedfediamond may be desirable and
advantageous, including: alternative energy, optasbnics, communications, biotechnology, wateattreent, quantum computing and the
diamond device arenas.

Competitive factors that will influence the market our products include product quality, consistenf supply and price. We believe
that we will be able to compete on the basis adeHfactors. We believe that we will be able toatdly and efficiently produce lab-grown
diamond possessing substantially the same quaditidcharacteristics of their mined diamond coypates. The chart below shows a
comparison of selected characteristics of lab-grdimmond and high-quality earth-mined diamond.
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Comparison of Lab-Grown Diamond and Earth-Mined Diamond: Selected Characteristics

Earth-Mined Material

Diamond Characteristic Lab-Grown Diamond High-Quality Diamond Differences
Color Colorless, near colorless, and fancy co Varies None
Clarity IF-VVS — VS-S, etc. Varies None (a)
Size Varies Varies None (a)
Color Zoning None None None
Metallic Inclusions None None None
Zoned Fluorescenc None None None
Artifacts None None None
Magnetism None None None
Extreme Hardnes 90 GPe 90 GPe None
Thermal Conductivity >2 x 10° W/m/K 2 x 103 W/m/K None (a)
Thermal Expansio 0.8 x 10°% K 0.8 x 10°% K None
Optical Transparenc Deep UV to far Ik Deep UV to far Ik None (a)
Electrical Resistivity 1016 Ohm-cm 101 Ohmr-cm None (a)
Compressibility 8.3x 101 m2/N 8.3x102 m2/N None
Bulk Modulus 1.2 x 102 N/m 2 1.2 x 10'2 N/m 2 None
€) Lab-grown diamond may be superior to earth-minedneind in these categories because of its highypamid crystal
perfection.
Gemstones

Within the gemstone industry, our single-crystalndond can be used in jewelry products requiringhigbest quality gemstones and
can be regularly grown in matched color sets rapgimpolished sizes from 5-points (0.05 caratguer 1.50 carats. Our diamond may be well
suited for jewelry featuring matching diamond ofigas sizes, clarities and colors, diamond engagéemiregs, and fashion jewelry. The
potential consistency and other potential charattes of lab-grown diamond gemstones grown usimgRiamond Technology may provide
advantages over their mined counterparts in ahedsnatter to jewelers, jewelry manufacturers amsamers, with potential characteristics
such as:

. Equal quality and brilliance of diamond product;

. Matched sizes, colors and clarities (particulanlgoods ranging in sizes from 0.05 - 0.50 carats);
. Consistency of diamond finish due to high quality;

. Opportunity for color palette of diamond gemstorses]

. Lack of negative issues related to the environniemid social concerns.

We will seek to establish and maintain market atagege through consumer education and industry e¢atipa. We intend to require
laser marking of lab-grown diamond grown usingEti@mond Technology (without compromising aesthgticorder to brand and instill
confidence in the consumer and the market as \weab differentiate our lab-grown diamond from eartimed diamond. We intend to educate
retailers and consumers on the physical propesfitse Company’s lab-grown diamond as compareditechdiamond and quality of the
Company’s lab-grown diamond.

Commercial, Industrial and Technological Applicatso
Diamond has exceptional qualities for use in adedralectronics and optics applications, but to,dddgelopment progress has been

slow because of, among other things, diamond'sivelacarcity and high cost. Diamond’s unique hasdn clarity and thermal characteristics
have made it highly desirable for scientific use fo




Table of Contents

decades. However, material consistency issues@mbmics have created barriers to mass applicatioption of diamond. We believe that
our Diamond Technology and patented Mosaic prodocpproach give us the ability to improve the dgyalnd lower the cost of producing
diamond materials, creating the opportunity forgesen a wider range of applications.

The demand for computing and communications pradioas increased significantly. As devices becomeerimbelligent and
ubiquitous, the need for connectivity at very higleeds, data intensive storage needs and everdastputer processors are pushing the limit
of conventional silicorbased devices. Diamond enables these technolagmeve past their current limitations and may ble &bfacilitate th
development of next-generation devices in key aseah as wireless networking, optical storage,tdgd speed computing.

The Company anticipates several opportunities tonetie the Diamond Technology and patented Mosadygtion approach in
various technological applications. Pursuit of thepportunities is expected to be directed in jpacbncert with strategic partners.

Several of diamond’s properties provide significadvantages over other materials used in devicgefsg, such as high power
switches, radiation detectors, and microwave wirglsuitable for use in plasma fields or other nudaleactor highelectromagnetic interferen
(“EMI") environments.

Industrial diamonds already comprise what we eg#riga $1 billion-plus market per year, but consfdow-quality diamonds that
have primarily been utilized in rudimentary cuttiagd polishing devices. These diamond material&agely in the form of diamond grit and
diamond dust. Through the introduction of highealgy relatively large diamond materials, substalngrowth is anticipated for the industrial
diamond market. As previously noted, we have illjtiexperienced this in precision cutting devices.

The diamond and diamond-like materials historicaled in the development of these non-gem appitaifiave various limitations
that have formerly impeded progress in optoele@tsoand other technology applications. As our pabidn volume increases and
manufacturing costs continue to decrease, we patieithat our diamond materials will provide a 1esdnd potentially economically preferred
alternative for many of these highly-valued elegicpoptical and industrial applications.

In order to more fully explore the opportunitiesalissed above, we intend to continue current ptamfuof our high quality diamond
materials and to pursue related commercial oppiiggn Currently, we intend to continue to explopportunities in the precision cutting
devices market while concurrently seeking oppottesifor our lab-grown diamond gemstones.

The Industry and Competition

Our lab-grown diamond gemstones and diamond m&daause in industrial applications face competitfrom established
producers and sellers of mined diamond, includiomgganies such as De Beers, and other known aneintund potential future manufactur
of lab-grown diamond. Our competitors include langati-national gemstone diamond companies as agefitart-up and development-stage
gemstone diamond and technology companies, sombah we may not be aware. Many of our competitange significantly greater
financial, technical, manufacturing and marketiagaurces and greater access to distribution chatimeh the Company. Many of our
competitors may be able to devote substantiallptgreresources to promotion and systems developtin@ntwe can. Barriers to developing
competitive technology in our market may not bdisigint to prevent competitors from entering thdustry, and current and new competitors
may be able to develop competing diamond at aivelgtiow cost. We believe that our success wélpdnd heavily upon whether we can
achieve significant market acceptance before otential competitors are able to introduce broadisepted competitive products.

Companies that produce lab-grown diamond and whoaompete with the Company in one or more of itskats include Element
Six (South Africa), a privately held subsidiaryld¢ Beers, General Electric, AOTC Group NV (Nethedk), Gemesis/lla Technologies (USA,
Singapore & Malaysia), Washington Diamond/Carnégstitute, Sumitomo Electric Industries, Ltd. andr@s Technologies (Japan). Other
companies could seek to introduce lab-grown dianwrather competing diamond or to develop compepiragesses for production of lab-
grown diamond and diamond materials. We believedbmpetition will increase as demand for diamoraterials
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increases for use in industrial and technologyiappbns and as lab-grown diamonds continue to geirket acceptance.
Raw Materials

The principal raw materials used in the manufactireur products are diamond seeds and certifigd purity bottled gases. Certain
diamond seeds are purchased from other diamondiaigimducers, but the Company maintains its prinsged inventory through its self-
sustaining seed production. Seeds are re-usedgtnmultiple production runs.

Our manufacturing process is dependent upon largmiats of electrical power delivered on an uninteted basis. The Company has
worked with the local electric utility, a Fortun@@company, to build and operate equipment at @sufacturing site that will meet its needs.
This equipment is provided to the Company on a-@nm operating lease, which includes warranty mesiance, and the delivery of electrical
power at attractive per kilowatt/hour rates.

Customers

In July 2012 the Company began to produce diamoanial and entered into a purchase order witmgernational supplier of
precision diamond cutting tools pursuant to whiod Company has been providing CVD single crystaindind in specified wafer sizes.
Through March 31, 2012 the Company was largely dégeet on this single customer relationship. At &ha81, 2012, the Company had
largely fulfilled its initial purchase order withis customer and was aggressively looking to exp@sntlistomer base.

If we continue to reliably manufacture diamond preis and begin to implement high-volume commemp@rations, we anticipate
that we will experience increased demand for oadpcts both domestically and internationally, gitiea potential demand for diamond, the
variety of potential uses for these products in gfeime, high tech applications, alternative eneeghologies, and defense technologies.
Patents, Trademarks, Licenses, Franchises, Conaassj Royalty Agreements or Labor Contrau

At March 31, 2013, we held the following numberpatents:

Jurisdiction No. of Patents

United State! 23

Foreign 8
Total 31

These patents have various lives based on theofleteue. Expiration of individual patents is esfeel to occur between 2019 and
2028.

Our research and development staff will continderes to develop proprietary manufacturing processsd equipment designed to
enhance our manufacturing facilities and reducéscos

We also own various trademarks and trade secratsvih acquired from ADI and ADGC.
Distribution

Through March 31, 2013 the Company has had a lihmitember of customers. The Company has distribitdgatoducts directly to
these customers without using intermediaries dridigors.

Government Regulations

Laboratory technology activities are subject tamas federal, state, foreign and local laws andilea@ns, which govern research, lab
development, taxes, labor standards, occupatia@ath) and waste disposal, protection of the enwirent, mine safety, hazardous substances
and several other matters. We believe that wenatempliance in all material respects with applieabchnology, health, safety and
environmental statutes and the regulations prontetbhy the relevant jurisdictions. Currently, thare no costs associated with our
compliance
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with such regulations and laws. Certain federdl state laws and regulations govern the testirgatiom and sale of the types of diamond we
intend to produce. The United States Federal T@atamission (“FTC")and other comparable regulatory authorities inthged States and
foreign countries may extensively and rigorouslyulate our lab-grown diamond, product developmetitvidies and manufacturing processes.
In the United States, the FTC regulates the intttdn and labeling of gemstone diamond. We mayeogired to:

. Obtain clearance before we can market and selladgrown diamond;

. Satisfy content requirements applicable to ourllabesales and promotional materials;
. Comply with manufacturing and reporting requirenseand

. Undergo rigorous inspections.

The process of obtaining marketing clearance for gemstone diamond from the FTC may prove costtytane consuming. The
FTC has neither approved nor prohibited the ugheferm “cultured” to describe the diamond the @any intends to sell as gemstones.
However, in December 2006, the Jewelers’ VigilaBoenmittee submitted a petition (the “Petition”)th® FTC seeking amendment to the
Guides for the Jewelry, Precious Metals, and Pelmthrstries, 16 C.F.R. Part 23 (“Guides”) to in@utie term “cultured” as a proscribed term
to describe laboratory-created diamond. By opinéaied July 21, 2008, the FTC denied the Petifiidirig it did not demonstrate that the use
of the term “cultured” to describe laboratory-ceshtliamond, when qualified by one of the terms i@ in the Guides, is deceptive or unfair
and declined to amend the Guides as requestecet®etition. The Company has not procured FTC atearaand the FTC has not precluded
the Company from selling diamond produced usingtanond Technology. FTC has the power to resthietoffer and sale of diamond that
could deceive or have the tendency or effect ofeading or deceiving purchasers or prospectivehmagers with regard to the type, kind,
quality, character, value, origin or other chargsties of a diamond gemstone. Under current gindslissued by the FTC, the Company is
permitted to market its diamond gemstones as “Smated,” “lab-created diamond”, “laboratory crebtitamond,” “laboratory grown
diamond” or “cultured” so long as that term is avg@nied by any of the foregoing and such designatimay inhibit marketing descriptions
that are more favorable to creating consumer demaiedmay come under close scrutiny by governmegahcies and industry testing
organizations and also by competitors in the gengstodustry, any of which may challenge our promtind marketing of our lab-grown
diamond. If our production or marketing is challeddy governmental agencies or competitors, agtifations are issued that restrict our
ability to produce and market our lab-grown diamasdcultured diamond”, “lab-created diamond”, timeywise as a mined diamond
alternative, our business, operating results amhfiial condition could be materially adverseleaféd.

Our lab-grown diamond must also comply with simiiaws and regulations of foreign countries in whigd market such diamond. In
general, the extent and complexity of gemstone diahregulation is increasing worldwide. This trendy continue, and the cost and time
required to obtain marketing clearance in any gisuntry may increase as a result. Should it praaessary, there can be no assurances the
our lab-grown diamond will obtain any necessargiigm clearances on a timely basis, or at all.

Federal, state, local and foreign laws and reguiat{especially those regarding approval of genestbamond) are always subject to
change, and could have a material adverse effettteotesting and sale of our lab-grown diamond #retefore, our business.

Research and Developme

Our research and development activities have bhagted to date as we have focused first on estaflént of our production facility
and immediately thereafter on production of diamoraterials for use in precision cutting devices. &{pect to invest in new technology and
intellectual property development to further impequroduction efficiencies and develop new prodirctle future.

Environmental Regulations

Our operations are subject to local, state andréddvs and regulations governing environmentalliggaand pollution control. To
date, our compliance with these regulations hasnioamhaterial effect on our operations, capitalneeys, or competitive position, and the cost
of such compliance has not been material. We aablarto assess or predict at this time what effdditional regulations or legislation could
have on our activities.
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Employees

We had eleven full-time employees as of March 31,32
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 Repo

We maintain an Internet website at the followindm@ds: http://www.sciodiamond.com. The contentthefwebsite are not
incorporated either directly or by reference irtis =orm 10-K or into our other filings with the SE The Company makes available on or
through our Internet website certain reports andradments to those reports that are filed or fuedsio the SEC pursuant to Section 13(a) or
15(d) of the Exchange Act. These include annuantspn Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10:@yent reports on Form 8-K and
beneficial ownership reports on Forms 3, 4 andhis ihnformation is available on our website freecbfrge as soon as reasonably practicable
after we electronically file the information witbr furnish it to, the SEC.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS.

Our business, financial condition, and results pé@tions could be harmed by any of the followiis§g, or other risks that have not
been identified or which we currently believe arariaterial or unlikely. Shareholders should cargfulbnsider the risks described below in
conjunction with the other information in this Foff-K and the information incorporated by referemt¢his Form 10-K, including our
financial statements and related not

Risks Related to Our Business

We have a very limited operating history, and hameurred losses to date. We have generated limiegenues to date, and
therefore, it is difficult to evaluate our businessd prospects.

Our Company is in the preliminary stages of operativhile our Company has recently engaged in neegmmoducing business
activities, it is not yet a profitable enterpriselanay incur substantial losses for the foresedablee. In addition, the Company’s revenues ar
presently derived largely from one customer andltéom one product. The Company has not finalitezlscope of products it anticipates it
will bring to market. As a company in the earlygeta of operation, our business is subject to alrigks inherent in a new business enterprise
We have no substantial operating history for inwessto consider in evaluating our business andpats. When making an investment
decision, investors should consider the risks, pgee and difficulties that we may encounter asumga@ompany in a new market. These risks
include, but are not limited to, the following:

. our need to initiate our sales and marketing actw

. our need to quickly hire and integrate new pershrineluding various levels of senior managemenbwhave been hired
relatively recently;

. our ability to develop additional applications andrkets for our diamond materials, including thengdnd gemstone
industry;

. our ability to produce diamond materials sufficiemimeet the specifications and needs of variodgstrial and technology
applications;

. our ability to produce diamond materials and labwgr diamond sufficient to meet anticipated demamthé gemstone
marketplace;

. acceptance of our lab-grown diamond in the gemstaadetplace;

. our need to fund and manage our rapidly developimtjchanging operations; and

. the need to further refine and improve our techgylith respect to man-made diamond developmemtigigpand

commercialization — including the need to makedf@mond growing process commercially viable, aczielet (by our own
and third party measures) and economical — andnteitectual property and product offerings, ane tieed to respond to
changing technologies and consumer preferences.

Likewise the diamond materials and lab-grown diachgemstones produced using the Diamond Technolagle¢tively “Scio
Diamond Materials”) are in a relatively early stafjelevelopment and are subject to the risks infidérethe development and marketing of
Scio Diamond Materials, including unforeseen desiganufacturing or other problems or failure toelep market acceptance. Our business |
subject to the risks
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inherent in the transition of technology from resbaand development and prototype proof-of-cont@pgbmmercial production and market
acceptance.

Failure by the Company to complete and integratergercial development of the Scio Diamond Mateiitatgll market and distribut
in sufficient quantities to meet market demand widwdve a material adverse effect on the Compangsmbss, operating results and financial
condition. Accordingly, the Company’s prospects trhesconsidered in light of the risks, expensesdiffitulties frequently encountered by
companies in their early stage of developmentjqadarly technology-based companies operating wéheloping and unproven manufacturing
processes.

To address these risks, the Company must, amoieg thiings, respond to competitive developmentgsaetttnd motivate qualified
personnel, develop market acceptance for its digmestablish effective distribution channels, dffedy manage any growth that may occur
and continue to upgrade and successfully commereitiie Diamond Technology and Scio Diamond Malkeirecorporating such technology.

The Company purchased its Diamond Technology frddh @&nd ADGC (together, the “Apollo Companies”). ither of the Apollo
Companies was able to successfully (profitably)eligy and commercialize their man-made diamond dgweént/growing process.

We expect future losses.

In order to achieve a commercially viable operatisa have made and expect to make further significevestments in technology,
infrastructure, research and development. We expestpend substantial financial and other resauoteexpanding our operations, in
particular our diamond growth technology infrastune, diamond fabrication, and sales/marketingvaigs. As a result, we must generate
significant revenues to achieve and maintain pabfiity. We expect that our sales and marketingeesps, general and administrative expe
as well as the continued development expensesailinue to increase.

We will require additional funding.

Our future continuing operations will require adufial funding, and we may not be able to obtairhduading on acceptable terms or
at all. We likely will require additional capitad be able to fund continued development and impr@re of the process for growing Scio
Diamond Materials and to fund our expansion of nfacturing capacity to meet projected growth of erket for our diamond. There can be
no assurance that such efforts for raising capiilhhot involve substantial dilution with respect existing or future stockholders of the
Company.

Our future capital requirements will depend on meagjors, including the speed at which our produrcprocess can be scaled-up for
high yield production, market acceptance of andateirfor our diamond, and the timing of our expamsitto new diamond markets. Our
future capital requirements depend upon many factocluding, but not limited to:

. the rate at which we increase our production cayaci

. the rate at which we expand our sales and marketiegations;

. the rate at which we attract consumers, distritsuémd strategic relationships;

. the extent to which we are able to develop andaggthe technology and infrastructure; and
. the response of competitors to our Scio Diamondekias offerings.

We expect additional financing to be required drete can be no assurance that additional equiglarrfinancing, if required, will be
available on acceptable terms or at all. If wegaidditional funds by selling stock, the percentaggaership of our then current stockholders
will be reduced, and we may raise these funds satturities that have rights, preferences, or ok equal or superior to the rights of
investors owning our common shares. If we canniseradequate funds to satisfy our capital requirdmeve may have to limit our operations
significantly, or the Company could terminate opierss entirely, resulting in a complete loss ofaatment for our stockholders. Our inability
to obtain financing on acceptable terms when neadrdd have a material adverse effect on the Coipdiusiness, operating results and
financial condition.
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Our business model is unproven.

Our initial business model was focused on sellaigdgrown diamond for various precision cutting &mgilons. We are concurrently
seeking to produce other lab-grown diamond forilrgeamstone consumption and other commercial aggtins. Although other companies
have sold some minimal amounts of lab-grown diamgemstones to date, the full extent of the mardeséich lab-grown diamond is not fully
known. Our business model is relatively new, isrompn and is likely to continue to evolve. Accoglin our business model may not be
successful, and we may need to make substantiagelsahereto. Our ability to generate significavenues will depend, in large part, on our
ability to successfully market our product to camsus, distributors and commercial customers. Wenihto continue to develop our business
model as the market for our products evolves.

We are wholly dependent on the Diamond Technology.

Our diamond supply depends entirely on our abititynanufacture diamond using the Diamond Technodaguired via the
August 31, 2011 purchase of assets by the CompanyADI and the June 5, 2012 purchase of assetisecb€ompany from ADGC (together,
the “Asset Purchase”).

Although the ability to produce limited quantitiehigh quality lab-grown diamond gemstones hasiliBamonstrated, it has yet to be
proven that such success can be transferred imi@sa production process that will yield high-qyadiemstones and material suitable for retail
gemstone distribution and commercial/industriall@agions. The inability or difficulty to transfehe Diamond Technology into a high-yield
production facility would have a material adverffe@ on our business, operating results and firmondition. Any disruption in our ability
to produce high quality lab-grown diamond would éavsignificant material effect on our business.

Our future revenues are unpredictable, and we exipear operating results to fluctuate from period fzeriod.

Our lack of operating history and the emerging reatf the markets in which we expect to competeamtdifficult for us to
accurately forecast revenues in any given periadsuch, revenues could fall short of our expeatatibwe experience production delays or
difficulties. Likewise, revenues could fall shoftexpectations should our product not be met withdemand we anticipate from the
marketplace. We have limited experience in findna@nning for our business on which to base oanpéd operating expenses.

Our operating results are likely to fluctuate sahstlly from period to period as a result of a fu@mof factors, many of which are
beyond our control. These factors include, butnatdimited to, the following:

. outside market influences beyond our control, iditilg extended periods of decreased demand fordéaimond,;
. our ability to enter into successful strategic tielaships;

. our ability to attract purchasers and/or distrilbsito

. the amount and timing of operating costs and chpijaenditures relating to expansion of productiperations;
. the rate at which individuals and organizationseptour diamond;

. an announcement or introduction of new or enhaxd@muonds or services by our competitors;

. our ability to attract and retain qualified persehrmand

. pricing policies instituted by our current and pblsfuture competitors.

The Company has generated limited revenue to date@nsequently its operations are subject tasksrinherent in the establishm:
of a new business enterprise. For the period frozaption, September 17, 2009, through March 3132t Company has an accumulated
deficit of ($9,646,309). We are currently genergtimited revenues and expect to continue to geaeeevenue in the future, but there can be
no assurances that we will ever generate sufficergnues to achieve profitability. If we do acld@qurofitability, there can be no assurances
that we can sustain or increase profitability.

Our ability to develop our core technologies is gedt to uncertainties.

The process by which we plan to manufacture diani®héghly complex. We anticipate that customen$ kdve highly specific
quality standards that our diamond will be requit@dheet. The diamond we intend to sell
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is in the early stages of development and therebeam assurances that it will meet high custort@rdards. Product failure or the inability to
meet customer requirements would have a mateniarad effect on our business, operating resultfiaadcial condition. The process by
which we plan to produce our diamond requires titegration of several complex components, someha¢lwwill be provided by third-party
suppliers. The successful integration of the Diathdachnology with thirgparty products will determine the performance acalability of our
production process. We will be dependent upon mpleyees and vendors to maintain an adequate gestid technical support infrastructure
to ensure the successful adoption and rollout ofdiamond to customers. We currently have limiteplegience in these areas. Failing in any o
these areas could materially adversely affect ogirtess.

We may not be able to establish effective distribatchannels.

We initially intend to sell our diamond in selectedrkets in the United States and internation&llg. expect that we will be required
to enter into distribution agreements with, and & dependent upon, a number of third partiesligtribution and sales of our diamond. We
are currently selling diamond directly to customams have not yet entered into distribution agregmeith any distributors. There can be no
assurance that we will be able to enter into distibn agreements with distributors or that outrdistion strategy will prove to be successful.
Additionally, there can be no assurance that thistars will devote the efforts needed for succdstiiiribution of our diamond. The inability
of the Company to enter into favorable arrangemeittsdistributors or to achieve desired distrilbatiof our diamond would have a material
adverse effect on our business, operating resunttsiaancial condition.

Our sales of diamond for commercial applicatiorssd@pendent upon our ability to enter into profeaielationships with businesses
best able to reap rewards from the unique chaistitsrof diamond. There is no assurance that vildowiable to initiate and maintain these
relationships.

The Diamond Technology may be vulnerable to failure

Our success depends, in part, on the performaeléahility and availability of the Diamond Technglpand the diamond we
ultimately produce. The Diamond Technology and diachproduced thereby may be vulnerable to faillire failure of the Diamond
Technology or diamond produced thereby could ad¥efect our business. The process for manufangfudiamond using the Diamond
Technology is vulnerable to disruptions due to aeia of factors, which may lead to interruptiodsjays, and losses of opportunities or
inability to consistently market and sell our latongn diamond. The occurrence of any of the foreg@ould have a material adverse effect on
our business.

We may need to effectively manage rapid growth of operations.

Our ability to successfully offer diamond and tgiement our business plan in new markets requimesffactive planning and
management process. We are in the process of giageaur operations and anticipate having to irsgeaur headcount as well. Increasing our
operations and potentially experiencing rapid growbuld place a significant strain on our managersgstems, infrastructure and resources.
We will need to continue to improve our financiadananagerial controls and reporting systems aodeglures, and will need to continue to
expand, train and manage our workforce.

Furthermore, we may be required to manage an isicrgaumber of relationships with various userstamers and other third parti
Any failure to expand any of the foregoing arediiehtly and effectively could cause our busintssuffer. We could experience a period of
rapid and significant growth, which could contirmeer several years. We believe rapid growth wolddea significant strain on our resour
Our ability to manage growth effectively will regeiius to implement and improve operational andnfiie systems and to expand, train and
manage our employee base. We also may be reqoiredriage multiple relationships with various suggli customers and other third parties.
Our future operating results will also depend onathility to expand sales and marketing, reseanchdevelopment and administrative suppor
organizations. If the Company were unable to mamgageth effectively, our business, financial comaitand results of operations would be
materially adversely affected.
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We depend on our key management personnel.

Our success depends in part upon our ability t@re¢he services of certain executive officers ather key employees and on the
skills, experience and performance of senior mamage and certain other key personnel, most of whawe either never worked together or
who have worked together for only a short periotirak. The loss of the services of our executiviicefs or other key employees could have ¢
material adverse effect on our business, operagisgits and financial condition. Because we atbénearly stages of commercialization, we
are also dependent on our ability to recruit, retaid motivate personnel with technical, manuféeguand chemical vapor deposition process
skills. There are a limited number of personnehwiitese qualifications and competition for suchspenel may be intense. Our inability to
attract, integrate and retain additional qualifi@y personnel would materially adversely affect lousiness, operating results and financial
condition.

We will need to hire additional personnel.

Our future success depends on our ability to ifigrdattract, hire, train, retain and motivate higkkilled executive, technical,
managerial, sales and marketing and business gewelat personnel. We intend to hire a number of etkess technical, sales, and marketing,
business development and administrative persorurgiglithe next one or two years. Competition foalfied personnel may prove intense,
particularly in the technology markets. If we failsuccessfully attract, assimilate and retainfacgent number of qualified executives,
technical, managerial, sales and marketing, busidegelopment and administrative personnel, ounbas could suffer.

Our success depends upon achieving a critical massustomers and strategic relationships.

Our success is largely dependent upon achievimdfisignt market acceptance for our diamond. As afréh 31, 2013, the Company
has not marketed our lagrown diamond gemstones to consumers and mostraévenues derive from one precision cutting aibe, whicl
utilizes our diamond. The market for our diamondtigin early stage of development. Although weebelithat our diamond will ultimately
achieve broad market acceptance, our existing atehpal competitors may offer diamond that coutgjatively affect the market acceptance
of our product and damage our business prospects.

Our success is also dependent upon attractingfisigmi numbers of distributors and strategic relaships in order to market our
diamond. In particular, our ability to enter interteficial distribution partnerships will dependange part upon our success in convincing
diamond gemstone consumers that our lab-grown didrgemstone is of a desired quality. Failure tdeaghand maintain a critical mass of
market acceptance will seriously harm our busies#ise diamond gemstone industry.

We need to establish brand awareness.

Due in part to the emerging nature of the marketdb-grown diamond and the substantial resourcasadble to some of our
competitors, our opportunity to achieve and mamgasignificant market share may be limited. Weevel developing and maintaining
awareness of the Scio Diamond brand name, or btlaed name(s) to be determined in the future,iiicalto achieving widespread accepta
of our business opportunity. Further, the imporéaatbrand recognition will increase as competiiiothe lab-grown diamond market
increases. Successfully promoting and positionregGompany’s brand(s) will depend largely on tHeativeness of our production and
marketing efforts, as well as our ability to defivigh-quality diamond at competitive prices. Tliere, we may need to increase our financial
commitment to creating and maintaining brand awesenlif we fail to successfully promote our braace or if we incur significant expenses
promoting and maintaining our brand name, it cdwdsle a material adverse effect on the results obparations.

The current and future state of the global econommay curtail our operations and our anticipated ravees.

Our business may be adversely affected by changgsmestic and international economic conditionsluding inflation, changes in
consumer preferences and changes in consumer sgeanaties, personal bankruptcy and the ability tiecbour accounts receivable. Changes
in global economic conditions may adversely affeetdemand for our products and make it more difffito collect accounts receivable,
thereby negatively affecting our business, opegatisults and financial condition. The recent giians in credit and other financial markets
and
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deterioration of national and global economic ctinds could, among other things, impair the finahcondition of some of our customers anc
suppliers, thereby increasing customer bad deltsmmperformance by suppliers.

Acts of war, terrorism or other unknown and unexped events could disrupt our business and we cdwddequired to cease our operatiol

Involvement in a war or other military action otsof terrorism may cause significant disruptiomémmerce throughout the world.
To the extent that such disruptions result in élagls or cancellations of customer orders, (iigaayal decrease in consumer spending, (iii) ou
inability to effectively market and distribute ouroducts or (iv) our inability to access capitalrkeds, our business and results of operations
could be materially and adversely affected. Weuaable to predict whether the involvement in a aranther military action will result in any
long-term commercial disruptions or if such invatvent or responses will have any loegm material adverse effect on our business, test
operations or financial condition.

A “going concern” qualification in our financial staements might create additional doubt about our atyilto stay in business, which could
result in a total loss of investment by our stochtiers.

We have not generated material revenues and haadive operating cash flows. These issues, amdrgrgtraise substantial doubt
about our ability to continue as a “going concern.”

Risks Related to Our Industry

The potential market for our lab-grown diamond isyproven and may not materialize.

There currently is no widely-developed market fiy-grown diamond gemstones, and we believe thapanies operating in the
gemstone field may not be fully aware of the exiseeand attributes of our lab-grown diamond. Ahéscase with any new or potential
product, market acceptance and demand are subjactignificant amount of uncertainty. Our futureahcial performance will depend upon
consumer acceptance of lab-grown diamond as &tieaind comparable alternative to mined diamorntticaher gemstones. Because no
widely-developed markets now exist for lab-growardond gemstones, it is difficult to predict theuhet growth rate, if any, and the size of the
market for our lab-grown diamond gemstones. We smnd significant amounts of capital to acquiremtiad production systems at a time
when demand for our lab-grown diamond is not &vallto fund those expenditures. The market forl@oigrown diamond gemstones may
never develop or may develop at a slower pacedgkpacted due to a general lack of consumer acagptafiab-grown diamond gemstones. If
the market fails to develop or develops more slawin expected, or if our lab-grown diamond gemesato not achieve significant market
acceptance, our business, operating results aaddial condition would be materially adversely afézl.

We face significant competition.

Our lab-grown gemstone diamond will face compatifimm established producers and sellers of eaitiedndiamond and other
known and potential manufacturers of lab-grown gemes. Other companies could seek to introducgiatsn diamond or other competing
diamonds or to develop competing processes foryatazh of labgrown diamond gemstones. We believe that the mareessful the Compa
is in creating market acceptance for Scio diamohitiincluded lab-grown gemstone diamond, the nsorapetition can be expected to
increase. Increased competition could result ir@ehse in the price charged by the Company fodiemnond or reduce demand for our
diamond, which would have a material adverse effeabur business, operating results and financiatition. Further, our current and
potential competitors may have significantly greditgancial, technical, manufacturing and marketiagources and greater access to
distribution channels than the Company. There eandiassurance that we will be able to competeessgtally with existing or potential
competitors.

Widespread consumer acceptance of lab-grown diargenstones is still developing. At this time, then@pany is aware that it may
be competing with companies that produce lab-grdiamond for industrial and gemstone markets, inogid&emesis (lla Technologies),
Washington Group, D’Nea, Element Six, and SumitoWie.believe that lab-grown diamond continue to geithespread commercial and
consumer acceptance, the more competition canpmcted to increase. Increased competition couldtriesa decrease in the price expecte
be
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charged by the Company for our diamond or reduceathel for our diamond, which would have a materidesise effect on our business,
operating results and financial condition.

Our potential competitors in the gemstone diamawdistry may have significantly greater financiathnical, manufacturing and
marketing resources and greater access to distnibchannels than the Company. Our competitorslikély include large multi-national
gemstone diamond companies as well as numerodsiptand development-stage gemstone diamond ahddkgy companies, some of
whom we may not be aware. We expect intense cotigredis we execute our business plan. It is beti¢kiat some of our existing and
potential competitors, as well as potential engamito our market, have longer operating histolegier user bases, greater brand recognition
and significantly greater financial, marketing aber resources than the Company. Many of thesnpat competitors may be able to devote
substantially greater resources to promotion astesys development than we can. Barriers to devaopampetitive technology in our market
may not be sufficient and current and competitoay ive able to develop competing diamonds at aivelgtiow cost. Accordingly, we believe
that our success will depend heavily upon achiesiggificant market acceptance before our potentaipetitors introduce competing
products. There can be no assurance that we wableto compete successfully with potential coribqest.

Rapid technological change will affect our busine:

Rapidly changing technology, industry standards)\érg consumer demands and frequent new prodtretdoctions are expected to
define our market. Our market’s early stage of tlgyment may exacerbate these characteristics. @urref success will depend in significant
part on our ability to continuously improve the hyaof lab-grown diamond and our production cagiéibs in response to both the evolving
demands of the market and competitive product ioffist Efforts in these areas may not be successful.

We expect to have limited protection of our intaiteal property and proprietary rights.

We regard the patents, trade secrets and simikteotual property acquired via the Asset Purclasseritical to our success. We must
rely on patent law, trade secret protection andidentiality agreements with our employees, custangtrategic partners, advisors and others
to protect those proprietary rights. Such meastm@sgever, afford only limited protection, and weynmt be able to maintain the propriety
and/or confidentiality of the Diamond Technologyedpite these precautions, unauthorized third gantight use information that we regard as
proprietary to compete or help others to competh ug. There is no assurance that any of the egigi@tent applications or future patent
applications, if made, will be granted, or, if gieh will not be invalidated or circumvented, oattthe rights granted there under will provid:
with a competitive advantage. Any misappropriatibour proprietary information by third parties édunaterially adversely affect our
business. There can be no assurance that anypattesits issued will provide any significant comnmrprotection to the Company, that the
Company will have sufficient resources to prosedstpatents or that any patents will be uphelé@lmpurt should the Company seek to enforc
its respective rights against an infringer.

There can be no assurances that:

. any pending patent applications or any future pgapplications will result in the issuance of pasen

. the scope of any patent protection will be effextiv exclude competitors or provide competitiveaadages to us;

. we will be able to commercially exploit any issuysatents before they expire;

. any of the patents held will be held valid if sutpsently challenged;

. others will not claim rights in, or ownership dfietpatents and other proprietary rights acquirgareduced by the Compar
. our diamond will not infringe, or be alleged torinfye, the proprietary rights of others; or

. we will be able to protect meaningful rights in prietary technology over which the party does raitl patents.

Furthermore, there can be no assurances that dtheesnot developed or will not develop diamondolihihay duplicate any of the
diamond produced using the Diamond Technology oreapected manufacturing
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processes, or that others will not design arourydo@ithe Company’s patents. The existence of vadittnts does not provide absolute
prevention from other companies independently dgpirf competing technologies. Existing producerkabbratory-created diamond may
refine existing processes for growing diamond ofedigp new technologies for growing diamond in a nerthat does not infringe any
intellectual property rights of the Company.

Other parties may independently develop or othenaixjuire substantially equivalent techniques, gagess to our acquired
proprietary technology or disclose such technoldgyddition, whether or not we obtain additionatemts, others may hold or receive patents
covering components of diamond we independentleldgvin the future. There can be no assurancegtindtparties will not claim
infringement by us, and seek substantial damagés r@spect to current or future diamond-relatetivaes. If we were to become involved in
a dispute regarding intellectual property, whethans or that of another company, we may becomédvedan material legal proceedings. Any
such claims, with or without merit, could be tim@asuming, result in costly litigation, cause pradslipment delays and require us to:

. cease manufacturing and selling the product intgpreswvhich could seriously harm us;
. enter into royalty or licensing agreements; or
. design commercially acceptable non-infringing alédive diamond.

There can be no assurances that we would be ablgtam royalty or licensing agreements, if reqdijren terms acceptable to us or at
all, or that we would be able to develop commelgiatceptable non-infringing alternative diamontéieTailure to do so could have a material
adverse effect upon our business, financial camlitbperating results and cash flows. We cannatbselutely certain that the Diamond
Technology does not infringe issued patents orrattiellectual property rights of others. In addiitj because patent applications in the United
States are not publicly disclosed until the paigigsued, applications may have been filed whidate to the Diamond Technology.

There can be no assurance that our business ditd tabproduce diamond will not be impaired byiola that we are infringing upon
the intellectual property of others. We may be sobjo future legal proceedings and claims fronetimtime in the ordinary course of our
business, including claims of alleged infringemeinthe trademarks and other intellectual propegkts of third parties. Intellectual property
litigation is expensive and time-consuming and daliVert the Company’s managemearattention from diamond production and operating
business. As a result of the foregoing, the limjteatection of our acquired intellectual propeights and proprietary information could have &
material adverse effect on the Company’s busirassrating results and financial condition.

Substantial governmental regulation may restrict oability to sell our lat-grown diamond.

Certain federal and state laws and regulations rgoe testing, creation and sale of the typesashdnd we intend to produce. The
United States Federal Trade Commission (“FT&i)l other comparable regulatory authorities hedeimfioreign countries may extensively
rigorously regulate our Scio Diamond Materials,duwct development activities and manufacturing pgees. In the United States, the FTC
regulates the introduction and labeling of gemstdiaemond. We may be required to:

. obtain clearance before we can market and sellatagrown diamond gemstones;

. satisfy content requirements applicable to ourllagesales and promotional materials;
. comply with manufacturing and reporting requirenseand

. undergo rigorous inspections.

The process of obtaining marketing clearance for gemstone diamond from the FTC may prove costtytane consuming. The
FTC has neither approved nor prohibited the ugheferm “cultured” to describe the diamond the @any intends to sell as gemstones.
However, in December 2006, the Jewelers’ VigilaBoenmittee submitted the Petition a petition (thetffon”) to the FTC seeking
amendment to the Guides for the Jewelry, Precioetald, and Pewter Industries, 16 C.F.R. Part 28i(f&€s") to include the term “culturedis
a proscribed term to describe laboratory-creatathdnd. By opinion, dated July 21, 2008, the FTOeatkthe Petition finding it did not
demonstrate that the use of the term “culturedidscribe laboratory-created diamonds,
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when qualified by one of the terms provided in®wédes, is deceptive or unfair and declined to airtbe Guides as requested by the Petition
The Company has not procured FTC clearance, andfi@ehas not precluded the Company from sellingndiad produced using the Diamond
Technology. Despite its knowledge of the existingjted sales of lab-grown diamond gemstones andelremunlikely, there can be no
assurances that the FTC will not preclude the Camppar others similarly situated from marketing aedling lab-grown diamond gemstones.

The FTC has the power to restrict the offer and sldiamond that could deceive or have the tendeneffect of misleading or
deceiving purchasers or prospective purchasersregthrd to the type, kind, quality, character, ealrigin or other characteristics of a
diamond gemstone. Under current guidelines issyetldbFTC, the Company is permitted to marketiggnbnd gemstones as “Scio-created,”
“lab-created diamond”, “laboratory created diamoriiboratory grown diamond” or “cultured” so lor&s that term is accompanied by any of
the foregoing and such designations may inhibitkei@mg descriptions that are more favorable totangaconsumer demand. We may come
under close scrutiny by governmental agencies raghasiry testing organizations and also by compstitothe gemstone industry, any of wr
may challenge our promotion and marketing of obfdeown diamond. If our production or marketinghallenged by governmental agencies
or competitors, or if regulations are issued tleatrict our ability to produce and market our labven diamond as “lab-grown diamond”, “lab-
created diamond”, or otherwise as a mined diamttednative, our business, operating results anahfiral condition could be materially
adversely affected.

It is likely that our Scio Diamond Materials must@comply with similar laws and regulations ofdimn countries in which we marl
such diamond. In general, the extent and compl@fiiamond disclosure regulation is increasingldwide. This trend may continue, and the
cost and time required to obtain marketing cleaganany given country may increase as a resuttulght prove necessary, there can be no
assurances that our Scio Diamond Materials wilawbany necessary foreign clearances on a timedig bar at all. Our inability to satisfy
specific requirements for approval by domestic antiireign regulatory agencies could materiallyexdely affect our ability to bring diamond
to market and generate revenue.

Federal, state, local and foreign laws and reguiat(especially those regarding approval of genestbamond) are always subject to
change and could have a material adverse effettteotesting and sale of our diamond and, therefarebusiness.

Regulatory authorities may limit our business indtfuture.
We will be subject to extensive regulatory requiesits. Government authorities can withdraw marketiegrance due to our failure

comply with regulatory standards or due to the a@nce of unforeseen problems following initialazignce. Ongoing regulatory requirements
are wide-ranging and govern, among other things:

. product manufacturing;

. annual inspections related to ISO certificatiomof quality system;
. supplier substitution;

. product changes;

. process modifications;

. the process of assuring origin of mine and/or petidn of diamond;
. lab-grown diamond gemstone reporting and disclosaand

. product sales and distribution.

We expect that various government agencies magaisur facilities from time to time to determinéether we are in compliance
with applicable laws and regulations. Additionalfyywe fail to comply or maintain compliance wittmis and regulations pertaining to diamonc
gemstones, regulatory authorities may fine us amdib from selling our lab-grown diamond gemstotfes regulatory agency believes we are
not in compliance with such laws or regulationsn#ty be able to:

. seize our lab-grown diamond gemstones;

. require a recall;

. withdraw previously granted market clearances;

. implement procedures to stop future violations;/and
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. seek civil and criminal penalties against us.

Risks Related to an Investment in our Common Stock

An investment in the Company involves a high degoéeisk.

An investment in the Company is speculative andlves a high degree of risk, including the lossifinvestor’'s entire investment in
the Company. There is no guaranteed rate of retu@n investor’s investment in the Company, andetieeno assurance that investors will be
able to resell their shares for the amount theg f@i such shares or for any other amount. Investhould not invest in the Company unless
such investors can afford to lose their entire gtveent.

Stockholders may be unable to exercise control hessadirectors and officers own and control a largercentage of the Compa’s stock.

As of March 31, 2013 the Company had 46,736,812eshaf common stock outstanding, net of sharesihdlgasury.

The following table shows the percentage of shafesmmon stock of the Company beneficially owned&March 31, 2013 by our
current directors and executive officers.

Amount and

Nature of Percentage o

Beneficial Beneficial
Name and Address of Beneficial Owne Ownership(1)(2)(3) Ownership
Directors and Executive Officer
Edward S. Adam
411 University Ridge, Suite D, Greenville, SC 29 4,965,001(4) 10.€%
Michael R. Monahal
411 University Ridge, Suite D, Greenville, SC 29 4,965,00(5) 10.€%
Michael W. McMahor
411 University Ridge, Suite D, Greenville, SC 29 725,79! 1.5%
Jonathan M. Pfot
411 University Ridge, Suite D, Greenville, SC 29 126,58: 0.2%
Theodorus Strou
411 University Ridge, Suite D, Greenville, 180,25((6) 0.4%
Robert C. Linare:
411 University Ridge, Suite D, Greenville, SC 29 950,00((7) 2.C%
Total (6 persons) 11,912,62 25.5%

(1) Includes shares for which the named person has/etitleg and investment power, has shared votingiavestment power, or holds in an
IRA or other retirement plan and shares held byntraed person’s spouse.

(2) For purposes of this table, a person or group fques is deemed to have “beneficial ownership”myf shares of common stock which
that person has the right to acquire within 60 dajlewing March 31, 2013. For purposes of compgtihe percentage of outstanding
shares of common stock held by each person or gstbpprsons named above, any shares which thadmperspersons has or have the r
to acquire within 60 days following March 31, 20i8deemed to be outstanding, but is not deemée tutstanding for the purpose of
computing the percentage ownership of any othesquer

(3) Includes shares that may be acquired within 60 déjise date hereof by exercising stock optiongditulating the number of shares
beneficially owned by an individual and the pereget ownership of that individual, shares underlyptions held by that individual that
are either currently exercisable or exercisabléiwi60 days from March 31, 2013 are deemed outBtgn@ihese shares, however, are not
deemed outstanding for the purpose of computingéneentage ownership of any other individual ditgn Numbers reported includes
the following shares subject to options exercisableently or within 60 days of March 31, 2013: Mdams: 75,000; Mr. Monahan:
75,000; Mr. McMahon: 721,250; Mr. Pfohl: 126,250r.Mtrous: 130,250; and Dr. Linares: 0.
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(4) Includes 2,000,000 shares owned by Mr. Adams’ idewhich Mr. Adams disclaims beneficial ownershipcludes 790,000 shares
owned by the Edward S. Adams Revocable Trust, fackvMr. Adams disclaims beneficial ownership.

(5) Includes 1,000,000 shares owned by Mr. Monaharfs,dr which Mr. Monahan disclaims beneficial owstap.

(6) Includes 61,500 warrants granted to Mr. Strousyaumsto the terms of the consulting agreement edteetween the Company and
Mr. Strous prior to Mr. Strous’ election to the Bda@f Directors and 50,000 warrants granted as emsgtion for efforts in connection
with the Company’s largest customer.

(7) Includes 250,000 shares owned by Dr. Linares’s Midiewhich Dr. Linares disclaims beneficial owntas

Therefore, our executive officers and directorsemtively have considerable influence to:

. elect or defeat the election of our directors;

. amend or prevent amendment of our Articles of Ipoaation or Bylaws;

. effect or prevent a merger, sale of assets or athrguorate transaction; and

. determine the outcome of any other matter submitiéble stockholders for vote.

The limited ability of stockholders to exercise ttohover the Company may adversely affect theritnarket price for our securities
and the rights of our stockholders.

Company transactions could be influenced and affeattoy conflicts of interest.

Certain Board members of the Company are partndfeeilaw firm of Adams Monahan, LLP, which hasvioesly provided legal
services to the Company. The Company has in thiebeas billed for legal services provided by Adavienahan, LLP to the Company. This
relationship may continue going forward and Adanmnishan, LLP may continue to provide legal serviogfie Company. All payments to
Adams Monahan LLP are pre-approved by an indepérdiescttor's committee consisting of disinteresteembers of the Board of Directors.
See “Stockholders may be unable to exercise conérmhuse directors and officers own and contratgel percentage of the Company’s
common stock,” above, for information regarding pleecentage of ownership of the Company benefic@lined by held our directors,
Edward S. Adams, who serves as our Chairman, aoadl R. Monahan, both of whom are partners in Agllanahan LLP.

Dr. Linares was elected to the Board of Directar§danuary 2013. Dr. Linares is the father-in-ldWwlo. Adams.

Provisions in our Articles of Incorporation and bgivs or Nevada law might discourage, delay or prev@ichange of control of us @
changes in our management and, therefore, deprédssttading price of the common stock.

The actual issuance of any preferred stock coutdnigh the rights of holders of our common stoeiq éherefore could reduce the
value of such common stock. In addition, specifibiis granted to future holders of preferred stomlld be used to restrict our ability to merge
with, or sell assets to, a third party. The abitifyour Board of Directors to issue preferred stoglld make it more difficult, delay, discourage,
prevent or make it more costly to acquire or efiechange-in-control, which in turn could preveuat stockholders from recognizing a gain in
the event that a favorable offer is extended anddcaaterially and negatively affect the marketprof our common stock. The Company
currently has no preferred stock designated oeibsu

In addition, Nevada corporate law and our Artidé$ncorporation and Bylaws also contain other |Bmns that could discourage,
delay or prevent a change in control of our Companghanges in its management that our stockholdessdeem advantageous. These
provisions include the following:

. deny holders of our common stock cumulative votiggts in the election of directors, meaning thatkholders owning a
majority of our outstanding shares of common steitkbe able to elect all of our directors;

. require any stockholder wishing to properly bringnatter before a meeting of stockholders to comti specified
procedural and advance notice requirements; and

. allow any vacancy on the Board of Directors; howetie vacancy occurs, to be filled by the directors
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There is no active public market for any of our s&ties, which are not listed on any stock exchanged transfer of our securities is
restricted.

There is presently no active market, private odipufor our securities, and there can be no asmrghat a trading market will ever
develop or, if developed, that it will be maintadn®ur common stock is not listed on any stock arge. We believe that we currently may
have enough stockholders or outstanding sharasptmost an active trading market, even if our comrstarck were listed on a recognized
trading exchange. There can be no assuranceuhatwestors will be able to resell any of our s@s at any price. The Company makes no
representation to investors regarding the valutsdecurities, and, particularly in light of thert trading in the Company’s securities; trading
prices may or may not reasonably reflect the istcivalue, if any, of the Company’s securities.

We have been deemed to be a former shell compaagciordance with the Securities Act. As a result,slhares of common stock
may not be resold under Rule 144 of the SecukEexcept pursuant to Rule 144(i). Resales undde R44(i) generally require, that, in
addition to the normal Rule 144 requirements amdtditions: (1) we are subject to the reporting reruents of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934 (the “Exchange Act”); (2) we have filed alldiange Act reports required for the past 12 morathd;(3) a minimum of one year has
elapsed since we filed current Form 10 informatiarForm 8-K changing our status from a shell conygara non-shell company. An
investment in the Company should be consideredgtierm, illiquid investment, and investors sholbddable to withstand a complete loss of
their investment.

Our Bylaws specifically provide that we shall netiiequired to effectuate the transfer of any shafesir common stock without first
receiving from the transferring stockholder (i)@ginion of counsel satisfactory to the Company thatoposed transfer may be made lawfully
without the registration of such shares pursuatiiédSecurities Act of 1933, as amended (the “SéesiAct”), and applicable state securities
laws, or (ii) evidence that the shares proposdiktransferred have been registered under the iBesukct. The existence of the foregoing
restrictions may, therefore, adversely affect titerie market price for our securities and the ggiftour stockholders.

Future stock issuances could severely dilute ourreunt shareholders’ interests.

The future issuance of common stock or preferredksinay result in dilution in the percentage of common stock held by our
existing shareholders. Also, any stock we sethsfuture may be valued on an arbitrary basissgnd the issuance of shares of common
stock or preferred stock for future services, asitjons or other corporate actions may have thecefif diluting the value of the shares held by
our existing shareholders.

In addition, it is the Company'’s current intenti@epending on the development of the businessasidrother factors) to raise
substantial additional capital during fiscal 20d4hjch we expect to result in substantial dilutiarthe percentage of our common stock held
by our existing shareholders.

Any additional funding we arrange through the satéf our common stock will result in dilution to exting stockholder’ voting power and
may result in dilution to the book value per shaheld by existing stockholders.

We must raise additional capital in order for ousibess plan to succeed. A likely source of adddti@apital will be through the sale
of additional shares of common stock. Such stoskarces would cause stockholders’ voting inteiasisir Company to be diluted and may
cause the book value per share held by existirtkistdders to be diluted. Such dilution could negglti affect the value of investors’ shares.

We do not expect to pay cash dividends in the feezble future.

We are not obligated to pay dividends with respectur capital stock, and we do not anticipatepgagment of cash dividends on our
capital stock in the foreseeable future. Any decisb pay dividends will depend upon our profitapiat the time, cash available, and other
factors; however, it is currently anticipated thay future profits received from operations willfe¢ained for operations. Therefore, no
assurance can be given that
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there will ever be any such cash dividend or distion in the future. Accordingly, investors muslyron sales of their capital stock after price
appreciation, which may never occur, or a salewf@mpany or other similar transaction as the evdy to realize a gain on their investment.

If we do not obtain additional financing, our busi&ss may fail

We anticipate that additional funding will be negder general administrative expenses, operatisscand marketing costs. There is
no guarantee that we will be able to raise theireduwash and because of this our business mayNailhave generated limited revenues from
operations to date. The specific cost requiremesésied to maintain operations depends upon theigiiod we are able to generate. If we are
not able to raise the capital necessary to fundaginess objectives, we may have to delay theemehtation of our business plan. Obtaining
additional funding will be subject to a number aétors, including general market conditions, ineestcceptance of our business plan and
initial results from our business operations. THastors may impact the timing, amount, terms arditions of additional financing available
us. The most likely source of future funds avagatol us is through the sale of additional shareoofmon stock. There is no guarantee that w
will be able to raise the funds required by the @any and, if we are not able to raise such furs) bur business may fail.

Because our continuation as a going concern is iaubt, we may be forced to cease business operatimfsss we can generate profitak
operations in the future.

We will be incurring losses until we build a breaken level of revenue. Further losses are anteipmt the development of our
business. As a result, there is substantial ddoinitaour ability to continue as a going concernr &hility to continue as a going concern is
dependent upon our ability to generate profitalplerations in the future and/or to obtain the nesrgsfinancing to meet our obligations and
repay our liabilities arising from normal busineggrations when they come due. We will require tattil funds in order to provide proper
service to our potential clients. At this time, eannot assure investors that we will be able taiolitnancing. If we are unable to raise needec
financing, we may have to delay or abandon furtigarations. If we cannot raise financing to meetatligations, we will be insolvent and
may be forced to cease our business operations.

If an active trading market for our common stock ds not develop, stockholders may be unable totkell shares.

There is currently no active trading market for oammon stock and we can provide no assurance timarket will develop. We may
decide to apply for listing of our common stockabl.S. and/or foreign exchange. However, we cawigeeano assurances that we will appl
that our common stock would be accepted for listingany stock exchange. Accordingly, we can prouigdestors with no assurance that our
shares will be traded on a U.S. and/or foreign arge or, if traded, that an active public tradireyket will materialize. If no active trading
market is ever developed for our shares, it wildifécult for stockholders to sell their shares.

Our shares of common stock are subject to the “pgratock”rules of the SEC and the trading market in our sedies will be limited, which
will make transactions in our stock cumbersome amgy reduce the value of an investment in our stock.

The SEC has adopted rules that regulate brokeedpedctices in connection with transactions innipestocks.” Penny stocks
generally are equity securities with a price ofl#gan $5.00 (other than securities registereceaio national securities exchanges or quoted
on the NASDAQ system, provided that current pricd ®olume information with respect to transactionsuch securities is provided by the
exchange or system). Penny stock rules requirelebdealer, prior to a transaction in a pennylstant otherwise exempt from those rules, to
deliver a standardized risk disclosure documemamed by the SEC, which specifies information alpmniny stocks and the nature and
significance of risks of the penny stock markebraker-dealer must also provide the customer witihalnd offer quotations for the penny
stock, the compensation of the broker-dealer, afesperson in the transaction, and monthly accstatéments indicating the market value of
each penny stock held in the customer’s accourgdttition, the penny stock rules require that,migca transaction in a penny stock not
otherwise exempt from those rules, the broker-demnlest make a special written determination thatgénny stock is a suitable investment for
the purchaser and receive the purchaser’'s writjeeemnent to the transaction. These disclosure neageints may have the effect of reducing
the trading activity in the secondary market facktthat becomes subject to those penny
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stock rules. If a trading market for our commorcktdevelops, our common stock will probably becaubject to the penny stock rules, and
stockholders may have difficulty in selling thelrases.

We have very little experience as a public compang may not be able to operate successfully as blipicompany, regardless of whether
our operations are successful.

We have operated as a public company for a veriydihperiod of time, and we have limited experieimceomplying with the various
rules and regulations that are required of a putdimpany. As a result, we may not be able to opeatcessfully as a public company,
regardless of whether our operations are successful

If we cannot operate successfully as a public compan investment in our Company may be adverdédgted. Our inability to
operate as a public company could be the basis ofv@stor losing his or her entire investments$nAis a public company, we will incur
significant costs including but not limited to tfelowing: audit, legal, internal costs relatedcmmpliance, market maker, transfer agent, and
EDGAR filing fees. These costs are expected taubstantial and will vary depending on the Compamgtvity and the SEC’s review of the
Company.

Material weaknesses in our disclosure controls amacedures or our failure to remediate such matdneeaknesses could result in
material misstatement in our financial statementstrbeing prevented or detected and could affeceistor confidence in the accuracy and
completeness of our financial statements, as wsllcauir common stock price.

We have identified material weaknesses in our dgsgke controls and procedures, including a lackuficient internal accounting
resources, necessary to ensure that adequate ref/aw financial statements and notes theret@rfopmed, and have concluded that our
internal control over financial reporting was ntieetive as of March 31, 2013. These material weakes and our remediation plans are
described further in Item 9A. Weaknesses in ourldgtire controls and procedures could result irenatmisstatements in our financial
statements not being prevented or detected. Weexyagrience difficulties or delays in completing esfiation or may not be able to
successfully remediate material weaknesses aAmfl material weakness or unsuccessful remediatboridcaffect our ability to file periodic
reports on a timely basis and investor confidendbé accuracy and completeness of our finan@édstents, which in turn could harm our
business and have an adverse effect on our staxkqmd our ability to raise additional funds.

We may expend a substantial amount of time and reses in connection with SEC, other regulatory, stockholder-related inquiries or
legal actions related to our restatement of our pieusly filed financial statements and other disslares and the transactions related thereto
or other matters.

We may expend a substantial amount of time anduresse in connection with SEC, other regulatorytocisholderrelated inquiries ¢
legal actions related to our restatement of owiptesly filed financial statements and other discdi@s and the transactions related thereto or
other matters. Such actions could have a matatiadrae effect on the Company’s liquidity and finahcondition and could also affect our
ability to file periodic reports on a timely basisd investor confidence in the accuracy and compésts of our financial statements, which in
turn could harm our business and have an adveieset eh our stock price and our ability to raiselitidnal funds.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS.

Disclosure under this item is not applicable beeadhs Company is a smaller reporting company.
ITEM 2. PROPERTIES.

Our corporate headquarters and production fadligylocated at 411 University Ridge, GreenvilleytBaCarolina. The production
facility includes approximately 3,200 square fedjbaing our headquarters office, and the facititserall has 9,470 square feet of space. We

have six years remaining on the lease for thidifiaci
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We have an additional leased facility consistingymbroximately 4,872 square feet located in Hudbtagsachusetts which is used
for research and development and storage. The @wyrmmans to consolidate all operations from Hudstassachusetts into its Greenville
facility during fiscal 2014.

Annual rental payments for the next five fiscal ngeimr these facilities are as follows:

2014 $ 195,43¢
2015 160,93
2016 224,41(
2017 224.41(
2018 224,41(
2019 and thereaftt $ 224,41

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS.

We are subject, from time to time, to various clgitawsuits or actions that arise i n the ordirawrse of business. As of March 31,
2013 there were no outstanding claims by the Compamagainst the Company.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES.
Not applicable.

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOL DER MATTERS, AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY
SECURITIES

Market Information

Our common stock is currently quoted on the OTddin Board under the ticker “SCIO”. Beginning Naownbker 16, 2010, our
common stock was quoted on the OTC Bulletin Boardien the symbol “KHRB.OB”; however, on August 5,120 our symbol was changed to
“KHRBD.OB”, and later to “SCIO” to reflect the Corapy’s name change. Because we are quoted on tBeBblletin Board, our common
stock may be less liquid, receive less coverageeoyrity analysts and news media, and generate fonees than might otherwise be obtainec
if it were listed on a national securities exchangee OTC Bulletin Board prices are quotations,chtrieflect inter-dealer prices without retail
mark-up, mark-down, or commissions and may notasgmt actual transactions.

After the acquisition of the Scio Diamond Techngldprporation name on August 5, 2011, trading efammmon stock did not beg
on the OTC Bulletin Board until September 23, 2004e following table sets forth the quarterly hiytd low bid prices for our common stock
from September 23, 2011 through March 31, 2018¢jpsrted by the OTC Bulletin Board. These quotaticeflect inter-dealer prices, without
retail mark-up, markdown, or commission, and malyrapresent actual transactions.

Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 201. High Low

September 23, 2011 through the end of the SecawhlFQuarte $ 3.1¢ $ 2.1C
Third Fiscal Quarte 4,5C 2.2F
Fourth Fiscal Quarte 4,1¢ 2.2¢F
Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 201: High Low

First Fiscal Quarte $ 3.3t $ 2.2t
Second Fiscal Quart 3.1¢ 2.2t
Third Fiscal Quarte 2.7¢ 0.71
Fourth Fiscal Quarte 1.3¢ 0.81
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As of June 17, 2013, there were 49,264,312 shdiresnomon stock outstanding held by approximatel9 swckholders of record.
Dividends

We have not declared or paid any cash dividendsuortommon stock since our inception, and we damiend to declare cash
dividends for the foreseeable future. Any decismpay dividends will depend upon our profitabiliythe time, cash available, and other
factors; however, it is currently anticipated thay future profits received from operations willfe¢ained for operations.

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securit

Unless otherwise indicated, the issuances of aurges listed below were made in reliance onxamgption from registration under
Section 4(2) of the Securities Act of 1933, as aheen(the “Securities Act”), as we reasonably beikthat the investors were sophisticated,
that no general solicitations were involved andtthasactions did not otherwise involve a publi@ohg.

In June of 2012, the Company began conducting tbe@fering and the ADGC Offering, pursuant to whicertain current and
former stockholders of ADI and ADGC qualifying asceedited investors had the opportunity to acquréo an aggregate of approximately 17
million shares of common stock of the Company @108 per share in private placement transactidre ADI Offering and the ADGC
Offering was completed in March 2013. The offerangl sale of the Company common stock pursuaheté\DI Offering and the ADGC
Offering was conducted in reliance upon an exemgtiom registration provided for by Rule 506 of RE&gion D and Section 4(2) of the
Securities Act. No form of general solicitationgemeral advertising was used by the Company, prepresentative of the Company, in
connection with the offer or sale of the commorcktoEach of the purchasers in the offerings regreesl that such purchaser was an accre
investor. The shares of Company common stockiadlie offering are restricted securities, havenbeggpropriately legended as such, and
cannot be transferred unless they have been register there is an exemption from registratiordarmapplicable federal and state securities
laws. During the three months ended March 31, 20&8Company issued 2,429,300 shares of commok ptasuant to the ADI/ADGC
Stockholder Offering. The Company issued a toftdl6y766,773 in the ADI/ADGC Stockholder Offering.

On January 19, 2013, we issued 15,000 shares afomumon stock to a company financial advisor insideration for services relat
to our participation in the Depository Trust Comypdisting or registration of our common shares. Weognized $12,000 in expense to reflec
the value of these shares.

On January 20, 2013, we issued 31,250 shares aoommon stock to a company vendor in considerdtionecruiting services
rendered. The Company recognized $25,000 in eepen®flect the value of these shares.

On February 26, 2013, a warrant holder exercisatants for an aggregate of 19,469 shares of ounummstock at an exercise price
of $0.70 per share. These warrants were price6.@0%nd the Company received $13,628 in considerapon exercise.

On March 25, 2013, the Board of Directors authatites issuance of 50,000 warrants to Theodorusi§taomember of the Board, as
compensation for Mr. Strous’ efforts in connectwith the Companys largest customer and not as compensation irapgoity as a member
the Board. In addition, on March 25, 2013, the iBaaf Directors authorized the issuance of 150@8frants to an unaffiliated third party as
compensation for his efforts in connection with @@mpany’s largest customer. At issuance, all@@D pf these warrants were immediately
exercisable and expire five years from the datesafance. Each warrant is convertible into Compamgmon stock at $1.60 per share. The
Company recognized $113,760 in expense from thmaise of these warrants. The Company valued thagants using the Black-Scholes
option pricing model. See Item 8, Note 6 — Shaasd&l Compensation for more detalil.

ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA.
Not applicable.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FI NANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS.

You should read the following discussion in conjiamcwith the financial statements of the Compamg the notes to those
statements, included elsewhere in this Form 10siyell as the rest of this Annual Report on ForrK1LT he statements in this discussion
regarding outlook, our expectations regarding outufe performance, liquidity and capital resour@gl other non-historical statements in
this discussion are forward-looking statements.sehferwardlooking statements are subject to numerous riskistantertainties, including, b
not limited to, the risks and uncertainties desedbin the “Risk Factors” and “Cautionary Notice Ragling Forward Looking Statements”
sections of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Ouuatresults may differ materially from those can&d in or implied by any forward-
looking statements.

GENERAL
Corporate History

We were incorporated on September 17, 2009 in téte $f Nevada under the name Krossbow Holdingp@ation. Krosshow’s
original business plan was focused on offsettimga@a dioxide (“C02") emissions through the creatémd protection of forest-based carbon
“sinks.” Krossbow planned to assess carbon resquotamtials, prescribe and implement ecosystenonasins to develop those resources, an
thereby generate carbon offset products. Howevehave since abandoned that original businessgpldmestructured our business to focu
man-made diamond technology development. We dec¢aadquire existing technology and to seek taiffitly and effectively produce man-
made diamond. In connection with this change inrass purpose, Krossbow changed its name to Seim@id Technology Corporation to
reflect its new business direction.

On August 5, 2011, Edward S. Adams and Michael Bn&han, both of whom now serve on the Company’sdofDirectors,
acquired control of the Company through the purela2,000,000 shares of the Company’s issued atsfamding common stock from Jason
Kropp, Krossbow’s sole director and executive @fiat that time, in accordance with a common smakhase agreement among Mr. Kropp,
Mr. Adams and Mr. Monahan. Concurrent with the exien of the stock purchase agreement, Mr. Krogigreed from all positions with
Krosshow, including, but not limited to, that ofeBident, Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financidfi€er, Treasurer, Secretary and Director.

On August 5, 2011, the Company executed an AssehRse Agreement (the “Scio Asset Purchase Agregweith another
privately-held Nevada corporation that also hadnfme “Scio Diamond Technology Corporation” (“Ptev&cio”).Under the terms of the S
Asset Purchase Agreement, the Company purchasedithe “Scio Diamond Technology Corporation” anduiiegyl other rights from Private
Scio for 13,000,000 newly issued shares of comnoeeksof the Company. Mr. Adams and Mr. Monahan wirectors of Private Scio, and
Joseph D. Lancia, our former President and ChietHtive Officer, was an officer of Private Sciodahey owned 31.5%, 31.5% and 15.4%,
respectively, of Private Scio. Edward S. Adams liithael R. Monahan each acquired, directly or iaclity, 4,100,000 shares of our common
stock pursuant to the Scio Asset Purchase Agreemedtloseph D. Lancia, our former Chief Execufiicer, acquired 2,000,000 shares
pursuant to the Scio Asset Purchase Agreement.

On August 31, 2011, the Company acquired certaata®f Apollo Diamond, Inc. (“ADI”) (the “ADI Asgdurchase”), consisting
primarily of diamond growing machines and intelledtproperty related thereto, for which the Comppaig ADI an aggregate of $2,000,000
in a combination of cash and a promissory note with a September 1, 2012 maturity date. Th@npissory note had an outstanding
balance of $125,000 at March 31, 2012 and wasipdidl as of March 31, 2013. In connection wittetADI Asset Purchase, the Company
also agreed to provide certain current and forrtamkéiolders of ADI that are accredited investoes dipportunity to acquire up to
approximately 16 million shares of common stockhef Company for $0.01 per share (the “ADI Offerind@oth Mr. Adams, in an executive
role, and Mr. Monahan previously served in varioapacities with ADI through early 2011.

On June 5, 2012, the Company acquired substantitilbf the assets of Apollo Diamond Gemstone Crafon (“ADGC”) (the
“ADGC Asset Purchase”), consisting primarily of igltown diamond gemstone-related know-how, inventang various intellectual property,
in exchange for $100,000 in cash and the oppostdiait
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certain current and former stockholders of ADGQ #ra accredited investors to acquire up to appmateély 1 million shares of common stock
of the Company for $0.01 per share (the “ADGC Offg) with the intent that ADI Offering be condudtsubstantially concurrently with the
ADGC Offering (collectively, the “ADI/ADGC Stockhder Offering”). Mr. Adams and Mr. Monahan servad/arious capacities with ADGC
through early 2011.

The ADI/ADGC Stockholder Offering was completedMiiarch, 2013 and resulted in the issuance of aneggde of 16,766,773 shares
of the Company’s common stock.

Business Overvie

The Company’s primary mission is the developmergrofitable and sustainable commercial productibitsodiamond materials,
which are suitable for known, emerging and anti@gandustrial, technology and consumer applicatidie Company intends to pursue
progressive development of its core diamond mdsatéahnologies and related intellectual propdrat the Company hopes will evolve into
product opportunities across various applicatid¥s.believe these opportunities may be monetizedgh@ combination of end product sales,
joint ventures and licensing arrangements wittdtparties, and through continued development efletttual property. Anticipated applicati
opportunities for the Company’s diamond materiatdude the following: precision cutting devicesamiond gemstone jewelry, power
switches, semiconductor processors, optoelectrogarssciences, water purification, and MRI and othedical science technology.

Nearly all of the Compang’present production capacity is being sold foring@ecision cutting devices As of March 31, 2@8hac
generated $881,748 in net revenue since inception $ales of our diamond materials. To date, rmbstir product has been sold overseas
100% of these sales have been to external custoriéesexpect continued development of an internaticnarket for our diamond materials.

See Part |, Item 1. (Business) for additional infation regarding our business.
Critical Accounting Policies

We have adopted various accounting policies thaegothe application of accounting principles gatigraccepted in the United
States “GAAP”. We describe our significant accongtpolicies in the notes to our audited financiatements as of March 31, 2013.

Some of the accounting policies involve significartigments and assumptions by us that have a rabitepact on the carrying value
of our assets and liabilities. We consider thes@aating policies to be critical accounting pol&i&he judgment and assumptions we use are
based on historical experience and other fact@tsvile believe to be reasonable under the circurostaBecause of the nature of the judgm
and assumptions we make, actual results couldrdiien these judgments and estimates and couldriatiyeaffect the carrying values of our
assets and liabilities and our results of operation

The following is a summary of the more significardgmental estimates and complex accounting priesjpvhich represent our
critical accounting policies.

Asset Purchase

The Company purchased certain assets from ADI aqguéiu31, 2011, consisting primarily of diamond giryvmachines and
intellectual property related thereto. The purcharéee consisted of an aggregate of $2,000,000cionabination of cash and a promissory note
bearing interest at 4.00% annually and due and@wiriull on September 1, 2012, plus the rightdertain current and former stockholders of
ADI to acquire up to approximately 16 million shsuaf common stock of the Company for $0.01 pereshBine Company has estimated the
value of these subscription rights to be $0.69iggt, for a total of $11,040,000 for these rights.

The following table reflects our purchase priceedition of the assets:

Machinery and equipme! $ 943,68!
Reactors 2,311,81
In-process research and development 9,784,49
Total $ 13,040,00
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The Company completed a third-party valuation ttedmine the fair value of the assets acquired.firfad amounts allocated to the
assets acquired are based upon the results ofahaition appraisal.

We believe that the acquisition of these asseta #®@I was not the acquisition of a “business” withihe definition set forth in GAAP
or Rule 11-01(d).

On June 5, 2012, the Company acquired substantithllbf the assets of ADGC, consisting primarilyiab-grown diamond gemstone-
related know-how, inventory, and various intellettproperty, in exchange for $100,000 in cash &edpportunity for certain current and
former stockholders of ADGC that are accreditedstors to acquire up to approximately 1 millionrsiseof common stock of the Company
$0.01 per share with the intent that ADI Offerirggdonducted substantially concurrently with the ADGffering. The ADI Offering and the
ADGC Offering began in June 2012 and is completedof March 31, 2013, the Company had issued 1677&6shares of common stock
pursuant to the ADI/ADGC Stockholder Offering.

The following table reflects our purchase priceedition of the assets:

Inventory $ 269,00(
In-process research and development 601,00(
Total $ 870,00(

The Company completed a third-party valuation ttedeine the fair value of the assets acquired dsen&cquisition date. The final
amounts allocated to the assets acquired are bi@sedthe results of that valuation appraisal.

We believe that the acquisition of these asseta #@GC was not the acquisitions of a “business’hintthe definition set forth in
GAAP or Rule 11-01(d).

Property, Plant and Equipme

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is@traight line basis beginning at the time fil&ced in service, based on the
following estimated useful lives:

Years
Machinery and equipment 3-15
Furniture and fixture 3-10
Engineering equipmel 5-12

Leasehold improvements are depreciated at therleS#ige remaining term of the lease or the liféhef asset (generally three to sever
years).

Expenditures for major renewals and bettermentsetkignd the useful lives of property and equipnagatcapitalized. Expenditures
for maintenance and repairs are charged to ex@snseurred.

After initial recognition, tangible assets acquitkdt are used in commercialization activitiesaseounted for in accordance with tf
nature. Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASRcounting Standards Codification (“ASC360 requires that these assets be clas:
as indefinite-lived until the completion or abandwnt of the associated commercialization effottsytdch time the asset would be considerec
to be placed in service and the entity would deiteerthe assets’ appropriate useful lives. The Campmdaced the reactors acquired from ADI
(the primary tangible assets) in service duringfiteal year ended March 31, 2013. This is coiedidith the commencement of commercial
services for the Company.

Intangible Asset
Intangible assets, such as acquired in-procesarndsand development “IPRD” costs, are considavdthte an indefinite useful life
until such time as they are put into service atclvliime they will be amortized on a straidine basis over the shorter of their economic gal

useful life. Management's estimate of useful lifeany
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patents when placed in service is a critical judgimilanagement evaluates indefinite life intangémsets for impairment on an annual basis
and on an interim basis if events or changes tunistances between annual impairment tests indicatéhe asset might be impaired. The
ongoing evaluation for impairment of its indefinitie intangible assets requires significant mamaget estimates and judgment. Managemen
reviews definite life intangible assets for impaémhwhenever events or changes in circumstancesabedhat the carrying amount of an asset
may not be recoverable. There were no impairmestges as of March 31, 2013.

During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2013, manmegge of the Company conducted a strategic revieits afitellectual property
portfolio and determined that a substantial portibthe portfolio should be considered for placetrierservice due to the inherent value of the
patents to the on-going manufacturing operatiorssa Aesult, intangible assets in the amount of BF(#®3 previously classified as IPRD were
assigned to specific patents and considered placgetvice. These patents are being amortized aperiod ranging from 6.75 years to 15.67
years corresponding to their remaining |

The Company continues to classify the remainingmgtortfolio as IPRD and believes that the IPRB dlgernative future use and
value. At such time that production begins and cenumalization of this portion of the intellectuaiperty portfolio begins, then the
segmentation and bifurcation of the remaining IP&Bet to finite-lived commercialized intellectuadjperty assets will be considered.
Applicable accounting guidance requires an indedihlife for IPRD assets until such time as the caruialization can be reasonably estimatec
at which time the assets will be available for theiended use. At such time as those requirensstmet, we believe that consideration of the
legal life of the intellectual property protectishould be of considerable importance in determitiieguseful life. Upon commercialization and
determination of the useful life of the intelledtpaoperty assets, consideration will be givenh® éventual expiration of the intellectual
property rights underlying certain critical aspeat®ur manufacturing process.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2013 Compared to tlsedliYear Ended March 31, 20

Our net loss for the fiscal year ended March 31.320as ($7,282,352), compared to net losses 00662900) for the fiscal year enc
March 31, 2012.

During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2013, weiired total expenses of $8,176,622, compared &b éapenses of $2,137,936
during the fiscal year ended March 31, 2012. Tleeciase is primarily the result of our commencenoécbmmercial operations and includes
an increase in the cost of goods sold to $1,349/1@¢% fiscal year ended March 31, 2013 from zZeriine fiscal year ended March 31, 2013;
$1,996,426 in expenses associated with awards oradkr our 2012 Share Incentive Plan, which was tedioguring the fiscal year ended
March 31, 2013; and $947,306 in expenses assoaiatiedndemnification of certain members of our Bdbaf Directors as described in Item
13- Certain Relationships and Related TransactmasDirector Independence.

We have had limited revenue to offset our expere®s$ so we have incurred net losses. During tlealfigear ended March 31, 2013,
we recorded revenue net of returns and allowanic$881,748 from the sale of materials producedgerdstones acquired from ADGC.
During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2012, weirezl grant income of $75,000 which was includedther income on the statement of
operations. Our net loss per share for the fiseal gnded March 31, 2013 was ($0.19) per sharepa@u to a net loss per share of ($0.12) pe
share for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2012.wWéighted average number of shares outstandin@®&31,035 and 17,401,174,
respectively, for the fiscal years ended MarchZ81,3 and 2012.

FINANCIAL CONDITION

At March 31, 2013, we had total assets of $15,Z8bgbmpared to total assets of $14,323,173 at MatcR012. This increase in
assets was primarily related to increases in adeaeceivable, inventory, property, plant and emeépt, and the ADGC Asset Purchase. We
had cash of $223,257 at March 31, 2013 compar88@8,516 at March 31, 2012. The decrease is dtletoontinuing use of cash to support
Company operations.
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Total liabilities at March 31, 2013 were $1,066,%tMpared to total liabilities of $723,501 at Ma&h 2012. Total liabilities as of
March 31, 2013 were comprised primarily of accoyagable and accrued expenses. This increase igshlt of the Company’s initiation of
operations during the fiscal year.

Total shareholders’ equity was $14,189,906 at M&™Lh2013, compared to $13,599,672 at March 312 28hareholders’ equity
increased during the year primarily due to issuaricgock in connection with the ADI and ADGC Assgeirchases. Other components of the
change in stockholders’ equity related to salesisswhnces of common stock, allocation of Compangksfor indemnification purposes, and
net losses during the period.

CASH FLOWS
Operating Activities

We have not generated positive cash flows fromaipey activities. For the year ended March 31, 208 cash flows used in
operating activities were ($3,369,239), consisprigharily of a net loss of ($7,282,352) offset lynreash stock cash stock based compens
in the amount of $1,996,426, allocation of stockifmlemnification purposes in the amount of $830,@preciation and amortization of
$859,983, and an increase in current liabilitie$480,370 offset by an increase in current as$862,899), compared to net cash flows use
operating activities for the year ended March 3, 20f ($1,375,519).

Investing Activitie:

For the year ended March 31, 2013, net cash flaes in investing activities were ($1,114,420), cstivgg primarily of the purchases
of property, plant, and equipment. Net cash flosedlin investing activities were ($1,396,520) for year ended March 31, 2012.

Financing Activities

We have financed our operations primarily throudhieacements or the issuance of equity and debtimsints. For the years ended
March 31, 2013 and March 31, 2012, we generate86$3400 and $3,579,622 from financing activitiespectively.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

We expect that working capital requirements wilhttoue to be funded through a combination of ousténg funds, further issuances
of securities, and future credit facilities or corgte borrowings. Our working capital requiremeares expected to increase in line with the
growth of our business. Effective June 21, 2018 ewtered into a $1,000,000 secured credit faddifyrovide near-term liquidity for working
capital requirements. See Note 12- Subsequentt&f@nfurther detalils.

Existing cash of $223,257 as of March 31, 2018pisexpected to be adequate to fund our operativessthe next fiscal year ending
March 31, 2014. As of March 31, 2013, we had nediof credit or other bank financing arrangeme@snerally, we have financed operati
through March 31, 2013 through the proceeds oksafl@ur common stock. Thereafter, we expect Weneed to raise additional capital and
generate revenues to meet operating requirements.

Additional issuances of equity or convertible detturities will result in dilution to our currertbskholders. Such securities might
have rights, preferences or privileges senior tocommon stock. Additional financing may not beitalde upon acceptable terms, or at all. If
adequate funds are not available or are not avaitabacceptable terms, we may not be able toadkentage of prospective new business
endeavors or opportunities, which could signifitaand materially restrict our business operations.

OFF BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

As of the date of this Annual Report, we do notéhamy off-balance sheet arrangements that have seasonably likely to have a
current or future effect on our financial conditi@manges in financial condition, revenues or egpsnresults of operations, liquidity, capital
expenditures or capital resources that are materiavestors.
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ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK.
Not required because the Company is a smaller tiegazompany.

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DAT A.

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTINGFIRM

To the Board of Directors and

Shareholders of SCIO Diamond Technology Corporation

We have audited the accompanying balance she&€I& Diamond Technology Corporation (the “Comparag)of March 31, 2013 and 20
and the related statements of operations, sharetsdkequity, and cash flows for the years then dndiee Company’s management is
responsible for these financial statements. Oyarsibility is to express an opinion on these fiahstatements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighafBioUnited States). Those standard:s
require that we plan and perform the audit to abtaasonable assurance about whether the finataieiments are free of material
misstatement. The Company is not required to hamewere we engaged to perform, an audit of isrirdl control over financial reporting.
Our audit included consideration of internal cohtreer financial reporting as a basis for desigraniglit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of exprgssmopinion on the effectiveness of the Compamg&rnal control over financial reporting.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An autlibancludes examining, on a test basis, evidenpparting the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements, assessing the accouptingiples used and significant estimates made dgagement, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. We belithat our audits provide a reasonable basis foopimion.

In our opinion, the financial statements refer@alove present fairly, in all material respedts, financial position of SCIO Diamond
Technology Corporation as of March 31, 2013 and22@hd the results of its operations and its ckstsffor the years then ended in
conformity with accounting principles generally eapted in the United States of America.

The accompanying financial statements have begraprd assuming that the Company will continue @silag concern. As discussed in No
to the financial statements, the Company has g&tklianited revenue, incurred net losses and irclnegative operating cash flows since
inception and will require additional financingft;d the continued development of products. Thélahitity of such financing cannot be

assured. These conditions raise substantial ddaghttdts ability to continue as a going concernnisigement’s plans regarding those matters
also are described in Note 1. The financial stateméo not include any adjustments that might tésuin the outcome of this uncertainty.

/sl Cherry Bekaert LLP
Greenville, South Carolina
June 28, 2013
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ASSETS

Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalel
Accounts receivable, n
Inventory
Prepaid expenst
Prepaid ren

Total current asse

Property, plant and equipme
Facility
Construction in progres
Manufacturing equipmer
Other equipmer

Total property, plant and equipme
Less accumulated depreciati
Net property, plant and equipme

Intangible assets, n

Prepaid rent, noncurre
Other asset

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Current Liabilities:
Notes payabli
Accounts payabl
Accounts payabl- related partie
Accrued expense

Total current liabilities
Other liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES

Common stock, $0.001 par value, 75,000,000 shathe@dzed; 47,736,812 and 26,013,070 shares
issued and outstanding at March 31, 2013 and 2@%pectively

Additional paic-in capital
Accumulated defici

Scio Diamond Technology Corporation
(Formerly Krossbow Holding Corp.)

BALANCE SHEETS
As of March 31, 2013 and 2012

Treasury stock, 1,000,000 and no shares, respbc

Total stockholder equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS

" EQUITY

March 31, March 31,
2013 2012
$ 223,25 $ 808,51t
69,04: —
538,94¢ 2,50z
34,45t 23,29t
23,05( —
888,75 834,31.
883,24t 145,30:
— 270,00¢(
3,813,86! 3,178,57
69,33 58,14
4,766,44; 3,652,02;
(493,53)) (3,397)
4,272,90! 3,648,62!
10,015,65 9,784,49
65,33¢ 41,93¢
13,80( 13,80(
$ 1525645 $ 14,323,17
$ — 3 125,00(
285,65: 66,08(
— 131,98:
730,69¢ 400,43
1,016,34 723,50:
50,19¢ —
1,066,54. 723,50:
47,737 26,01:
23,789,47 15,937,61
(9,646,30) (2,363,95)
(1,000 —
14,189,90 13,599,67
$ 1525645 $ 14,323,17

The accompanying notes are an integral part oetfirancial statements.
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Scio Diamond Technology Corporation
(Formerly Krossbow Holding Corp.)

STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
For the years ended March 31, 2013 and 2012

Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012
Revenue
Revenue, net of returns and allowan $ 881,74 $ —
Cost of goods solc
Cost of goods sol 1,349,10! —
Gross margin (loss) (467,36 —
General, administrative, and pre-operating expense:
Professional and consulting fe 2,635,06! 1,534,51
Salaries and benefi 3,086,50! 284,35!
Rent, equipment lease and facilities expe 300,26: 97,01!
Marketing cost: 48,40: 28,34’
Depreciation and amortizatic 393,01( 3,391
Corporate general and administrat 364,26! 190,30t
Total general and administrative expen 6,827,51. 2,137,93
Loss from operations (7,294,87) (2,137,93)
Other income (expense
Interest income (expens — (15,02)
Forgiveness of interest exper 12,52: —
Gain on restructurin — 11,05°
Other income — 75,00(
Net loss $ (7,282,35) $ (2,066,900
Loss per share
Basic:
Weighted average number of shares outstar 37,971,03 17,401,17
Loss per shar $ (0.19 $ (0.19)
Fully diluted:
Weighted average number of shares outstar 37,971,03 17,401,17
Loss per shar $ (0.19) $ (0.17)

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktfirancial statements.
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Scio Diamond Technology Corporation
(Formerly Krossbow Holding Corp.)

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOW
For the years ended March 31, 2013 and 2012

Cash flows from operating activities:

Net loss

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash irsegerating activities
Depreciation and amortizatic
Gain on restructurin
Expense for warrants issued in exchange for ses
Expense for stock issued in exchange for sen
Forgiveness of interest exper
Expense for stock allocated for indemnificatiordo&ctors
Employee stock based compensa

Changes in assets and liabiliti
Increase in accounts receiva
Increase in prepaid expenses and
Increase in inventor
Increase in accounts payal
Increase in accrued expen:
Increase in other liabilities

Net cash used in operating activitie

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of asse
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and egait
Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Net cash used in investing activitie
Cash flows from financing activities:
Services financed with a note paya
Proceeds from note payal- related party
Proceeds from sale of common stock and warrantise- net of fees
Payments on notes payable
Net cash provided by financing activities

Change in cash and cash equivals
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period

Cash and cash equivalents, end of peric

Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, March 31,

2013 2012
$ (7,282,35) $ (2,066,90)
859,98: 3,397
— (11,057
121,56( 192,00
37,00( —
(12,527 —
830,00( —
1,996,42 —
(69,047 —
(26,417 (65,239
(267,440 (16,309
87,58 198,06!
342,78 390,50!
50,19t —
(3,332,23) (1,375,51)
— (1,000,001
— 97,27(
(1,114,42) (493,79
(1,114,42) (1,396,52)
— 250,00
— 9,00(
4,086,401 4,445,622,
(225,000) (1,125,00)
3,861,401 3,579,62;
(585,25 807,58:
808,51t 93¢
$ 223,25 $ 808,51t

The accompanying notes are an integral part oetfirancial statements.
(continued)
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Scio Diamond Technology Corporation
(Formerly Krossbow Holding Corp.)

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOW
For the years ended March 31, 2013 and 2012
(Continued)

Supplemental cash flow disclosures
Cash paid during the year fc
Interest

Income taxe:

Non-cash investing and financing activities
Purchase of assets funded by note pay
Purchase of assets funded through warrant |
Warrants issued for real property lei
Warrants issued for consulting servis
Purchase of assets funded through ADGC subscripititis
Common stock allocated for indemnification of dites
Common stock issued for purchase of trade n

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktfirancial statements.
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Year Ended Year Ended
March March
31, 2013 31, 2012

— 3,00(
$ 100,00 $ 1,000,001
$ — $ 11,040,00
$ 39,000 $ =
$ 113,76( $ —
$ 770,000 $ =
$ 830,000 $ —
$ — 8 260,00(
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Balance, March 31,
2011

Shares issued for
purchase of trad
name

Common stock
issued for cash,
net of fees, at
$0.70 per shar

Deemed distributio

Subscription rights
issued for
purchase of asse

Warrants issued fo
services to non-
employee:

Net loss for the
period ended
March 31, 201:

Balance, April 1,

2012

Common stock
issued for cash,
net of fees, at
$0.80 per shar

Common stock
issued for cash,
net of fees, at
$0.01 per shar

Common stock
issued in
exchange for
services, at $0.8
per share

Warrants exercised
for common
stock, net of fees,
at $0.70 per shai

Treasury stock
acquired

Subscription rights
issued for
purchase of asse

Warrants issued fo
real property
lease

Warrants issued in
exchange for
consulting
services

Employee stock
based
compensatiol

Common stock
allocated fol

STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS'’ EQUITY
For the years ended March 31, 2013 and 2012

Scio Diamond Technology Corporation

(Formerly Krossbow Holding Corp.)

Additional
Common Stock Paid in Treasury Stock Accumulated
Shares Amount Capital Shares Deficit Total
6,400,000 $ 6,40 $  19,60( — — $ (37,05) $ (11,05)
13,000,00 13,00( 247,00( — — — 260,00(
6,613,07! 6,61: 4,439,00! — — — 4,445,62;
— — — — — (260,00() (260,000
— — 11,040,00 — — — 11,040,00
— — 192,00° — — — 192,00°
— — — — —  (2,066,90)  (2,066,90)
26,013,07 26,01 15,937,61 — — (2,363,95) 13,599,67
4,891,25! 4,891 3,868,28I — — — 3,873,17
16,766,77 16,76¢ 182,82° — — — 199,59!
46,25( 46 36,95¢ — — — 37,00(
19,46¢ 16 13,60¢ — — — 13,62¢
— — 1,00¢ (1,000,001 (1,000) — —
— — 770,00( — — — 770,00(
— — 39,00( — — — 39,00(
— — 113,76( — — — 113,76(
— — 1,996,42 — — — 1,996,42



indemnification of

legal settlemer — — 830,00t — — — 830,00(
Net loss for the

fiscal year endec

March 31, 201: — — — — — (7,282,35) (7,282,35)
Balance, March 31,
2013 47.736,81 $ 47,737 $23,789,47 (1,000,000 $ (1,000 $ (9,646,30) $ 14,189,90

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktfirancial statements.
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NOTE 1— ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTIN5 POLICIES
Organization and Business

Scio Diamond Technology Corporation (referred teefreas the “Company”, “we”, “us” or “our”) was ingporated under the laws of
the State of Nevada as Krossbow Holding Corp. grié®eber 17, 2009. The original business plan ofdbmpany was focused on offsetting
carbon dioxide (“C02") emissions through the cretnd protection of forest-based carbon “sink§i& Tompany has since abandoned its
original business plan and restructured its busit@$ocus on man-made diamond technology developared commercialization.

On July 13, 2011, the Board of Directors of the @any resolved to authorize a 2-for-1 forward spliits issued and outstanding
common shares, whereby every one (1) old sharerofon stock was to be exchanged for two new studris® Company’s common stock,
effective on August 5, 2011. As a result, the issaed outstanding shares of common stock increfased3,200,000 prior to the forward split
to 6,400,000 following the forward split. The fomdasplit shares are payable upon surrender officates to the Company'transfer agent. T
accompanying financial statements and notes giveaetive effect to the forward split for all ped®presented.

Prior to October 1, 2012, the Company was a dewedop stage company. Developmental activities haased and planned principal
operations have commenced.

Going Concern

The Company has generated very little revenuetio alad consequently its operations are subjedt tisles inherent in the
establishment and commercial launch of a new besieaterprise.

These factors raise substantial doubt about thep@owis ability to continue as a going concern. Mpamaent has responded to these
circumstances by taking the following actions:

. Focused efforts on the construction and start-ugsaftate-of-the-art manufacturing facility in $loarolina in order to
begin production and generate revenues; and
. Ongoing solicitation of investment in the Companyhe form of a private placement of common shaesyred and

unsecured debt to accredited investors.

In the opinion of management, these actions wilkliicient to provide the Company with the liquidit needs to meet its obligations
and continue as a going concern. There can beswaxe, however, that the Company will succegsimplement these plans. The financial
statements do not include any adjustments thattrbigimecessary if the Company is unable to contasug going concern.

Accounting Basi

The financial statements of the Company have bespaped in accordance with accounting principletsegaly accepted in the United
States of America (“GAAP”).

The preparation of financial statements in confeymiith GAAP requires management to make estimatesassumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, regsrand expenses, and the disclosure of contingsatsaand liabilities. On an ongoing basis, th
Company evaluates its estimates, including thdsg¢e to revenue recognition, provision for doub#ftcounts, sales returns, provision for
inventory obsolescence, fair value of acquiredrgille assets, useful lives of intangible assetspoperty and equipment, employee stock
options, and contingencies and litigation, amorg. The Company generally bases its estimatégstorical experience and on various o
assumptions that are believed to be reasonable timeleircumstances, the results of which formlthsis for making judgments about the
carrying values of assets and liabilities thatreoereadily apparent from other sources. Actualam®recorded could differ materially from
those estimates

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying value of cash and cash equivaleatsounts payable and notes payable appebeirtheir fair value due to tt
short-term nature of these instruments.
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Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, thegamy considers highly liquid financial instrumeptschased with an original
maturity of three months or less when purchasdzbtoash equivalents. At March 31, 2013 and 20#2Company held no cash equivalents.

Basic and Diluted Net Loss per Shi

Net loss per share is presented under two forrbatsc net loss per common share, which is compugady the weighted average
number of common shares outstanding during th@g@eand diluted net loss per common share, whicbrisputed using the weighted average
number of common shares outstanding, and the weghterage dilutive potential common shares oudstgncomputed using the treasury
stock method. Currently, for all periods presentildited net loss per share is the same as baslosseper share as the inclusion of weighted
average shares of common stock issuable upon #reiss of options and warrants would be anti-diiti

The following table summarizes the number of seéi@srioutstanding at each of the periods presenteith were not included in the
calculation of diluted net loss per share as timelusion would be anti-dilutive:

March 31,
2013 2012

Common stock options and warrants 9,609,29! 370,01

Allowance for Doubtful Accoun

An allowance for uncollectible accounts receivablmaintained for estimated losses from custonfaitire to make payment on
accounts receivable due to the Company. Managedetetmines the estimate of the allowance for uactible accounts receivable by
considering a number of factors, including: (1xdvikal experience, (2) aging of accounts recewalnld (3) specific information obtained by
the Company on the financial condition and theentrcredit worthiness of its customers. The Commsg maintains a provision for
estimated returns and allowances based upon luat@xperience. The Company has determined thall@mance was not necessary at
March 31, 2012 or 2013.

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of average @ostarket. The carrying value of inventory is mwed and adjusted based upon slov

moving and obsolete items. Inventory costs includgerial, labor, and manufacturing overhead andiarermined by the “first-in, first-
out” (FIFO) method. The components of inventoees as follows:

March 31, March 31,
2013 2012

Raw materials and suppli $ 64,25 $ —
Work in proces: — —
Finished good 474,691 2,50z
538,94 2,502

Inventory reserve — —
$ 538,94¢ $ 2,502

Property, Plant and Equipme

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment isaa@traight line basis beginning at the time fileced in service, based on the
following estimated useful lives:

Years
Machinery and equipment 3-15
Furniture and fixture 3-10
Engineering equipmel 5-12
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Leasehold improvements are depreciated over tser@s$ the remaining term of the lease or thedffthe asset (generally three to
seven years).

Expenditures for major renewals and bettermentsetkignd the useful lives of property and equipnagatcapitalized. Expenditures
for maintenance and repairs are charged to exmeseurred. Manufacturing equipment was placea setvice beginning July 1, 2012.

Intangible Asset

Intangible assets, such as acquired in-procesandsand development costs, are considered todrairaefinite useful life until such
time as they are put into service at which time/tél be amortized on a straight-line basis oves shorter of their economic or legal useful
life. Management evaluates indefinite life intarigibssets for impairment on an annual basis arahdnterim basis if events or changes in
circumstances between annual impairment testsatalibat the asset might be impaired. The ongomtuation for impairment of its indefini
life intangible assets requires significant managetnestimates and judgment. Management reviewnitiefife intangible assets for
impairment whenever events or changes in circurnstaimdicate that the carrying amount of an assgtmot be recoverable. There were no
impairment charges during the years ended MarcR@13 or 2012. During the year ended March 31, 20teéhgible assets in the amount of
$7,534,063 were assigned to specific patents ansidered placed in service due to their inherehirean the Company’s manufacturing
process. These patents are being amortized oveni@dpanging from 6.75 years to 15.67 years.

Income Taxe

Income taxes are accounted for under the assdiadnility method. Deferred income taxes reflect the consequences on future year:
of differences between the tax bases of assetBadnilities and their financial reporting amount&aluation allowances are provided against
deferred tax assets when it is more likely thanthat an asset will not be realized in accordanitie Accounting Standards Codification
(“ASC") 740, Accounting for Income Taxes

Management has evaluated the potential impactdawating for uncertainties in income taxes anddesrmined that it has no
significant uncertain income tax positions as ofréha31, 2012 or 2013. Income tax returns subjecevtiew by taxing authorities include
March 31, 2010, 2011, 2012 and 2013.

Stock-based Compensation

Stock-based compensation for the value of stociopts estimated on the date of the grant usiad@@lack-Scholes option-pricing
model. The Black-Scholes model takes into accauptied volatility in the price of the Company’s skp the risk-free interest rate, the
estimated life of the equity-based award, the olpsnarket price of the Company’s stock on the gdam¢ and the exercise price. The estimate
utilized in the Black-Scholes calculation involvénérent uncertainties and the application of mamage judgment.

Concentration of Credit Risk

During the year ended March 31, 2013 the Compagsived a significant amount of its total revenudh wwo customers. One
customer accounted for 84% of total revenues ferGbmpany and purchased substantially all of thag@2my’s production output. The second
customer purchased a substantial portion of thegamryis by-product inventory and accounted for 1f%tal revenues for the Company and
94% of the Company’s accounts receivable at Mafg2813. No such concentration existed as of M&dgH2012 as the Company was not in
operational status as of that time.
Fair Value Measuremel

Fair value is defined as the price that would lmeireed to sell an asset or paid to transfer alligilfain exit price) in the principal or
most advantageous market for the asset or lialilign orderly transaction between market partitipan the measurement date. The fair v
hierarchy prescribed by the accounting literatunetains three levels as follows:

Level 1— Quoted prices in active markets for idesitassets or liabilities.
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Level 2— Observable inputs other than Level 1 wisech as quoted prices for similar assets ofliliesi quoted prices in markets
that are not active; or other inputs that are olz®e or can be corroborated by observable maket fdr substantially the full term of the
assets or liabilities.

Level 3— Unobservable inputs that are supportetlittyy or no market activity and that are signifitdo the fair value of the assets or
liabilities. Level 3 assets and liabilities inclufileancial instruments whose value is determinadgipricing models, discounted cash flow
methodologies, or similar techniques, as well agiments for which the determination of fair vataquires significant management judgmen
or estimation.

In addition, GAAP requires the Company to discltieefair value for financial assets on both a rengrand non-recurring basis. On
August 31, 2011, the Company issued to certaireatiand former stockholders of Apollo Diamond I(f&DI") that were at that time
accredited investors subscription rights value$l14t, 040,000 for the purchase of ADI assets disdlags®&lote 2 measured at fair value on a
nonrecurring basis. The fair value of the ADI sulgon rights was determined based on an appraibadh used the Black-Scholes model
whose assumptions were considered by managembatad.evel 3 input. During June 2012, the Compasyed to certain current and former
stockholders of Apollo Diamond Gemstone Corporaff@éDGC") that are accredited investors subscripti@hts valued at $770,000 for the
purchase of ADGC assets disclosed in Note 2 medsuriir value on a nonrecurring basis. The falug of the ADGC subscription rights v
determined using the Black-Scholes model whosengssons were considered by management to be a [3ewglut.

Revenue Recognitic

We recognize revenue when persuasive evidence afrangement exists, delivery of products has ageduythe sales price is fixed or
determinable, and collectability is reasonably sesduFor our Company, this generally means thatemegnize revenue when we or our
fabrication vendor has shipped finished produt¢h&écustomer. Our sales terms do not allow foghtmf return except for matters related to
any manufacturing defects on our part.

Recent Accounting Pronounceme

In September 2011, the Financial Accounting StasslBoard (“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards UpdafSU”) 2011-08,
Guidance on Testing Goodwill for Impairment. ASUL2008 gives entities testing goodwill for impairméme option of performing a
gualitative assessment before calculating thevidire of a reporting unit in Step 1 of the goodwipairment test. If entities determine, on the
basis of qualitative factors, that the fair vald@ @eporting unit is more likely than not lessrttthe carrying amount, the two-step impairment
test would be required. Otherwise, further testirogild not be needed. ASU 2011-08 is effective feedl and interim reporting periods within
those years beginning after December 15, 2011 at@ibetion of this accounting standard did not haweaterial effect on the Company’s
financial statements.

In July 2012 the FASB issued ASU No. 2012-02, Testhdefinite-Lived Intangible Assets for Impairntéthe revised standard). The
revised standard is intended to reduce the costamplexity of testing indefinite-lived intangibéssets other than goodwill for impairment. It
allows companies to perform a “qualitative” assemsito determine whether further impairment testihindefinite-lived intangible assets is
necessary, similar in approach to the goodwill impant test. The revised standard is effectiveafamual and interim impairment tests
performed for fiscal years beginning after Septemitse 2012. Early adoption is permitted. The Conypadopted this new standard in the fi
year ended March 31, 2013 and the adoption dithaet a significant impact on its financial statetae

There are currently no other accounting standdnaishtave been issued but not yet adopted by thep@ayrthat will have a significant
impact on the Company’s financial position, resofteperations or cash flows upon adoption.

NOTE 2— ASSET PURCHASES

The Company purchased certain assets from ADI aqquéiu31, 2011, consisting primarily of diamond girmgvmachines and certain
intellectual property related thereto. The purcharéee consisted of an aggregate of $2,000,000cionabination of cash and a promissory note
bearing interest at 4.00% annually, plus the susen rights for certain current and former stogkters of ADI qualifying as accredited
investors to acquire approximately 16 million sisas&é common stock of the Company for $0.01 pereskitue “ADI Offering”). The Company
has
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estimated the fair value of these ADI subscriptights to acquire shares of common stock of the @ for $0.01 per share to be $0.69 per
right. At the date of the transaction, the fairueabf the subscription rights was $11,040,000,taigdamount was credited to additional paid-in
capital. The fair value of the ADI subscriptionhitg was determined using the Black-Scholes modél the following assumptions: estimated
volatility of 100%, risk free interest rate of 0.1%nd an expected life of 1 year. The promissote frmm this asset purchase was settled in ful
in December 2012.

The following table reflects our purchase priceedltion of the assets at the time of acquisition:

Machinery and equipme! $ 943,68!
Reactors 2,311,81
In-process research and development 9,784,49
Total $ 13,040,00

The Company utilized a third-party valuation ast jpdiits determination of the fair value of the etssacquired on the date of
acquisition. The final amounts allocated to the AB$ets acquired are based upon the results ofghettion appraisal.

On June 5, 2012, the Company acquired certainecdsisets of ADGC (the “ADGC Asset Purchase”), aiimgj primarily of lab-
created diamond gemstone-related know-how, invgngord various intellectual property, in exchange®100,000 in cash and the right for
certain current and former stockholders of ADGClifiyiag as accredited investors to acquire up tpragimately 1 million shares of common
stock of the Company for $0.01 per share (the “ADG#ring”) with the intent that the ADI Offeringebconducted substantially concurrently
with the ADGC Offering (collectively, the “ADI/ADGGtockholder Offering”). The Company paid the $D00, cash portion of the ADGC
Asset Purchase during the month of December 202 ADI/ADGC Stockholder Offering began in June aras completed in March 2013.

At the date of the transaction, the Company estthtte fair value of such subscription rights ta&bber9 per right and the aggregate fair value
of such subscription rights was $790,000. Thisamaevas credited to additional paid-in capital. Taie value of such rights to acquire shares
of common stock of the Company was determined usiadlack-Scholes model. Subsequent to the dateedfansaction, the Company
obtained a third-party valuation to support the Yaiue of the assets acquired. This valuationrdgéted a slightly lower value of $770,000 for
the subscription rights and adjusted the purchése pllocation between inventory and in-procesgeaech and development. Adjustments
were made in the March 31, 2013 financial statemtmteflect this modification of final purchasegerand asset allocation. The final amount:
allocated to the ADGC assets acquired are basenl thyearesults of that valuation appraisal and titlewing table reflects our final purchase
price allocation of the assets:

Inventory $ 269,00(
In-process research and development 601,00(
Total $ 870,00(

The ADI/ADGC Stockholder Offering was completedMiarch 2013 and resulted in the issuance of an ggtgeof 16,766,773 shares
of the Company’s common stock.

NOTE 3— INTANGIBLE ASSETS

During the year ended March 31, 2013, the Compaajuated its patent portfolio and allocated $7,6838,0f the previously acquired
in-process research and development to specific gateaitare being used by the Company for its matwfag operations. These patents v
considered in service by the Company during the sed the values assigned are being amortizedstraight-line basis over the remaining
effective lives of the patents.

Intangible assets consist of the following:

March 31, March 31,
Life 2013 2012
Patents, gros 6.75—-15.67 $ 7,534,06. $ —
In-process research and developn Indefinite 2,851,43! 9,784,49
10,385,49 9,784,49
Accumulated amortizatio 369,84 —
Net intangible asse $ 10,01565 $  9,784,49
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Total amortization expense during the year endirgdid 31, 2013 was $369,847. There was no amodizatipense for the year
ended March 31, 2012.

Total annual amortization expense of finite livathngible assets is estimated to be as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending

March 31, 201¢ $ 739,69
March 31, 201! 739,69
March 31, 201¢ 739,69:
March 31, 201" 739,69:¢
March 31, 201¢ 739,69:
Thereaftel $ 3,465,741

NOTE 4— NOTES PAYABLE

In conjunction with the purchase of certain asfretss ADI on August 31, 2011, the Company enteréd ampromissory note bearing

interest at 4.00% annually and which was due agdfga in full on September 1, 2012. As of March 2112, $125,000 of the promissory
note to ADI remained unpaid. The promissory noés waid in full during the fiscal year ended Magdh 2013.

NOTE 5— CAPITAL STOCK

The authorized capital of the Company is 75,000888@mon shares with a par value of $ 0.001 pereshar

During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2012 the @amy had the following issuances of capital stock:

On August 5, 2011, 3,200,000 shares were issua®ifor-1 forward split from Krossbow Holding Cogiockholders.

As part of a private placement, 2,517,570 sharee vgsued at a price of $0.70 per share for tatsh@roceeds, net of fees,
of $1,679,064.

13,000,000 shares were issued at a market valce pfi$0.02 per share to purchase the name “Seim@id Technology
Corporation” (the “Scio Name”) for a total purchgsée of $260,000. The Company purchased the iguice from a
privately-held Nevada corporation named Scio Diathdachnology Corporation (“Private Scio”). The Gmany and Private
Scio are entities under common control. ASC 80886 states that when accounting for a transfer aftassetween entitie
under common control, the entity that receivesaeet shall initially measure the recognized aststse carrying amount in
the accounts of the transferring entity at the dathe transfer. As the Scio Name acquired hadamgying value, the value
of the shares given to purchase the Scio namengeoeded as a deemed distribution so that the atiogubasis of the Scio
name remained at zero.

The Company issued 16 million subscription righigan exercise price of $0.01 per share to cedairent and former
stockholders of ADI as part of the ADI asset pusgsadiscussed in Note 2.

During the three months ended December 31, 20&1Ctmpany issued 3,908,000 shares at a price 00 $@r share for
total cash proceeds, net of fees, of $2,672,059.

In January 2012, the Company issued 1,875,500 sloammmon stock at a price of $0.70 for totalaaeth proceeds of
$94,499.

During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2013 the @amy had the following issuances of capital stock:

The Company issued 1 million subscription rightthvein exercise price of $0.01 per share to cedairent and former
stockholders of ADGC as part of the ADGC asset Ipases discussed in Note 2.
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. The Company issued 4,891,250 units, each consisfinge share of common stock and one warranh®purchase of a
share of common stock at a strike price of $1.6®uit price of $0.80 for total net cash proceads3,913,000.

. The Company issued 16,766,773 shares under theaAADGC subscription rights.

. The Company issued 46,250 shares of common stdiuinf cash payments to certain vendors.

. The Company issued 19,469 shares upon exercistafrc outstanding warrants;

The Company had 47,736,812 shares of common séeakd and outstanding as of March 31, 2013 of whi@f0,000 were held in
treasury. This total does not include the 1,000,@@emnity shares authorized for issuance by amar® of Directors on March 25, 2013.

As of March 31, 2013, the Company had 5,516,795amés outstanding. 425,545 warrants have exepcises of $.70 per share and
expire in 2016 and 2017. The warrants were isyetie Company as compensation for consulting wadcement agent services, and in
exchange for cash discounts on facility rent amdvatued at $0.52 per warrant using the Black-Sxhoption pricing model. The Company
had 4,891,250 of warrants outstanding with exesgisees of $1.60 that expire in 2015. These wésrevere issued as part of the units issuec
during the year ended March 31, 2013. In additituming the fiscal year ended March 31, 2013, tben@any issued 200,000 warrants which
remain outstanding with an exercise price of $1t8@ expire in 2018 in exchange for consulting m&wand are valued at $0.57 per warrant
using the Black-Scholes option pricing model.

NOTE 6— SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION

The Company currently has one equity-based compiengalan under which stock-based compensation dswaain be granted to
directors, officers, employees and consultantsigiog bona fide services to or for the Companyhe Tompany’s 2012 Share Incentive Plan
was adopted on May 7, 2012 (the “2012 Share Ineeftlan” or “Plan”) and allows the Company to isspeto 5,000,000 share of its common
stock pursuant to awards granted under the 2012 $heentive Plan. The Plan permits the grantinstack options, stock appreciation rights,
restricted or unrestricted stock awards, phantatksiperformance awards, other stdidsed awards, or any combination of the foregoifiae
only awards that have been issued under the Péastack options. Because the Plan has not bgeovaga by our shareholders, all such stocl
option awards are non-qualified stock options. fidllewing sets forth the options to purchase skafethe Company’s stock issued and
outstanding as of March 31, 2013:

Weighteo- Weighted-Average
Average Exercise Remaining

Options Shares Price Contractual Term
Options Outstanding March 31, 20 — 8 —
Grantec 11,417,50 0.8t
Exercisec — —
Expired/cancelle 7,325,001 0.84
Options Outstanding March 31, 20 4,092,500 $ 0.87 2.54
Exercisable at March 31, 20 162633 $ 0.81 2.2¢

The intrinsic value of options outstanding and pfi@ns exercisable at March 31, 2013 was $299,900$4.76,109, respectively.

A summary of the status of non-vested shares Baoth 31, 2013 and changes during the year endedH\v&d, 2013 is presented
below.

Weighted Average

Grant-Date
Non-vested Share: Shares Fair Value
Non-vested at March 31, 20: — $ —
Grantec 11,417,50 0.5¢
Vested (3,626,22) 0.5t
Expired/cancelled: nc-vested (5,325,001 0.5¢
Non-vested at March 31, 20: __ 2466271 g 0.6E
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. On May 7, 2012 the Company granted to five key rgangent personnel options to purchase a total ®04000 share of the
Company’s stock at $0.70 per share. 1,310,00Be0bptions vested immediately on the date of gaadtthe remaining
options were to be earned based upon specific neamaxgt objectives. The Black-Scholes model assamgtinade to
calculate the grant date fair value of the optiaresas follows: expected dividend yield- 0.0%k-fige interest rate- 0.79%,
expected life in years- 3, and expected volatdityl 00%.

. On July 10, 2012, the Company granted to a nontgxecemployee options to purchase a total of 7 &tidres of the
Company'’s stock at $0.80 per share. 1,500 of tbpiens vested immediately and the remainder ieett based upon
specific management objectives. The Black-Scholedel assumptions made to calculate the grantfdmtealue of the
options are as follows: expected dividend yiel®90, risk-free interest rate- 0.63%, expectedilifgears- 3, and expected
volatility of 100%.

. On August 3, 2012, the Company granted to threewtixe officers options to purchase a total of 0,000 shares of the
Company'’s stock at $0.80 per share. The optiolisrest upon the achievement of specific managerobjsctives. The
Black-Scholes model assumptions made to calculigtgrant date fair value of the options are ag¥at expected dividend
yield- 0.0%, risk-free interest rate- 0.67%, expddife in years- 3, and expected volatility of 00

. On November 30, 2012, the Company'’s former Chieddtkive Officer and former Chief Financial Offiaesigned from the
Company. Pursuant to agreements entered intoninemion with their respective resignations, arregate of 2,725,000
unvested and an aggregate of 1,400,000 vested gficns, for a total of 4,125,000 stock optionguiously granted to the
officers were forfeited. In addition, the Chiefdeutive Officer surrendered 1,000,000 shares ofnsomstock with $0.001
par value to the Company, which are held in treasur

. On December 5, 2012, the Company granted to Steph&elley, its then newly-appointed Chief Execeti®fficer, options
to purchase a total of 3,200,000 shares of the @ogip stock at $1.01 per share. On January 243,204 Kelley resigned
from the Company. No options granted to Mr. Kelheyd been exercised as of his date of resignaimhaccordingly
pursuant to his stock option award agreement,islstock options were forfeited on that date. Black-Scholes model
assumptions made to calculate the grant date dievof the options are as follows: expected dritlyield- 0%, risk-free
interest rate- 0.61%, expected life in years- Bl @xpected volatility of 100%.

. On December 14, 2012, the Company granted itstfaamr existing members of the Board of Directorgamst to purchase a
total of 250,000 shares of the Company’s stockoagpensation for serving on the Board during 20IBese options were
fully vested on the date granted. The Black-Schaoledel assumptions made to calculate the graetfdimtvalue of the
options are as follows: expected dividend yieldb, Gisk-free interest rate- 0.34%, expected lifgéars- 3, and expected
volatility of 100%.

. On February 2, 2013, the Company granted to Mrhisist McMahon, its newlgappointed Chief Executive Officer options
purchase a total of 1,500,000 shares of the Compatgck at $0.93 per share. Of the 1,500,000ksbptions, 234,375 stock
options vested immediately upon employment and5,62% stock options to vest upon the achievemespegific
management objectives including employment tereurmulative cash flow and cumulative revenue. Athefdate of grant,
management of the Company anticipated that theageeterm of the options granted to Mr. McMahon wica# three years,
and the Company reserved a pool of shares to bedagpon exercise of such options. Using the Bidkoles option pricin
model, management determined that the optionsdssné-ebruary 2, 2013 had a value of $0.60 pepomin the date of the
grant, and total compensation costs of $209,10% wemrognized for certain of these options as ofck&d, 2013.
Compensation expense for the remaining optionsheilimmediately recognized when management detesirat the
relevant objectives had become reasonably probatdecur.

The assumptions used and the calculated fair \aflttee February 2, 2013 options are as follows:

*  Expected dividend yiel 0.0(%
* Risk-free interest rat 0.4(%
»  Expected life in year 3.0C
»  Expected volatility 10€%
*  Weighted average calculated value of options gcb $ 0.6C
. On March 25, 2013 the Company granted to Mr. Jaraifohl, its newly-appointed Chief Financial Odficoptions to

purchase a total of 700,000 shares of the Compatgtk at $0.83 per share. Of the 700,000 stotikbmg 126,583 stock
options vested immediately upon employment and&73stock options to vest upon the achievemenpedific manageme
objectives including employment tenure, cumulatigsh flow and cumulative revenue. As of the dagrant, management
of the Company anticipated that the average tertheobptions granted to Mr. Pfohl would be threargeand the Company
reserved a pool of shares to be issued upon egaytsuch options. Using the Black-Scholes optincing model,
management determined that the options issued ooh\e8$, 2013 had a value of $0.53 per option ordtte of the grant,
and total compensation costs of $77,359 were razedror certain of these options
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as of March 31, 2013. Compensation expense foretimaining options will be immediately recognizedemhmanagement
determines that the relevant objectives had beaeasonably probable to occur.

The assumptions used and the calculated fair \@#ltlee March 25, 2013 options are as follows:

e Expected dividend yiel 0.0(%
*  Risk-free interest rat 0.3¢%
»  Expected life in year 3.0C
»  Expected volatility 10€%
*  Weighted average calculated value of options gcb $ 0.5¢

On March 25, 2013, the Board of Directors authatitee issuance of 50,000 warrants at an exercise pf $1.60 per share to
Theodorus Strous, a member of the Board, as corappendor Mr. Strous’ efforts in connection withetlCompany’s largest customer and not
as compensation in his capacity as a member @ddlaed. In addition, on March 25, 2013, the Boar®wectors authorized the issuance of
150,000 warrants at an exercise price of $1.6GIpare to an unaffiliated third party as compensdiio his efforts in connection with the
Company’s largest customer. All such warrants virltg vested at the time of grant and have fivangeuntil expiration. The Company
recognized $113,760 in expense as professionat@mslilting fees related to these warrant grantisarfiscal year ended March 31, 2013.

The assumptions used and the calculated fair \afltlee March 25, 2013 warrants are as follows:

e Expected dividend yiel 0.0(%
* Risk-free interest rat 0.8(%
e Expected life in year 5.0C
»  Expected volatility 10€%
e Weighted average calculated value of warrants g $ 0.57

Also on March 25, 2013, the Board of Directors autred the issuance of 500,000 shares of the Coyp'gpaommon stock to Edward
S. Adams, Chairman of the Board, and 500,000 sledr® Company’s common stock to Michael R. Momgteamember of the Board, to
indemnify Messrs. Adams and Monahan under appkckiy and the Company’s charter documents for st@fr€ompany common stock
transferred by them in May 2012 to certain indiatiuin settlement of a complaint filed by such widiials against Messrs. Adams and
Monahan, their respective spouses, the law firdaddd&ms Monahan LLP, Mr. Joseph Lancia (our formeskent and Chief Executive
Officer), the Company, and, as a nominal defend@itate Scio. The Company recognized $830,0Qf¥@essional and consulting fees
related to this authorization for indemnity. Ashdérch 31, 2013 these shares had not been issutit fompany.

For the years ended March 31, 2013 and 2012, tinep@ny recognized $1,996,426 and $0, respectivelgpmpensation cost for
options issued, and recorded related deferredsset &f $0 for all periods.

At March 31, 2013, unrecognized compensation @lated to non-vested awards was $1,265,827. TDisisis expected to be
recognized over a weighted average period of 26atsy The total fair value of shares vested dutiegyears ended March 31, 2013 and 2012
was $1,873,609 and $0, respectively.

NOTE 7— OTHER INCOME

During the year ended March 31, 2012, the Compeogived grants totaling $75,000 as incentive foatimg its production facilities
in Greenville, South Carolina. At March 31, 20ft#® Company had met all conditions with respethé&grants and accordingly has included
them in other income for the period ended March2®1,2. The Company recognized no other incoméhfoperiod ended March 31, 2013.
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NOTE 8— OPERATING LEASES

The Company leases office space at locations irsbludMassachusetts and Greenville, South Cardlinder the terms of the leases,
the Company is obligated to pay escalation reifitalsertain operating expenses and real estats.take Company’s lease in Hudson,
Massachusetts expires in January 2014 and the @ileeBouth Carolina lease expires in March 20T®e Company also leases electrical
equipment in its production facility in South Canal. The Company recognized $426,023 and $82,8%58e expense for the fiscal years
ending March 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. Mumn future rental payments under the leases arenauized as follows:

2014 $ 383,13
2015 347,85:
2016 361,66!
2017 224,411
2018 224,411
2019 and thereaftt $ 224,41:

NOTE 9— RELATED PARTIES

The Company incurred expenses of $106,229 and $289%r professional and consulting services predidy AdamsMonahan, LL
a firm in which our Board members, Edward S. Adamd Michael R. Monahan, are partners, for the yeaded March 31, 2013 and 2012,
respectively.

On August 5, 2011, the Company executed the Scset¥urchase Agreement with Private Scio. Undetaitimes of the Scio Asset
Purchase Agreement, the Company purchased the ‘tf&meeDiamond Technology Corporation” and acquiogier rights from Private Scio
for 13,000,000 newly issued shares of common stbthe Company. Our directors Edward S. Adams aighs€l R. Monahan were directors
of Private Scio and Joseph D. Lancia, our formeefdaxecutive Officer, was an officer of Privatei@and they owned 31.5%, 31.5% and
15.4%, respectively, of Private Scio. At the tirhattthe Scio Asset Purchase Agreement was exeddted\dams and Mr. Monahan had
control of the Company. Mr. Adams and Mr. Monahaoheacquired, directly or indirectly, 4,100,000r&isa0f our common stock pursuant to
the Scio Asset Purchase Agreement, and Mr. Lamgjaieed 2,000,000 shares pursuant to the Scio Aagehase Agreement.

The Company purchased certain assets from ADI quéiu31, 2011, consisting primarily of diamond girmyvmachines and
intellectual property related thereto. The purchasee consisted of an aggregate of $2,000,000cionabination of cash and a promissory note
bearing interest at 4.00% annually and due and@wiriull on September 1, 2012, plus the rightdertain current and former stockholders of
ADI to acquire approximately 16 million shares ofiamon stock of the Company for $0.01 per shares&hights were valued at $11,040,000
in total using the Black-Scholes model. Both Mr.afxts, in an executive role, and Mr. Monahan preWossrved in various capacities with
ADI through early 2011.

On June 5, 2012, the Company acquired substantithlbf the assets of ADGC, consisting primarilylab-created diamond gemstone-
related know-how, inventory, and various intellettproperty, in exchange for $100,000 in cash &edpportunity for certain current and
former stockholders of ADGC qualifying as accredlitevestors to acquire up to approximately 1 millghares of common stock of the
Company for $0.01 per share. These rights weresdadts $770,000 based on an independent third-pppsaisal. Mr. Adams and Mr.
Monahan served in various capacities with ADGC tlgioearly 2011.

Robert C. Linares was elected to the Board of Dinscin January 2013. Dr. Linares is the fathelaim of Edward S. Adams, the
Chairman of our Board of Directors. The ADI/ADG8&kholder Offering was completed in March 2013 egslilted in the issuance of an
aggregate of 16,766,773 shares of the Company’snconstock.

On January 29, 2013, the Board of Directors appt@rearrangement under which the Company and tveaoboard members,
Edward S. Adams and Michael R. Monahan, have jognigaged outside counsel to pursue a complaimstgaformer Company service
provider. Claims being considered include botlinctaon behalf of the Company and claims on betfall@ssrs. Adams and Monahan
individually. The terms of the engagement includeagreement for the Company, on the one hand, assid. Adams and Monahan, on the
other, to split the costs of pursuing this mated to split any recoveries obtained from the serprovider. In the event the complaint is
unsuccessful, the Board has agreed that the Compilngdemnify Messrs. Adams and Monahan for abmies paid by them in pursuit of the
complaint. The Company recognized $100,000 in es@eluring the fiscal year ending March 31, 201@fect fees paid to the outside
counsel to pursue this complaint, of which $50,8@8 paid to the outside counsel by the Company$afd00 was accrued by the Company
as a potential liability for the indemnificatiomhe Company is unable to determine the aggregats dawill ultimately incur or the aggregate
recoveries it will ultimately obtain, if any.

On March 6, 2013, the Board of Directors retained directors, Mr. Michael Monahan and Mr. Theo 8#;0t0 provide consulting
services for the Company at a total cost of $114&@D$4,000 respectively, per month. The Compeaoggnized $15,000 in consulting
expense for these services during the fiscal yeded March 31, 2013.

On May 7, 2012, Kristoffer Mack and Paul Rapellvargholders of Loblolly, Inc. (f/k/a Scio Diamonddhnology Corporation)
(referred to in this report as Private Scio), datiely and on behalf of nominal defendant Privéaté (collectively, the “Plaintiffs”) filed a
claim in the U.S. District Court for the District blinnesota against Edward S. Adams (our Chairm@ejise L. Adams, Michael R. Monahan
(our director), Julie C. Monahan, the law firm odl@ns Monahan LLP (“AMLLP"),Joseph Lancia (our former Chief Executive Officamyl th
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Company (collectively, the “Defendants”) and Prev&tcio, as a Nominal Defendant. The complaingatie(i) against Messrs. Adams,
Monahan and Lancia, AMLLP and the Company, violagiof Sections 10(b) and 20(a) of the ExchangeaAdtRule 10b-5 thereunder and
violation of Minnesota Statutes §§ 80A.68 and/U6, (ii) against Messrs. Adams, Monahan and Laacd AMLLP, breach of fiduciary du
(iii) against Messrs. Adams and Monahan and AMLIR|practice, (iv) against all Defendants, rescisgibthe transactions set forth in the
Scio Asset Purchase Agreement and (v) against Adslmsahan and AMLLP, usurpation of a corporate opputy. Each allegation relates
to, among other things, certain actions taken imegtion with the asset purchase contemplatedeistio Asset Purchase Agreement, the
ADGC Asset Purchase, and the ADI/ADGC Stockholdiexihg.

The Plaintiffs sought direct and consequential dggsan an amount to be established through pramifadtplus pre-judgment and
post-judgment interest and reasonable attornegs’ &d costs, rescission of the alleged impropocate transactions, a constructive trust in
favor of Private Scio based on the alleged usigpatf corporate opportunities, and other apprapréxuitable and other relief. On May 11,
2012, four days after the complaint was filed, faintiffs voluntarily dismissed the complaint withejudice. This voluntarily dismissal was
the result of a settlement agreement whereby Me&dgems and Monahan transferred to the Plaintif©0,000 shares of common stock of the
Company held by them, and Mr. Adams transferragfiédPlaintiffs a cash payment in the amount of 390,

On March 25, 2013, the Board of Directors reviewrezlfacts of the litigation described above andseéiiement, and agreed to accep
liability for the settlement and authorized thddwling to indemnify Messrs. Adams and Monahan, memlof the Board, under applicable law
and the Company’s charter documents for expensesrad and shares of Company common stock andtiastferred by them in settlement
of the litigation: (i) the issuance of 500,000 r&sa0f the Compang’common stock to each of Messrs. Adams and Monéiiatihe payment ¢
$90,000 to Mr. Adams for amounts paid by him tdle¢he complaint, and (iii) any other amounts argdenses paid in connection with
stockholder litigation matters involving certainrent and former stockholders of the Company. mthe fiscal year ended March 31, 2013,
the Company recognized $946,555 in expense refatdek foregoing indemnification. Of this amoub830,000 represents non-cash expense
related to the value of the Company common stodletssued

Also on March 25, 2013, the Board of Directors autted the issuance of a warrant to purchase 5Gbafes of our common stock at
an exercise price of $1.60 per share to Theoddnesi§ a member of the Board, as compensation foSkous’ efforts in connection with the
Company’s largest customer and not as compensatiois capacity as a member of the Board. Thegeawts were fully vested at the time of
grant and the Company recognized $28,440 in expetesed to these warrants in the fiscal year emdacth 31, 2013.

NOTE 10— INCOME TAXES
There was no current or deferred tax expense (hefafthe years ended March 31, 2013 and 2012.

The deferred tax asset (liability) at March 31, 2@hd 2012 consists of the following types of terappdifferences and their related
tax effects:

At March 31, At March 31,
2013 2012
Accrued expense $ 187,64( $ 27,65¢
Property and equipme (112,567 (3,32)
Capitalized startup/acquisition co: 633,71: 679,69
Federal and state net operating loss «forward 2,122,40: 15,30:
Trade namt 92,57 97,88¢
Intangible asset (55,68Y) —
Nonqualified Option: 59,02¢ 72,44
Valuation allowanct (2,927,10) (889,66!)
Total $ — 3 —

The Company recorded a valuation allowance agaseet deferred tax asset at March 31, 2013 anaiiadl, 2012, as the Company
believes that it is more likely than not that thgset will not be realized.
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At March 31, 2013 At March 31, 2012
Amount % Amount %

Tax at statutory federal income tax rate $ (2,476,00) (34.0% $ (702,74 (34.0%
Increase (decrease) resulting frc

State income tax expen — 0.C% (69,190 (3.9%

Change in valuation allowan: 1,846,20. 25.2% 779,17 37.1%

Incentive stock option 625,23! 8.€% — 0.C%

Other, net 4,56 0.1% (7,24)) (0.4)%

Total $ — 0.C% $ — 0.C%

The Company had federal and state net operatirsgcsy-forwards (“carry-forward”) of $5,646,000c6$41,000 at March 31, 2013
and 2012 respectively. These carry-forwards stegkpire in the year 2031.

NOTE 11— LITIGATION

In the course of ordinary business operationsCihimpany at times may be subject to, or involveaé@ntain legal disputes or actions
arising out of claims from third parties or by ols made on behalf of the Company itself. As of éie81, 2013 there were no outstanding
claims by the Company or against the Company.

NOTE 12— SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On May 13, 2013, Mr. Bernard McPheely a memberuwfRoard of Directors tendered his resignation fitbm Board. As of June 17,
2013, no one has been appointed to replace Mr. Klih

On June 4, 2013 the Company engaged Arque Cagifal,IMaxwell Simon, Inc., and Stonegate Securities, to assist the Compa
in future capital raising activities. The Compagreed to issue 165,000, 162,500 and 200,000 sbhitscommon stock to each of Arque
Capital LTD., Maxwell Simon, Inc. and Stonegate \8#ies Inc. respectively as partial compensatmmntifiese engagements.

On June 21, 2013, the Company entered into a Igeement with Platinum Capital Partners, LP prawgdior a $1 million secured
revolving line of credit that the Company may dramvto fund working capital and other corporate pggs. On June 21, 2013, $910,000 was
drawn on the facility. The Company plans to uéilthese funds and amounts drawn in the futurertd fis ongoing operations. Borrowings
under the loan agreement accrue interest at thefdt8% per annum, payable monthly on or befoeddht calendar day of each month, and a
service charge of 3% applies to late payments. |Gére agreement also provides for payment of anraotodation fee of up to 10% of the
commitment amount as provided in the loan agreenagct payment of a monthly collateral monitoring & $2,000 per month for the first six
months and $1,000 per month for the last six moaflike term of the loan agreement. The creditifaenatures on June 20, 2014. The loan
agreement contains a number of restrictions oiCtirapany’s business, including restrictions on liflity to merge, sell assets, create or incur
liens on assets, make distributions to its shadehisland sell, purchase or lease real or persoopéy or other assets or equipment. The loa
agreement also contains affirmative covenants aedts of default. The Company may prepay borrogiwghout premium or penalty upon
notice to Platinum as provided in the loan agreegmemder a security agreement entered into in eotion with the loan agreement, the
Company granted Platinum a first priority secunitierest in the Company’s inventory, equipmentoacts and other rights to payments and
intangibles as security for the loan.

END NOTES TO FINANCIALS
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTA NTS AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE.
None.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES.

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedur

Disclosure controls and procedures refer to comtmold other procedures designed to ensure thatiafmn required to be disclosed
by the Company in the reports that it files or sitbrander the Exchange Act is recorded, processedmarized and reported within the time
periods specified in the SEC rules and forms, aatltuch information is accumulated and communicetehe Company’s management,
including its Chief Executive Officer and Chief Rimcial Officer, as appropriate, to allow timely &émns regarding required disclosure. As of
March 31, 2013, we carried an evaluation, undesthgervision and with the participation of our mgement, including our Chief Executive
Officer and Chief Financial Officer, of the effasthess of the design and operation of our disodosantrols and procedures as defined in
Exchange Act Rule 13a-15. We applied our judgmemihé process of reviewing these controls and pharess, which, by their nature, can
provide only reasonable assurance regarding ouraiarbjectives. Based upon that evaluation, oueCExecutive Officer and Chief Financ
Officer have concluded that our disclosure contand procedures were not effective as of Marci2813.

Managemen's Annual Report on Internal Control over FinanciaReporting

Management of the Company is responsible for dstdbf and maintaining adequate internal contr@rdinancial reporting as
defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) promuldateder the Exchange Act. The Company’s internatrobover financial reporting is a
process designed to provide reasonable assurageelig the reliability of financial reporting atite preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generallygiedeaccounting principles. The Compasniriternal control over financial reporting incls
those policies and procedures that (1) pertainéaraintenance of records that, in reasonablel dataurately and fairly reflect the transacti
and the dispositions of the assets of the Comp@)ygrovide reasonable assurance that transadi@necorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordanitie generally accepted accounting principles, drad teceipts and expenditures of the
Company are being made only in accordance withoaiztitions of the management and directors of the@any; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely deteafamauthorized acquisition, use, or dispositiothef Company’s assets that could have a
material effect on its financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or @etaisstatements. Therefore, even
those systems determined to be effective can peasidy reasonable assurance with respect to finhst@tement preparation and presentatior
Also, projections of any evaluation of effectivesés future periods are subject to the risk thatmmds may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of campé with the policies or procedures may detemorat

Management, including our Chief Executive OfficadaChief Financial Officer, conducted an assessrmgtite effectiveness of our
internal control over financial reporting as of Mar31, 2013 based on the criteria set forth iniernal Control— Integrated Framework
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidrise Treadway Commission. During that assessmesmhagement identified the
following material weaknesses and significant deficies in our internal control over financial rejireg, which are common in small
companies. These material weaknesses were idenifi@ur Chief Executive Officer and Chief Finan¢ficer following the end of the fisc
year covered by this repo

. Lack of a functioning audit committee due to a latlka majority of independent members and a lack wfajority of outside
directors on our board of directors, resultingnaffective oversight in the establishment and fiamitg of required internal
controls and procedures;

. Insufficient communication process in connectiothvgeriod end financial disclosure and reporting] a

. Lack of implementation of adequate written docuragah of our internal control policies and procezijrand
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. Due to our small size, limited segregation of dutiecertain areas of our financial reporting atfteoaccounting processes
and procedures.

A material weakness (within the meaning of PCAORBRIting Standard No. 5) is a deficiency, or a comalion of deficiencies, in
internal control over financial reporting, suchtttfgere is a reasonable possibility that a matemniaktatement of our annual or interim financial
statements will not be prevented or detected amely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficogn or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control over financial reporting thaté&s$ severe than a material weakness, yet impamtaoigh to merit attention by those responsibl
for oversight of our financial reporting.

During the period covered by this annual reporForm 10-K, we have not been able to remediate thtemal weaknesses identified
above. The effectiveness of efforts the Comparsyrhade to remediate the identified material weada@gebhave been limited by recent change
in the Company’s outside law firm and turnovertaf Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial ©fi positions. We have taken steps to
enhance and improve the design of our internalrobaver financial reporting, and we plan to takielitional steps during our fiscal year
ending March 31, 2014.

To further remediate such weaknesses, we hopepieinent the following changes during our fiscalryeading March 31, 2014:

. Adding one or more independent directors and dstablfy an audit committee;
. Implementation of documented control structure ratated procedures

This annual report does not include an attestaport of our independent registered public acdagrfirm regarding internal control
over financial reporting. Management's report wassubject to attestation by our independent reggst public accounting firm pursuant to an
exemption for non-accelerated filers set forth éctHn 989G of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reforrd @onsumer Protection Act.

Changes in Internal Controls

Other than described above, there were no significidanges in our internal controls over finanoéglorting that occurred during our
fiscal year ended March 31, 2013, that materidfigcied, or are reasonably likely to materiallyeatf our internal controls over financial
reporting.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION.

NONE
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PART Il

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS, AND CORPOR ATE GOVERNANCE.
Directors and Executive Officer

The following table sets forth the names and adesiodirectors and executive officers as of JuRe2D13:

Position with the

Name Age Company Since
Directors

Edward S. Adam 50 Chairman August 5, 201:
Michael R. Monahai 46 Director August 5, 201:
Theodorus Strou 62 Director December 21, 201
Robert C. Linare: 77 Director January 29, 201
Nor-Director Executive Officer

Michael W. McMahor 62 Chief Executive Office January 29, 201
Jonathan Pfot 46 Chief Financial Office March 4, 201:

Our bylaws provide that each director is to beteldat our annual meeting by the stockholders angesuntil his or her successor is
elected and qualified at the next annual meetintgss he or she resigns or is removed earlier Cdrepany has not held an annual meeting
each member of our Board was initially appointedsbie of the Board in existence immediately prhis appointment and has continued to
serve since that time. Directors serve until mik&r successor is duly elected and qualified,ntit he or she is earlier removed from office or
resigns.

Set forth below is certain information about ouediors and executive officers, including inforratregarding their business
experience for at least the past five years, timeasaof other publicly-held companies where theyemity serve as a director or served as a
director during the past five years, and additionfdrmation about the specific experience, quedifions, attributes, or skills that led to the
Board'’s conclusion that such person should sensediector for the Company.

Edward S. Adams and Michael R. Monahan make ugE#eeutive Committee of the Board of Directors.

EDWARD S. ADAMS . Edward S. Adams serves as non-executive chaiohtre board of directors of the Company. Mr. Adam
has nearly twenty years of experience in corpdiatace and founded and operated a FINRA and Sée@died boutique investment banking
firm from 20072012. Mr. Adams is a founding partner in the coap® law firm of Adams Monahan, LLP. Mr. Adamsdebn endowed che
in finance and law at the University of Minneso@LSchool and teaches courses at both the Law Sahdadn the graduate MBA program at
the Carlson School at the University of Minnesdths financial and legal experience qualifies hoysérve as a director.

MICHAEL R. MONAHAN . Michael R. Monahan is a non-executive directothef Company. Mr. Monahan has nearly ten years ¢
experience in corporate finance and founded andatgeta FINRA and SEC licensed boutique investrbanking firm from 2007-2012. Mr.
Monahan is a founding partner in the corporatefiaw of Adams Monahan, LLP with more than twentyay®of legal experience. His
financial and legal experience qualifies him toveesis a director.

THEODORUS STROUS. Theodorus Strous has served as a non-executeetali of the Company’s Board of Directors since
December 2011. Since March 2013 Mr. Strous hagdeas a Director of Rough to Ready ICC, a compelmgh structures alternative
investment vehicles, where he is responsible feestment strategy. Mr. Strous previously servesinfOctober 2010 until March 2013, as a
Senior Advisor to the Board of Diamond Asset AdwsAG, a company active in developing alternatimeestment structures, related to the
diamond
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industry, for institutional and other qualified &stors. Before that, Mr. Strous was a managingttireand a member of the executive
committee of the Antwerp Diamond Bank from 199912210, and from 2007 until May 2010 he was Chaimof the board of directors of
ADB Private Equity Ltd. Prior to that, Mr. Strotesn a diamond industry consultancy business. Asxacutive with ABN Amro Bank, Mr.
Strous held numerous management positions from ®&897. From 1985 to 1988, Mr. Strous was empidyeAmro Bank (Belgium) to
help salvage and restructure the bank’s diamorditquertfolio. Mr. Strous’ extensive diamond indyséxperience provides him with relevant
insight as a director.

ROBERT C. LINARES . Dr. Robert C. Linares was appointed to our BadrDirectors on January 29, 2013. Dr. Linares ®-
founder of the Diamond Technology and is the for@kairman and Chief Executive Officer of ADI and 0. Dr. Linares brings extensive
and diverse experience in the field of crystal gitotechnologies, having held positions with Belbbaatories, Perkin Elmer, M/A-COM (now
part of Tyco Electronics) and Spectrum Technoldgg,, a company he founded and was sold to NERC@Ackd Materials (NYSE: NER).
Dr. Linares holds a doctorate in chemical engimggsais well as a masterin business administration. His extensive kndgéeof the Diamon
Technology and crystal materials qualifies him alrector.

MICHAEL W. MCMAHON . Michael W. McMahon was appointed to serve asGhief Executive Officer on January 29, 2013.
Prior to that time, from May 2006 until Septemb8d.2, Mr. McMahon was the President of Unique Sohsj LLC, a company that provides
expertise in the control of engineering and comsipn projects, and from September of 2001 untiyM&2006 he served as a Senior Vice
President with Fluor Corporation, a leading engiimgeconstruction company. From August 1994 uitigust of 2001, Mr. McMahon was a
Senior Vice President with Jacobs Engineering Qaam, a provider of technical, professional andstruction services.

JONATHAN M. PFOHL . Jonathan M. Pfohl was appointed to serve a£bigf Financial Officer on March 4, 2013 and hadrbe
serving as Interim Chief Financial Officer of ther@pany since January 16, 2013. Before that timieddeserved since December 19, 2012 as
an independent contractor providing accountingrfoe and related services to the Company throwgbdmisulting company Rose Creek
Associates LLC. Mr. Pfohl has more than 25 yeafiancial and management experience. Befordrjgithe Company, he served as CEO o
Wireless Express LLC, one of Sprint’s largest irefegient distribution partners, from December 2009¢tober 2013. Prior to Wireless
Express, Mr. Pfohl was CFO of Main Street Broadbian@, a privately held wireless broadband servioevgmer, from June 2009 to Deceml
2009; CFO of Movida Cellular LLC, a mobile virtuaétwork provider, from April 2007 to March 2008;cha Vice President with AirGate
PCS, Inc., a provider of wireless personal commatioas services, from 1999 to 2005. Mr. Pfohl a&S-Management and an MBA-Finance
from the State University of New York at Buffalo.

Family Relationships. Dr. Linares was elected to the Board of DireziarJanuary 2013. Dr. Linares is the father-im-td Mr.
Adams. Other than that relationship, we curreddynot have any directors or executive officerswf Company who are related to each othel

Compliance with Section 16(a) of the Securities Bange Act of 1934

The rules of the SEC require our directors, exgeutifficers and holders of more than 10 percemunfcommon stock to file reports
of stock ownership and changes in ownership wighSEC. Based on the Section 16 reports filed bydoactors, executive officers and gre:
than 10 percent beneficial owners, and writtengsgntations of our directors and executive offic&esbelieve there were no late or inaccu
filings for transactions occurring during 2012 & 3, except as follows:

Number of Number of Late Number of Missed Number of Missed
Name Late Reports Transactions Reports Transactions
Edward S. Adam 2 2 0 0
Thomas P. Hartne: 1 1 0 0
Stephen D. Kelle! — — 2 2
Joseph Lanci 1 1 0 0
Robert Linare: 1 1 0 0
Michael W. McMahor 3 3 0 0
Bernard McPheel 1 1 0 0
Michael Monahat 2 2 0 0
Charles Nicholt 2 2 0 0
Jonathan Pfot 2 2 0 0
Theodorus Strou 2 3 0 0
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Code of Ethics and Business Conduct

We have adopted a Code of Ethics and Business Cotitht is applicable to our executive officerglirding our principal executive
officer and our principal financial officer. A comf this Code of Ethics and Business Conduct islavie without charge to shareholders upon
request to the Company at 411 University RidgetedDj Greenville, SC 29601. We will disclose antufe amendments to, or waivers from,
provisions of Code of Ethics on our website as giyras practicable, as and to the extent requireter and applicable stock market stand
and applicable SEC rules.

Audit Committee and Audit Committee Financial Expte

The Company does not have an audit committee audit committee financial expert (as defined imt¢07 of Regulation S-K)
serving on its Board of Directors. All current mesnd of the Board of Directors lack sufficient ficéal expertise for overseeing financial
reporting responsibilities. The Company has nobagpd an audit committee financial expert on itaBl because the Company has only
recently ceased to be a development stage compahlyas not yet added a substantial number of intkgre directors or any directors who
would qualify as an audit committee financial exfaes defined in Item 407 of Regulation S-K).

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION.

The following table shows the compensation awatdedarned by or paid to (i) each individual whoved as our chief executive
officer during the fiscal year ended March 31, 2@h8 (ii) two additional individuals for whom disslure would have been provided but for
the fact that the individual was not serving aggecutive officer as of March 31, 2013. We hackkrecutive officers serving as of March 31,
2013 other than our Chief Executive Officer and Ghref Financial Officer.

Summary Compensation Table

Fiscal Year
Ended Option All Other
Name and Principal Position March 31, Salary Bonus Awards(1) Compensation Total
Michael W. McMahon(2 2013 $ 163,46. $ — $ 1,538,300 $ — $ 1,701,76:
Chief Executive Office 2012 40,38¢ — — 33,35((3) 73,73¢
Stephen D. Kelley(4 2013 $ 42,30¢ — $ 2,400,000 $ 11,22°5) $ 2,453,53!
Former Chief Executive Office 2012 — — — — —
Joseph D. Lancia(¢ 2013 $ 212,19(7) $ 100,00 $ 1,535,000 $ 239,40((8) $ 2,086,59.
Former President and Chief
Executive Officel 2012 97,82(7) — — 190,66¢(9) 288,49!
Jonathan M. Pfot 2013 $ 10,76¢ $ — $ 448,000 $ 49,76410) $ 508,53:
Chief Financial Officel 2012 — — — — —
Charles G. Nichol 2013 $ 120,00( $ — $ 33933 $ 26,40i(11) $ 452,75.
Former Chief Financial Office 2012 25,96: — — — 25,96:

(1) In accordance with FASB ASC Topic 718, we choseBlaek-Scholes option pricing model to determine dlggregate grant date fair
value of the options set forth in this table. Ose wf this model should not be construed as anreed®nt of its accuracy at valuing
options. All stock option valuation models, inclngithe Black-Scholes model, require a predictioouathe future movement of the stock
price. Assumptions made to calculate the grant @a@tealue of the options reported are as followa) for options to purchase 3,000,000,
600,000 and 425,000 shares granted to Messrs.d,davicMahon and Nichols in May 2012: expected divid yield- 0%, riskree interes
rate- 0.79%, expected life in years- 3, and expketdatility of 100%; (b) for options to purchas@®000, 300,000 and 300,000 shares
granted to Messrs. Lancia, McMahon and Nichols iigést 2012: expected dividend yield- 0%, risk-firgerest rate- 0.67%, expected life
in years- 3, and expected volatility of 100%; @) dptions granted to Mr. Kelley: expected dividsseld- 0%, risk-free interest rate-
0.61%, expected life in years- 5, and expectedtiitfaof 100%; and (d) for options to purchasedQ300 and 700,000 shares granted to
Messrs. McMahon and Pfohl in February 2013 and K213, respectively: the assumptions set fortkeim 8, Note 9 (Share Based
Compensation) of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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(2) Mr. McMahon was appointed Chief Executive Officardanuary 29, 2013. During fiscal 2012 and fi&dl3 until such appointment,
Mr. McMahon served as our Chief Operating Officer.

(3) Includes $31,250, plus $2,100 in expenses, pdithique Solutions, LLC, of which Mr. McMahon is tpeesident, for consulting services
provided to the Company.

(4) Mr. Kelley was appointed Chief Executive Officerthé Company effective December 5, 2012, and heft@ompany on January 24,
2013. He is included in the table in accordandé applicable SEC rules. Because Mr. Kelley wasanmamed executive officer in fiscal
2012, his information is only provided for fiscdlZ3. Mr. Kelley’'s options were forfeited upon kisparture from the Company.

(5) Represents $11,227 for reimbursement of temponanglexpenses.

(6) Mr. Lancia left the Company on November 30, 201@ iarincluded in the table in accordance with SEIEg. Mr. Lancia’s options were
forfeited upon his departure from the Company.

(7) Includes $38,250 and $37,250 paid to Mr. Lancidieector and member of the executive committednefttoard of directors in
accordance with our director compensation policscdbed below for fiscal years 2013 and 2012 retspadly.

(8) Represents $239,400 of accrued severance payneemis.fLancia after his departure from the CompanyNovember 30, 2012

(9) Includes $187,500, plus $3,168 in expenses, pa8Ci, Ltd., of which Mr. Lancia is a consultantr fmnsulting services provided to the
Company.

(10) Includes $42,875, plus $6,889.31 in expenses,tparbse Creek Associates, LLC, of which Mr. Pfahihe president, for consulting
services provided to the Company.

(11) Mr. Nichols left the Company on November 30, 20h@ & included in the table in accordance with ECSules. He was paid $26,403 in
severance payments upon his departure from the @oynpNith the exception of 100,000 vested optiafisgf Mr. Nichols options were
forfeited upon his departure from the Company. &kercise date of the options retained by Mr. Nighieas extended until May 31, 2013
per his separation agreement with the Company. Cldmepany recognized and this table reflects $9ib&ption expense related to this
extension. These options expired unexercised on3ap013.

Narrative Disclosure to Summary Compensation Ta

Current Executive Officers

Michael W. McMahon  In connection with his appointment as our Chief &xive Officer effective on February 1, 2013, Mieha
W. McMahon entered into an employment letter wihthat supersedes the employment letter and chafrgmtrol agreement he had
previously entered into in connection with his eayphent as our Chief Operating Officer. Under hisrent employment letter, Mr. McMahon
is paid a base annual salary of $249,999, suljgobtential increases in connection with an ansakdry review by the Board of Directors. 1
Board of Directors, in its discretion, may award. MicMahon an annual bonus, which for fiscal 2013/f@ up to $100,000 for achieving
performance targets in our 2013 fiscal year pldloiong acceptance of such plan by the Board, amghérformance in excess of the plan the
Board may in its discretion award an additionalumoaf up to $50,000.

Under his employment letter Mr. McMahon is entitthating his term of employment to participate ihemhployee benefit plans and
programs available to similarly situated employgsebject to eligibility) that we have in force fraime to time, and is entitled to 20 days paid
vacation each calendar year. Mr. McMahon is alditled to options, granted on February 2, 2013 pams$ to our 2012 Share Incentive Plar
purchase a total of 1,500,000 shares of our constmrk at $0.93 per share (the closing price ofcmanmon stock on the date of grant),
vesting as follows: options to purchase 271,2%0ehvested immediately upon commencement of emr@ot; options to purchase 234,375
shares will vest upon the six-month anniversarkisfstart date; options to purchase 468,750 shétiegest when we achieve cumulative
revenues of $5 million (cumulative from Januar2@13); options to purchase 234,375 shares will wésn we achieve cumulative EBITDA
of $1 million (cumulative from January 1, 2013)dawptions to purchase 291,250 shares will vest wieeachieve cumulative EBITDA of $-
million
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(cumulative from January 1, 2013); subject to thens of the Plan. Mr. McMahon is subject to a pietpry information and inventions
agreement, and is an employee-at-will.

Mr. McMahon’s employment letter also provides tiidflr. McMahon's employment is terminated for argason other than for
“Cause” (as defined in the Employment Letter) arv¥oluntary resignation, in exchange for a genalalse by Mr. McMahon of us and our
officers, directors, employees, shareholders, giediis from liability, as well as one-year non-stdition and non-competition covenants from
Mr. McMahon, Mr. McMahon will be entitled to receivfor twelve months following his date of termioat (i) his base salary plus (ii) $2,000
per month to offset his potential medical, dental &fe insurance expenses and any premiums retjuinder COBRA comparable state law,
each paid in accordance with our payroll and bépeficies. In addition, we will (also in exchanfpe a general release by Mr. McMahon o
and our officers, directors, employees, sharehs|dsrd agents from liability) (1) extend the periagling which Mr. McMahon may exercise
his option with respect to any portion or all of kiested options to purchase shares to within svelenths following his date of separation,
(2) agree not to exercise any right of repurchAfiegranted options will automatically vest in tegent of a “change in control” of us, which
will be deemed to have occurred on the date ofradpsf any of the following: (i) a merger in whiete are not the surviving entity, (ii) a sale
of all of the outstanding shares of our stock iy &isale by us of substantially all of our aspets$n this case, the employment letter provides
that the options will be exercisable for five yetimsn the vesting date, subject to approval ofBbard, provided that no options may be
exercised after ten years following the date ohgraf Mr. McMahon’s employment is terminated f@ause” or due to his voluntary
resignation, he will not be entitled to severancbemefit payments.

In addition, under the employment letter, in thergvMr. McMahon’s employment is terminated, for aagson other than for
“Cause” or his voluntary resignation, during tharfanonth period before or the twelve-month peritidraa “change in control” that implies a
Company value of $50,000,000 or more, Mr. McMahdlhhve entitled to (i) a lump-sum cash payment égodhe sum of (a) 2.0 times his
annual base salary on the day before the changmnimnol or the day before termination, whichevehigher, plus (b) any base salary or bonus
earned or accrued through the date of terminatichret previously paid, and (ii) payment of $2,@@0® month for 24 months, which payments
are intended to offset potential medical, dental lffie insurance expenses. Mr. McMahon would aésoain subject to the terms of our
proprietary information and inventions agreement.

For purposes of Mr. McMahon'’s employment letteraliSe” means: (i) conviction of, or plea of guittyno contest by Mr. McMahon
of a felony or crime of dishonesty or moral turpiigs (i) Mr. McMahon’s commission, as determinedtbg Board, of an intentional act, or an
act of fraud, dishonesty, or theft affecting ousgerty, reputation, or business; (iii) Mr. McMahsnvillful and persistent neglect of the duties
and responsibilities of his position; (iv) failuoe refusal to carry out the lawful directives oétBoard; (v) diverting any of our or our affiliates
business opportunities for his own personal gaiiy;njisrepresentation of a significant fact on @émployment application and/or resume; (Vii)
misuse of alcohol or drugs affecting work perforegror (viii) death or disability that prevents hiram performing the essential functions of
his position with or without reasonable accommantati

On May 7, 2012, we entered into an option grantagrent with Mr. McMahon during his service as ohre€Operating Officer und:
which we granted to Mr. McMahon an option to pusshap to 300,000 shares of common stock at anisggudce of $0.70 per share, subject
to the achievement of certain performance milestdnyeus as set forth below, and an option to pwehg to 300,000 shares of common stocl
at an exercise price of $0.70 per share, vestimgediately. The incrementally vesting options ugsin the achievement of certain
performance milestones by us as set forth below:

Percentage o
Option Vested Performance Milestone

10% Delivery of ten machines to South Carolina prodat
20% Production of 1,000 gross car:

30% Achievement of or-month positive operating cash flc
40% Achievement of two consecutive quarters of profitgb
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On August 13, 2012, we entered into an option gagntement with Mr. McMahon during his service as©hief Operating Officer
under which we granted to Mr. McMahon an optioptiochase up to 300,000 shares of common stock exexgise price of $0.80 per share,
subject to the achievement of certain performanidestones by us as set forth below:

Percentage o
Option Vested Performance Milestone

20% Implementation of laser operation in South Cara
40% Achievement of $1M in EBITDA cumulative from July 2012
40% Achievement $5M in revenue cumulative from Jul2Q12

Jonathan M. Pfohl. Mr. Pfohl was appointed as our Chief Financidic@f on March 4, 2013. In connection with his ajmment,
Mr. Pfohl entered into an employment letter withumsler which he is paid a base annual salary o $20, subject to potential increases in
connection with an annual salary review by the Ba#rDirectors. The Board of Directors, in its distion, may award Mr. Pfohl an annual
bonus, which for fiscal 2013 may be up to $60,08Cakchieving performance targets in our 2013 figealr plan following acceptance of such
plan by the Board, and for performance in excesh®plan the Board may in its discretion awargdditional bonus of up to $30,000. Mr.
Pfohl is also entitled to a lump sum payment oD®8,per month for temporary living expenses in @vdke, South Carolina for a period of
twelve months, subject to extension upon the arofvour Chief Executive Officer.

Under his employment letter Mr. Pfohl is entitlagridg his term of employment to participate inehployee benefit plans and
programs available to similarly situated employgsebject to eligibility) that we have in force fraime to time, and is entitled to 20 days paid
vacation each calendar year. Mr. Pfohl is alsaledtto receive options, granted on March 25, 2800/3uant to our 2012 Share Incentive Plan,
to purchase a total of 700,000 shares of our comstumk at $0.83 per share (the closing price ofcounmon stock on the date of grant),
vesting as follows: options to purchase 126,5&3eshvested immediately upon commencement of emr@ot; options to purchase 109,375
shares will vest upon the six-month anniversariisfstart date; options to purchase 218,750 shwétiegest when we achieve cumulative
revenues of $5 million (cumulative from Januar®Q13); options to purchase 109,375 shares will wstn we achis cumulative EBITDA of
$1 million (cumulative from January 1, 2013); amtions to purchase 135,917 shares will vest wherCtbmpany achieves cumulative
EBITDA of $2.5 million (cumulative from January 2013); subject to the terms of the Plan. Mr. Pistdubject to a proprietary information
and inventions agreement, and is an employee-at-wil

Mr. Pfohl’s employment letter also provides thaliif. Pfohl's employment is terminated for any reasther than for “Cause” (as
defined below) or his voluntary resignation, in lkeaige for a general release by Mr. Pfohl of usandfficers, directors, employees,
shareholders, and agents from liability, we agi@et extend the period during which Mr. Pfohl mexercise his option with respect to any
portion or all of his vested options to purchasareh to within twelve months following his dateseparation, and (ii) not to exercise any right
of repurchase. All granted options will automatigakest in the event of a “change in control” of uich will be deemed to have occurred on
the date of closing of any of the following: (in@rger in which we are not the surviving entity,q sale of all of the outstanding shares of ou
stock or (iii) a sale by us of substantially allonfr assets)). In this case, the employment Ipti@rides that the options will be exercisable for
five years from the vesting date, subject to aparof the Board, provided that no options may bereised after ten years following the date
grant. If Mr. Pfohl's employment is terminated f@ause” or due to his voluntary resignation, h# mot be entitled to severance or benefit
payments.

In addition, under the employment letter, in ther@r. Pfohl’'s employment is terminated, for aegson other than for “Cause” or
his voluntary resignation, during the four-monthipe before or the twelve-month period after a ‘tofpa in control” that implies a Company
value of $50,000,000 or more, Mr. Pfohl will beidatl to (i) a lump-sum cash payment equal to tiva sf (a) 1.0 times his annual base salary
on the day before the change in control or theladgre termination, whichever is higher, plus (by 8ase salary or bonus earned or accrued
through the date of termination and not previogslid, and (ii) payment of $2,000 per month for 2dnihs, which payments are intended to
offset potential medical, dental and life insurapgpenses. Mr. Pfohl would also remain subjethéoterms of our proprietary information
inventions agreement.
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For purposes of Mr. Pfohl's employment letter, “Gaumeans: (i) conviction of, or plea of guiltyrme contest by Mr. Pfohl of a
felony or crime of dishonesty or moral turpitudié); Mr. Pfohl's commission, as determined by theaBth of an intentional act, or an act of
fraud, dishonesty, or theft affecting our propergputation, or business; (iii) Mr. Pfohl’'s willfaind persistent neglect of the duties and
responsibilities of his position; (iv) failure cefusal to carry out the lawful directives of theaBd; (v) diverting any of our or our affiliates’
business opportunities for his own personal gaiiy;njisrepresentation of a significant fact on @émployment application and/or resume; (Vii)
misuse of alcohol or drugs affecting work perforegror (viii) death or disability that prevents hiram performing the essential functions of
his position with or without reasonable accommantati

Former Executive Officers

Stephen D. KelleyMr. Kelley was appointed our Chief Executive Offieffective December 5, 2012, and voluntarily rasigj on
January 24, 2013. In connection with his appoiminie entered into an employment letter with uspant to which, among other things, he
was: (i) paid a base annual salary of $275,000estitp potential increase in connection with asateview by the Board, (i) entitled to
reimbursement of actual relocation expenses imaouat not to exceed $30,000, and (iii) entitledeaain severance and change of control
payments, none of which applied in connection &itfoluntary resignation by Mr. Kelley. Mr. Kelleyas also granted options to purchase
3,200,000 shares of common stock at an exercise pfi$1.01 per share, vesting as follows: optiorsurchase 600,000 shares of common
stock vested on December 5, 2012; options to psecBf0,000 shares of common stock were to vesteosix month anniversary of Mr.
Kelley's start date (if he remained employed); ops to purchase 1,000,000 shares were to vest thbeBompany achieved cumulative
revenue of $5 million (cumulative from January @12 forward); options to purchase 500,000 shareswimon stock were to vest when the
Company achieved cumulative EBITDA of $1 milliorufsulative from January 1, 2013 forward); and omitmpurchase 600,000 shares of
common stock were to will when the Company achiemgdulative EBITDA of $2.5 million (cumulative frodanuary 1, 2013 forward). No
options had been exercised as of Mr. KeBagsignation date and accordingly, under the terfhés stock option award agreement, all of tt
options were forfeited on his resignation date.

Joseph D. Lancia Mr. Lancia served as our President and ChietHee Officer, as well as a member of our BoardoEctors,
from August 5, 2011 until his resignation on NovemB0, 2012. On that date, Mr. Lancia entered am@greement of Separation, Waiver,
and Release (the “Lancia Release”). Pursuant tbdheia Release, we agreed to pay Mr. Lancia ¢ioss amount of $225,000 payable over
the twelve-month period commencing in December 2@b# (ii) the gross amount of $1,200 per monthefarh of the twelve consecutive
months commencing with December 2012. In additiamsuant to the Lancia Release: (a) Mr. Lanciasfieaned 1,000,000 shares of our
common stock held by him back to us; (ii) Mr. Langranted an irrevocable proxy to Mr. Adams, ouai€@han, to vote 500,000 shares of our
common stock retained by Mr. Lancia, which 500,808res are also subject to a restriction on traasie sale for one year following his
resignation; and (iii) options to purchase 3,500,8Bares of our common stock held by Mr. Lanciaeviemmediately canceled. In addition, for
a period of six months after the date of the LaRaéease, Mr. Lancia agreed to provide certairstt@m assistance as may be reasonably
needed and requested by us. The Lancia Releasel@sch mutual release provision and mutual noradkg@ment provision. Mr. Lancia
continues to be subject to the confidentiality, wompete and customer and employee non-solicitaéistiictions and other restrictive
covenants contained in his employment agreement.

The following describes the vesting terms for opgigranted to Mr. Lancia during fiscal 2013. OnyMa2012, the Company entered
into a qualified stock option grant agreement wWith Lancia under which he was granted options texipase shares of our common stock
under the terms of our 2012 Share Incentive Pldollsvs: an option to purchase up to 2,500,008ref of common stock at an exercise price
of $0.70 per share, subject to the achievemen¢ghinn performance milestones by the Company; ampéion to purchase up to 500,000
shares of common stock at an exercise price ofd§fe¥ share, vesting immediately. The incrementadisted options were to have vested u
the achievement of certain performance milestogabédé Company, as set forth below, and were to hevmined vested provided that Mr.
Lancia remained in the continuous employ of, ca gervice relationship with, the Company from thengydate through the applicable vesting
date. The vesting schedule is as follows:
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Percentage o
Option Vested Performance Milestone

10% Delivery of ten machines to South Carolina produt
20% Production of 1,000 gross car:

30% Achievement of or-month positive operating cash flc
40% Achievement of two consecutive quarters of profitgb

On August 13, 2012, we entered into an option gagnéement with Mr. Lancia during his service as@hief Executive Officer
under which we granted to Mr. Lancia an optiondocpase up to 500,000 shares of common stock exencise price of $0.80 per share,
subject to the achievement of certain performanibestones by us as set forth below:

Percentage o
Option Vested Performance Milestone

20% Implementation of laser operation in South Cara
40% Achievement of $1M in EBITDA cumulative from July 2012
40% Achievement $5M in revenue cumulative from July®Q]12

As disclosed above, all of the options granted tolMncia were forfeited upon his resignation

Charles G. Nichols Mr. Nichols served as our Chief Financial Offit@m January 9, 2012 until his resignation on Blober 30,
2012. In connection with his resignation, Mr. Nathentered into an Agreement of Separation, Waawed Mutual Release (the “Nichols
Release”). Pursuant to the Nichols Release, weedgio pay Mr. Nichols (i) an amount equal to $38,83, and (ii) an amount equal to two
months of health insurance premiums that would trecdue as a result of Mr. Nichokection to continue his health insurance coveragke!
applicable South Carolina law. In addition, purtiuta the Nichols Release, options to purchase0&@®bshares of our common stock held by
Mr. Nichols were immediately canceled and couldlm®exercised, but Mr. Nichols continued to holtiays to purchase 100,000 shares of
common stock for an additional six-month periocond of such options were exercised and accordinghg cancelled as of May 31, 2013.
The Nichols Release includes a mutual release gimmviand mutual non-disparagement provision. hega and in accordance with the terms
of the Nichols Release, Mr. Nichols continues tesbhbject to the confidentiality, non-compete anstomer and employee non-solicitation
restrictions and other restrictive covenants cotgin his amended and restated employment agré€imelnding in his proprietary
information and inventions agreement incorporated his amended and restated employment agreement).

The following describes the vesting terms for opgigranted to Mr. Nichols during fiscal 2013. Oaywr, 2012, the Company
entered into a qualified stock option grant agregmeath Mr. Nichols under which he was granted op$ to purchase shares of our common
stock under the terms of our 2012 Share Incentiaa &s follows: an option to purchase up to 250 $lares of common stock at an exercise
price of $0.70 per share, subject to the achievéwferertain performance milestones by the Compang;an option to purchase up to 175,00
shares of common stock at an exercise price oD3fe¥ share, vesting immediately. The incrementadted options were to have vested u
the achievement of certain performance milestogabédé Company, as set forth below, and were to hevmined vested provided that Mr.
Nichols remained in the continuous employ of, oaiservice relationship with, the Company fromdhant date through the applicable vesi
date. The vesting schedule is as follows:

Percentage o
Option Vested Performance Milestone

10% Delivery of ten machines to South Carolina produt
20% Production of 1,000 gross car:

30% Achievement of or-month positive operating cash flc
40% Achievement of two consecutive quarters of profltgb

On August 13, 2012, we entered into an option gagntement with Mr. Nichols during his service as Ghief Financial Officer
under which we granted to Mr. Nichols an optioptwchase up to 300,000 shares of common stock etencise price of $0.80 per share,
subject to the achievement of certain performanidestones by us as set forth below:
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Percentage o
Option Vested Performance Milestone

20% Implementation of laser operation in South Cara
40% Achievement of $1M in EBITDA cumulative from July 2012
40% Achievement $5M in revenue cumulative from JulpQ]12

Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year-End

The following table summarizes the outstanding tgoaivard holdings held by our named executive effcat March 31, 2013. All
awards represent options to purchase shares a@boumon stock, granted under our 2012 Share InceRtian.

Outstanding Equity Awards at 2013 Fiscal Year-End

Option awards

Number of Securities Number of Securities
Underlying Underlying Option
Unexercised Unexercised Exercise Option
Options (#) Options (#) Price Expiration
Name Exercisable Unexercisable (%) Date
Michael W. McMahor 390,00( 210,00(1) $ 0.7C 5/16/201!
60,00( 240,00(2) $ 0.8C 8/13/201!
271,25( 1,228,75(3) $ 0.9 2/01/2011
Stephen D. Kelle! — — — —
Joseph D. Lanci — — — —
Jonathan M. Pfof 126,58: 573,41°(4) $ 0.8: 3/25/2011
Charles G. Nichol 100,00(5) — 3 0.7C 5/31/201:

(1) Of the number reported, 90,000 options vest basdti®Company achieving positive operating casi #iod 120,000 options vest
based on the Company attaining two consecutivetepsanf profitability.

(2) Of the number reported, 120,000 options vest basdgtie Company attaining $1 million in cumulativBIEDA from July 1,
2012forward and 120,000 options vest based on timep@ny attaining $5 million in cumulative revenuenfi July 1, 2012 forward.

(3) Of the number reported, 234,375 options vest oGthnth anniversary of his start date as Chiefchtiee Officer; 468,750 options
vest upon the Company attaining $5 million in cuative revenue from January 1, 2013; 234,375 opti@ss upon the Company
attaining $1 million in cumulative EBITDA from Jaary 1, 2013 forward; and 291,250 options vest upernCompany attaining $2.5
million in cumulative EBITDA from January 1, 2018rfvard.

(4) Of the number reported, 109,375 options vest orthreonth anniversary of his employment start d21&,750 options vest upon the
Company attaining $5 million in cumulative reveritem January 1, 2013; 109,375 options vest uporCidrapany attaining $1
million in cumulative EBITDA from January 1, 2018rfvard; and 135,917 options vest upon the Comp#ainang $2.5 million in
cumulative EBITDA from January 1, 2013 forward.

(4) All options disclosed expired on May 31, 2013.

Director Compensatiot

The following table shows the compensation paimhdividuals who served on our Board of Directorsne of whom are named
executive officers, during the fiscal year endedda31, 2013.

Fees Earned ol Option All Other
Paid in Cash Awards Compensation
Name ($)(D) ($)(2)(3) (P4 Total ($)
Edward S. Adam $ 76,75 $ 47,25( $ — $ 124,00(
Robert C. Linare: 2,50( — — 2,50(
Bernard M. McPheely (& 10,00( 19,681 — 29,68’
Michael R. Monahal 76,75( 47,25( 11,00( 135,00(
Theodorus Strou 30,00( 43,31: 32,44( 105,75.
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(1) Includes board meeting and executive committeedadsonus payments. On December 14, 2012 thelBadinorized bonus
payments as follows as compensation for extraordiwark performed: Mr. Adams: $11,250; Mr. McPhee$3,750; Mr. Monahan:;
$11,250; and Mr. Strous: $11,250. These bonuses pad in January 2013. Mr. McPheely returnedphigment to the Company on
February 26, 2013.

(2) The amounts in this column represent the aggregate date fair value computed in accordance WkBIB ASC Topic 718, based
the Black-Scholes model of option valuation. Theuasptions used to arrive at the Black-Scholes vatealisclosed in Note 6 to our
consolidated financial statements for the interamiged ended December 31, 2012 included in our @dgrReport on Form 10-Q filed
on February 14, 2013. These assumptions incluge=ated dividend yield- 0%, risk-free interest rdie34%, expected life in year3;
and expected volatility of 100%.

(3) Options outstanding at March 31, 2013 are as faldWr. Adams: 75,000; Mr. Lancia O: Dr. LinaresMx,. McPheely: 0;
Mr.Monahan: 76,750; Mr. Strous: 67,750. In aduditiMr. Strous holds 112.500 outstanding warrants.

(4) Includes compensation for consulting services regdio the Company in the amount of $11,000 for Mionahan and $4,000 for
Mr. Strous. For Mr. Strous, the amount reportest ahcludes $28,440, representing the grant datgdhie (computed in accordance
with FASB ASC Topic 718, based on the Black-Schoheslel of option valuation) of warrants to purch&8e000 shares of our
common stock granted to Mr. Strous for non-directmrsulting work for the Company. The assumpticseduo arrive at the Black-
Scholes value are disclosed in Note 8 to our cicestedd financial statements included in this AnriRaport on Form 10-K. See Item
13 for additional information regarding these watsa

(5) Mr. McPheely resigned from the Board of Directonshday 14, 2013.

Our directors receive $1,250, plus related expemeoard meeting. In addition, each of Messtams and Monahan receive
$4,000 per month for serving on our executive cotta®i

Compensation Committee

We currently do not have a compensation committéleoBoard of Directors. The Board of Directorsaashole determines executi
compensation.

Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Paitiation

As disclosed above, the Board of Directors as aevtletermines executive compensation. Duringigeafyear ended March 31,
2013, the following individuals served on our Boafdirectors: Edward S. Adams, Joseph D. LarRihert C. Linares, Bernard M.
McPheely, Michael R. Monahan and Theodorus Strddsssrs. Lancia and McPheely resigned from the @oarNovember 30, 2012 and
May 14, 2013, respectively. Mr. Lancia served kagthta director and as our Chief Executive Offig#il tnis resignation on November 30,
2012. No other director who served on our Boandhduthe fiscal year ended March 31, 2013 is a faror current officer of the Company, or
has other interlocking relationships, as definedhsySEC.

Please see Item 13 of this Annual Report on Forfi 1@r disclosure of certain transactions involvikigssrs. Adams, Lancia,
Linares, Monahan and Strous that are required widmosed pursuant to Item 404 of Regulation Srétulgated by the SEC.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS.

Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners atianagement

The following table sets forth, as of March 31, 20the beneficial ownership of the outstanding camrstock by: (i) the persons or
groups known to us to be the beneficial owners ofenthan five (5%) percent of the shares of oustamiding common stock; (ii) each of our
named executive officers and current directors;(@ndur current directors and executive officaisa group. Unless otherwise indicated, eac
of the stockholders named in the table below hés\saiing and dispositive power with respect totsghares of common stock.
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Amount and

Nature of Percentage of

Beneficial Beneficial
Name and Address of Beneficial Owne Ownership(1)(2)(3) Ownership
Directors and Named Executive Office
Edward S. Adam
411 University Ridge, Suite D, Greenville, SC 29 4,965,00((4) 10.€%
Michael R. Monahal
411 University Ridge, Suite D, Greenville, SC 29 4,965,00(5) 10.€%
Michael W. McMahor
411 University Ridge, Suite D, Greenville, SC 29 725,79! 1.5%
Jonathan M. Pfot
411 University Ridge, Suite D, Greenville, SC 29 126,58: 0.2%
Theodorus Strou
411 University Ridge, Suite D, Greenville, SC 29 180,25((6) 0.4%
Robert C. Linare:
411 University Ridge, Suite D, Greenville, SC 29 950,00((7) 2.C%
Stephen D. Kelle!
411 University Ridge, Suite D, Greenville, SC 29 0 0.C%
Joseph D. Lanci
411 University Ridge, Suite D, Greenville, SC 29 1,000,00! 2.1%
Charles G. Nichol
411 University Ridge, Suite D, Greenville, SC 29 100,00( 0.2%
All directors and named executive officers as a gup (9 persons) 13,012,62 27.&%
Other 5% Stockholder
Thomas P. Hartness Revocable Trust dated July(R@
1200 Garlington Road, Greenville, SC 29¢ 5,000,00(8) 10.2%

(1)

(@)

3)

(4)

(5)
(6)

(7)

Includes shares for which the named person hassetitey and investment power, has shared votingiavestment power, or holds in an
IRA or other retirement plan and shares held byntdmaed person’s spouse.

For purposes of this table, a person or group fgres is deemed to have “beneficial ownership”nyf shares of common stock which
that person has the right to acquire within 60 dajlewing March 31, 2013. For purposes of compgtihe percentage of outstanding
shares of common stock held by each person or grbpprsons named above, any shares which thatperspersons has or have the r
to acquire within 60 days following March 31, 20i3deemed to be outstanding, but is not deeméd mutstanding for the purpose of
computing the percentage ownership of any othesqmer

Includes shares that may be acquired within 60 daytse date hereof by exercising stock optiongditulating the number of shares
beneficially owned by an individual and the pereget ownership of that individual, shares underlyptions held by that individual that
are either currently exercisable or exercisabl@iwi60 days from March 31, 2013 are deemed outstgndhese shares, however, are not
deemed outstanding for the purpose of computingéneentage ownership of any other individual ditgn Numbers reported includes
the following shares subject to options exercisabieently or within 60 days of March 31, 2013: Middams: 75,000; Mr. Monahan:
75,000; Mr. McMahon: 721,250; Mr. Nichols: 100,004r. Pfohl: 126,250; Mr. Strous: 130,250; and Dnares: 0.

Includes 2,000,000 shares owned by Mr. Adams’ vicfeyhich Mr. Adams disclaims beneficial ownersHipcludes 790,000 shares
owned by the Edward S. Adams Revocable Trust, fackvMr. Adams disclaims beneficial ownership.

Includes 1,000,000 shares owned by Mr. Monaharfs,ér which Mr. Monahan disclaims beneficial owstap.
Includes 61,500 warrants granted to Mr. Strousyausto the terms of the consulting agreement edteetween the Company and
Mr. Strous prior to Mr. Strous’ election to the Bda@f Directors and 50,000 warrants granted as emsgtion for efforts in connection

with the Company’s largest customer.

Includes 250,000 shares owned by Dr. Linares’s Mdfewhich Dr. Linares disclaims beneficial owrt@s



(8) Based on information contained in a Schedule 18 fivith the SEC on November 28, 2012 by ThomdsdPtness, the trustee and
settler of the Thomas P. Hartness Revocable TvadduiD July 30, 2010 (the “Trust”). The numberogpd includes 2,500,000 Warrants
issued to the Trust in connection with its purchfagm the Company of units consisting of one sldreommon stock and one warrant for

the purchase of a share of common stock. All shaesrted are held by Thomas P. Hartness as traétee Trust, and in that capacity
Mr. Hartness has sold voting and dispositive powiéin respect to such shares.
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Securities Authorized for Issuance under Equity Cpensation Plans

The following table summarizes the sole equity cengation plan under which shares of the Compamytsnwon stock may be issued as
of March 31, 2013.

Number of securities

Number of remaining
securities Weightec- available for future
to be issued upon average issuance under
exercise of exercise price of equity compensation
outstanding outstanding plans
options, options, (excluding securities
warrants and warrants reflected in
Plan Category rights and rights Column (a))
Equity compensation plans approved by securitydrs — — —
Equity compensation plans not approved by sechadtglers:
2012 Share Incentive Plan 4,092,500 $ 0.81 907,50((1)
Total 4,092,500 $ 0.81 907,50(

(1) The 2012 Share Incentive Plan provides for thesissa of any shares available under the plan ifiotime of restricted or
unrestricted stock awards, phantom stock, perfocmanvards and other types of stock-based awardsidition to the granting of
options or stock appreciation rights.

The Scio Diamond Technology Corp. 2012 Share Iieerlan (the “2012 Share Incentive Plan”) was &edfy the Company’s Board
of Directors on May 7, 2012. The 2012 Share Irnigerfelan permits the granting of stock optionscktappreciation rights, restricted or
unrestricted stock awards, phantom stock, perfoomamwards, other stoddkased awards, or any combination of the foregoldg.to 5,000,001
shares of the Company’s common stock are authof@@édsuance pursuant to awards granted unde2@h2 Share Incentive Plan to the
Company'’s directors, officers, employees and cdastg providing bona fide services to or for theripany. We did not have an equity
compensation plan in effect as of the end of aedli year ended March 31, 2012.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSAC TIONS AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE.
Related Party Transaction

The law firm of Adams & Monahan LLP, of which ourettors Mr. Adams and Mr. Monahan are partners,ideen paid
approximately $106,229 since April 1, 2012, by @@mpany for legal services. Adams & Monahan LLP matinue to provide legal servic
to the Company.

The Company purchased certain assets from ADI aqguaiu31, 2011, consisting primarily of diamond giriyvmachines and
intellectual property related thereto. The purcharéee consisted of an aggregate of $2,000,000cionabination of cash and a promissory note
bearing interest at 4.00% annually and due andgwitiull on September 1, 2012, plus the opporfufdt certain current and former
stockholders of ADI to acquire approximately 16lmil shares of common stock of the Company for $@€r share. Both Mr. Adams, in an
executive role, and Mr. Monahan previously senredarious capacities with ADI through early 201 DlAapplied $275,000 of the cash
proceeds from this asset sale to pay AdamsMonahBrfdr legal services.

On June 5, 2012, the Company acquired substantithibf the assets of ADGC pursuant to the ADGCeA$aurchase, which assets
consisted primarily of lab-created diamond gemstat&ted know-how, inventory, and various intelledtproperty, in exchange for $100,000
in cash and the opportunity for certain current omcher stockholders of ADGC qualifying as accreditnvestors to acquire up to
approximately 1 million shares of
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common stock of the Company for $0.01 per sharsyaunt to the ADGC Offering. Mr. Adams and Mr. Moaalserved in various capacities
with ADGC through early 2011.

The Company understands that most of the outstgrsdtiares of ADI and ADGC were redeemed prior toiarahticipation of the
Company’s purchase of assets from ADI and ADGC.Aflams and his spouse owned approximately 2% ofdh@mon stock of ADI and
11% of the common stock of ADGC (prior to the stoegurchases by such companies in 2011). NeitheAlftms nor his spouse participated
in the ADI/ADGC Stockholder Offering. Mr. Monahaeld no stock of ADI and approximately 4% of thecktof ADGC (prior to the stock
repurchases by ADGC in 2011). Mr. Monahan did rastipipate in the ADI/ADGC Stockholder Offering. Mkdams and Mr. Monahan and
their law firm have provided legal services to eatiADI, ADGC and the Company.

Dr. Robert C. Linares, a member of our Board ofbiors, the father-in-law of Mr. Adames, is the femChairman of the Board of
each of ADI and ADGC, and was also the largesti$tolcler of each of ADI and ADGC.

On January 29, 2013, the Board of Directors appt@rearrangement under which the Company and tveaoboard members,
Edward S. Adams and Michael R. Monahan, have jognigaged outside counsel to pursue a complaimstgaformer Company service
provider. Claims being considered include botlinetaon behalf of the Company and claims on betfall@ssrs. Adams and Monahan
individually. The terms of the engagement includeagreement for the Company, on the one hand, assid. Adams and Monahan, on the
other, to split the costs of pursuing this matd to split any recoveries obtained from the serprovider. In the event the complaint is
unsuccessful, the Board has agreed that the Compilngdemnify Messrs. Adams and Monahan for abmies paid by them in pursuit of the
complaint. The Company recognized $100,000 in es@eluring the fiscal year ending March 31, 201@tiect fees paid to the outside
counsel to pursue this complaint, of which $50,8@8 paid to the outside counsel by the Company$afd00 was accrued by the Company
as a potential liability for the indemnificatiomhe Company is unable to determine the aggregats dawill ultimately incur or the aggregate
recoveries it will ultimately obtain, if any.

On March 6, 2013, Mr. Monahan and Mr. Strous wetained by the Board of Directors to provide cotisglservices to the Compa
related to the diamond gemstone industry in amoeqisl to $11,000 and $4,000 per month, respegtivis of March 31, 2013, Mr. Monah
had been paid $11,000 and Mr. Strous $4,000.

On March 25, 2013, the Board of Directors authatitee issuance of a warrant to purchase 50,00@slwdirour common stock at an
exercise price of $1.60 per share to Mr. Strouseenber of the Board, as compensation for Mr. Streffisrts in connection with the
Company’s largest customer and not as compensatiois capacity as a member of the Board. Theseawss were fully vested at the time of
grant and the Company recognized $28,440 in expeteied to these warrants in the fiscal year entMarch 31, 2013

On May 7, 2012, Kristoffer Mack and Paul Rapellvareholders of Loblolly, Inc. (f/k/a Scio Diamonddhnology Corporation)
(referred to in this report as Private Scio), datilely and on behalf of nominal defendant Privéat@ (collectively, the “Plaintiffs”) filed a
claim in the U.S. District Court for the District blinnesota against Edward S. Adams (our Chairm@ejise L. Adams, Michael R. Monahan
(our Director), Julie C. Monahan, the law firm ol@dms Monahan LLP, Joseph Lancia (our former Chigicktive Officer) and the Company
(collectively, the “Defendants”) and Private Sas,a Nominal Defendant. The complaint allegeddginst Messrs. Adams, Monahan and
Lancia, AMLLP and the Company, violations of Sectid 0(b) and 20(a) of the Exchange Act and RuleSL@tereunder and violation of
Minnesota Statutes §8 80A.68 and8J46, (i) against Messrs. Adams, Monahan and Laaacid AMLLP, breach of fiduciary duty, (iii) agati
Messrs. Adams and Monahan and AMLLP, malpractieg against all Defendants, rescission of the taatiens set forth in the Scio Asset
Purchase Agreement and (v) against Adams, MonatdARILLP, usurpation of a corporate opportunityach allegation relates to, among
other things, certain actions taken in connecti@th the asset purchase contemplated in the ScietAgchase Agreement, the ADGC Asset
Purchase, and the ADI/ADGC Stockholder Offering.

The Plaintiffs sought direct and consequential dggaan an amount to be established through prowifaditplus pre-judgment and
post-judgment interest and reasonable attornegs’ #md costs, rescission of the alleged impropocate transactions, a constructive trust in
favor of Private Scio based on the alleged usiopatf corporate opportunities, and other apprapréguitable and other relief. On May 11,
2012, four days after the complaint was filed, f&ntiffs voluntarily dismissed the complaint withejudice. This voluntarily dismissal was
the result of a settlement agreement whereby Me&dams and Monahan transferred to the Plaintif@®@,000 shares of common stock of the
Company held by them, and Mr. Adams transferretiédPlaintiffs a cash payment in the amount of @30,in cash.
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On March 25, 2013, the Board of Directors reviewrsalfacts of the litigation described above andsittiement, the Company’s by-
laws and relevant laws of the State of Nevada @neleel the Company would accept liability for thi#lement. As such, the Board of Direct
authorized the following to indemnify Messrs. Adaam&l Monahan, members of the Board, under appédall and the Company’s charter
documents for expenses incurred and shares of Gonquenmon stock and cash transferred by them tlesednt of the litigation: (i) the
issuance of 500,000 shares of the Company’s constomk to each of Messrs. Adams and Monahan, @iptiyment of $90,000 to Mr. Adams
for amounts paid by him to settle the complaing &ii) any other amounts and expenses paid in eotion with stockholder litigation matters
involving certain current and former stockholdefshe Company. The Company recognized $946,5%xrense related to the
indemnification. Of this amount $830,000 represemn-cash expenses related to the value of thep@wyrcommon stock to be issued.

Director Independenct

Our Board of Directors has determined that Mr. &ris an “independent” director, based upon thepeddence criteria set forth in
the corporate governance listing standards of TASBIDAQ Stock Market, the exchange that the Boardcted in order to determine whether
our directors and committee members meet the intbpeee criteria of a national securities exchaagegequired by Item 407(a) of Regulation
S- K. No other directors are considered to bepedeent under those standards.

Our Board has no standing audit, compensation mimating committees, and accordingly the full Boaddlls the functions that
would otherwise be filled by such committees. Noh&essrs. Adams, Monahan, or Linares meets tthepgendence criteria applicable to
members of such committees as set forth in theotate governance listing standards of The NASDAGKSMarket, nor did Mr. McPheely
during his service on the Board of Directors.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES.

On March 22, 2012, the Board of Directors engageer§ Bekaert LLP (formerly Cherry, Bekaert & Haith L.L.P.) to serve as the
Company’s independent auditor for the fiscal yewtesl March 31, 2012, after dismissing Gruber & Canyp LLC, who had been engaged by
the Company on October 27, 2011.

The following table shows the fees that we incuf@dservices performed in fiscal years ended M&th2013 and 2012;

Fiscal Year Ended March 31,

2013 2012
Audit Fees $ 78,60C $ 80,65(
Audit-Related Fee — —
Tax Fees 4,50(
All Other Fees 5,40( —
Total $ 84,000 $ 85,15(
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Audit Fees

This category includes the aggregate fees billegfofessional services rendered by the indeperalatitors during the Company’s
2013 and 2012 fiscal years for the audit of the fany’s annual financial statements and quartepggnts on Form 10-Q.

Tax Fees

This category includes the aggregate fees billeghfofessional services rendered by the indeperaladitors during the Company’s
2013 and 2012 fiscal years for preparation of &xMms and related advisory services.

All Other Fees

This category includes the aggregate fees billeghfofessional services rendered by the indeperaladitors during the Company’'s
2013 and 2012 fiscal years for employee compensatiated advisory services.

Oversight of Accountants; Approval of Accounting Ee

The Company does not have an audit committee.fAH@accounting services and fees reflected inahke above were reviewed and
approved by the whole Board of Directors, and nafrthe services were performed by individuals whayewmnot employees.
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PART IlI

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

(@)

1)

Financial Statements

The following financial statements are locatedtém 8 of this Report:

Report of Independent Registered Public AccourfEing

Balance Sheets as of March 31, 2013 and 2012

Statements of Operations for the years ended M2tcR013 and 2012
Statements of Cash Flow for the years ended Mat¢cR@®L3 and 2012
Statements of Shareholders’ Equity for the yeadedrMarch 31, 2013 and 2012
Notes to the Financial Statements

3)

Exhibits

The following exhibits are filed with this Repont &orm 10-K as required by Item 601 of Regulatiel:S

3.1

3.2

3.3

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.5A

10.5B

10.6

Articles of Incorporation (incorporated by refereno the Form S7/A filed with the Securities and Exchange Comnoissin
May 13, 2010).

Certificate of Amendment to Articles of Incorpomati(incorporated by reference to the Form 8-K fikdth the SEC on
August 11, 2011).

Bylaws (incorporated by reference to the Form S{1l&4 with the Securities and Exchange CommissioiMay 13, 2010).

Asset Purchase Agreement by and among Krossbowiridolebrporation and Scio Diamond Technology Corpiora
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to tloenf 8-K/A filed with the SEC on August 15, 2011).

Schedule 1.1(a) “Acquired Assets” of the Asset Rase Agreement by and among Krossbow Holding Catjoor and Scio
Diamond Technology Corporation (incorporated byrence to Exhibit 10.1 to the Form 8-K/A filed witie SEC on
August 15, 2011).

Asset Purchase Agreement by and among Scio Diamfecldnology Corporation and Apollo Diamond, Inccfrporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Form 10-Q/A faoe fiscal quarter ended September 30, 2011 filel thie SEC on
August 16, 2012).

Asset Purchase Agreement by and among Scio Diaffiedldnology Corporation and Apollo Diamond Gemstone
Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit3lto the Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended Ma3d, 2012 filed with
the SEC on August 16, 2012).

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement by ameeba Scio Diamond Technology Corporation and Jo&ep
Lancia (incorporated by reference to the Form 8lédfwith the SEC on August 8, 2012). (1)

Change in Control Agreement by and between Scionbiad Technology Corporation and Joseph D. Lanoio(porated by
reference to the Form 8-K filed with the SEC on Asig8, 2012). (1)

Agreement of Separation, Waiver, and Release @ploB. Lancia (incorporated by reference to ExHibitl to the Form 8-
K filed with the SEC on December 7, 2012). (1)

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement by ameba Scio Diamond Technology Corporation and @&sa@.
Nichols (incorporated by reference to the Form 8l&d with the SEC on August 8, 2012). (1)
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10.6A

10.6B

10.7

10.7A

10.7B

10.8

10.9

10.10

Change in Control Agreement by and between Scionbrad Technology Corporation and Charles G. Nickiolsorporated
by reference to the Form 8-K filed with the SECAargust 8, 2012). (1)

Agreement of Separation, Waiver, and Mutual Reledggharles G. Nichols (incorporated by refererm&xhibit 10.2 to the
Form 8-K filed with the SEC on December 7, 2012). (

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement by amekba Scio Diamond Technology Corporation and Mativa.
McMahon (incorporated by reference to the Form #8ldd with the SEC on August 8, 2012). (1)

Employment Letter with Michael McMahon (incorporditey reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the FornK8iled with the SEC or
February 4, 2012). (1)

Change in Control Agreement by and between Sciombial Technology Corporation and Michael W. McMahon
(incorporated by reference to the Form 8-K filedhithe SEC on August 8, 2012). (1)

Subscription Agreement dated May 4, 2012 (incorigatdy reference to Exhibit 10.11 to the Form 1fbKthe fiscal year
ended March 31, 2012 filed with the SEC on August2D12).

Form of Warrant by and between Scio Diamond Tedmp(Corporation and certain Investors (incorpordtgdeference to
the Form 8-K filed with the SEC on May 10, 2012).

Scio Diamond Technology Corp. 2012 Share IncerRiiam (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2h Form 8-K filed
with the SEC on February 4, 2012). (1)

10.10A Form of Qualified Stock Option Grant Agreement lgl detween Scio Diamond Technology Corporationaarthin

10.10B

10.11

10.11A

10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15

Executive Officers (incorporated by reference ® Form 8-K filed with the SEC on August 8, 2012). (

Form of Stock Option Grant Agreement (Non-Qualifftdck Option) (for Non-Employee Directors) (incoragted by
reference to Exhibit 10.6 to the Form 10-Q filedhwthe SEC on February 14, 2013). (1)

Lease with Innovation Center (incorporated by reffiee to Exhibit 10.01 to the Form 10-Q for thedlsquarter year ended
March 31, 2012 filed with the SEC on August 16,201

Supplemental Notice to Lease dated October 14,,204and between Scio Diamond Technology Corpanadiad

Innovation Center, LLC (incorporated by referenz&xkhibit 10.14 to the Form 1R-for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2
filed with the SEC on August 16, 2012).

Employment Letter Agreement of Stephen D. Kelleg¢rporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to then#8K filed with the
SEC on December 7, 2012). (1)

Employment Letter Agreement dated March 4, 201@/eeh Scio Diamond Technology Corporation and Jamakfohl
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to tloenk 8-K filed with the SEC on March 7, 2013). (1)

Code of Ethics and Business Conduct (incorporayecference to the Form 8-K filed with the SEC amglist 8, 2012).
Warrant dated March 25, 2013 by and between Sa@mbind Technology Corporation and Theodorus Strgs.
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10.16

10.17

10.18

24

311

31.2

32

101

Warrant dated March 25, 2013 by and between Sa@mbind Technology Corporation and Filip De Weerdt.*

Consulting Agreement dated March 6, 2013 by andiéen Scio Diamond Technology Corporation and Thawi8trous.*
1)

Consulting Agreement dated March 6, 2013 by andiéen Scio Diamond Technology Corporation and MitRae
Monahan.* (1)

Power of Attorney (contained herein as part ofsigmature pages).*

Rule 13a-14(a) Certification of the Chief Execut®#icer.*

Rule 13a-14(a) Certification of the Chief Finandcidficer.*

Section 1350 Certifications of the Chief Execut®#icer and Chief Financial Officer.*

The following materials from the Company’s Annuad®rt on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended Ma3&h2013,
formatted in eXtensible Business Reporting LangudgRL); (i) Balance Sheets as of March 31, 2018 2612;

(ii) Statements of Operations for the years endedch 31, 2013 and 2012; (iii) Statements of Shddehs’ Equity for the

years ended March 31, 2013 and 2012; (iv) Statesr@n€ash Flow for the years ended March 31, 20ti32012; and
(v) Notes to the Financial Statements*

1)

Filed herewith.

Management contract or compensatory plan or arraagerequired to be filed as an Exhibit to this AahReport on
Form 10-K.
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused this report to
be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theoeduly authorized.

Date: June 28, 201 SCIO DIAMOND TECHNOLOGY CORPORATION
/s/ Michael McMahor

Chief Executive Office

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that each personoat signature appears below constitutes and agpdiohael
McMahon, his true and lawful attorney-in-fact amgbat, with full power of substitution and resuhstin, for him and in his name, place and
stead, in any and all capacities, to sign any dresheendments to this Annual Report on Form 104k] to file the same, with all exhibits
thereto, and other documents in connection thehewiith the Securities and Exchange Commissiomtgrg unto attorney-in-fact and agent
full power and authority to do and perform each anery act and thing requisite or necessary todme @ and about the premises, as fully to
all intents and purposes as he might or could geenson, hereby ratifying and confirming all thabeey-in-fact and agent, or his substitute ol
substitutes, may lawfully do or cause to be dongitiye hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélpthe following persons on
behalf of the registrant and in the capacities@mthe dates indicated.

Date: June 28, 2013 /s/ MICHAEL MCMAHON
Michael McMahor
Chief Executive Office
(Principal Executive Officer

Date: June 28, 2013 /s/ JONATHAN M. PFOHL
Jonathan M. Pfof
Chief Financial Office
(Principal Accounting and Financial Office

Date: June 28, 2013 /sl EDWARD S. ADAMS
Edward S. Adam
Chairman and Directo

Date: June 28, 2013 /s/ ROBERT C. LINARES
Robert C. Linare:
Director

Date: June 28, 2013 /s/ MICHAEL R. MONAHAN
Michael R. Monahai
Director

Date: June 28, 2013 /sl THEODORUS STROU.
Theodorus Strou
Director
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10.15

10.16

10.17

10.18

24

31.1

31.2

32

101

EXHIBIT INDEX

Warrant dated March 25, 2013 by and between Sa@mbind Technology Corporation and Theodorus Strous.
Warrant dated March 25, 2013 by and between Sa@mbind Technology Corporation and Filip De Weerdt
Consulting Agreement dated March 6, 2013 by andiéen Scio Diamond Technology Corporation and ThaeaiStrous.

Consulting Agreement dated March 6, 2013 by andiéen Scio Diamond Technology Corporation and MitRae
Monahan.

Power of Attorney (contained herein as part ofdigmature pages).

Rule 13a-14(a) Certification of the Chief Execut#icer.

Rule 13a-14(a) Certification of the Chief Finandcificer.

Section 1350 Certifications of the Chief Execut@#icer and Chief Financial Officer.

The following materials from the Company’s Annuad®rt on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended Ma3&h2013,
formatted in eXtensible Business Reporting LangudRL); (i) Balance Sheets as of March 31, 2018 2612;

(i) Statements of Operations for the years endegdchl 31, 2013 and 2012; (iii) Statements of Shddeins’ Equity for the
years ended March 31, 2013, and 2012; (iv) Statesr#rCash Flow for the years ended March 31, 20482012; and

(v) Notes to the Financial Statements
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Exhibit 10.15

THIS AGREEMENT IS SUBJECT TO ARBITRATION PURSUANT T O THE SOUTH CAROLINA UNIFORM ARBITRATION
ACT: SC CODE ANN. 81548-10ET SEQ. AND THE FEDERAL ARBITRATION ACT: 9 U.S.C.1 ET SEOQ.

THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED BY THIS INSTRUMENT HAVREOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF
1933, AS AMENDED, OR THE SECURITIES LAWS OF ANY STE AND MAY NOT BE TRANSFERRED, SOLD OR OTHERWISE
DISPOSED OF EXCEPT WHILE A REGISTRATION STATEMENTERATING THERETO IS IN EFFECT UNDER SUCH ACT AND
APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS OR THE COMPANY, WN ITS REQUEST, RECEIVES AN OPINION OF COUNSEL FOR
THE HOLDER OF THIS INSTRUMENT ACCEPTABLE TO THE CORANY STATING THAT SUCH SALE, TRANSFER OR OTHER
DISPOSITION IS EXEMPT FROM THE REGISTRATION AND PRBPECTUS DELIVERY REQUIREMENTS OF SUCH ACT AND
APPLICABLE STATE LAWS. THIS INSTRUMENT IS ISSUEDWJECT TO THE RESTRICTIONS ON TRANSFER SET FORTH
HEREIN AND SECURITIES REPRESENTED BY THIS INSTRUMENMAY NOT BE SOLD OR OTHERWISE TRANSFERRED
EXCEPT IN COMPLIANCE WITH SUCH RESTRICTIONS. ANYALE OR OTHER TRANSFER NOT IN COMPLIANCE WITH THIS
WARRANT WILL BE VOID.

WARRANT
to purchase

50,000
Shares of Common Stock of

Scio Diamond Technology Corporation

Deemed Issue Date: March 25, 2013
1. Definitions. Unless the context otherwise requires, when hseein the following terms shall have the meaninggated.
“ AAA" has the meaning set forth in Section 15.
“ Arbitration Rules’ has the meaning set forth in Section 15.
“ Board of Directors’ means the board of directors of the Company uidiclg any duly authorized committee thereof.

“ Business Combinatiohmeans a merger, consolidation, statutory shachange or similar transaction that requires theam of
the Company’s stockholders.

“ b usiness day means any day except Saturday, Sunday and anymdafioh banking institutions in the State of Newrk'generally
are authorized or required by law or other govemtaleactions to close.

“ Charter” means, with respect to any Person, its certifioat@ticles of incorporation, articles of associatior similar organization
document.

“ Common Stockmeans the common stock of the Company.




“ Company’ means Scio Diamond Technology Corporation, a aveorporation.
“Deemed Issue Datetnheans March 25, 2013.

“ Dispute” has the meaning set forth in Section 15.

“ Dispute Notic€ has the meaning set forth in Section 15.

“ Exchange Act means the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, orsartgessor statute, and the rules and regulatronsytgated
thereunder.

“ Exercise Pricé means $1.60.

“ Expiration Time" has the meaning set forth in Section 3.
“ Party” has the meaning set forth in Section 15.

“ Parties” has the meaning set forth in Section 15.

“ Person” has the meaning given to it in Section 3(a)(9)h&f Exchange Act and as used in Sections 13(dj@)L4(d)(2) of the
Exchange Act.

“ Regulatory Approval$ with respect to the Warrantholder, means, to therdapplicable and required to permit the Warralaltr tc
exercise this Warrant for shares of Common Stocktarown such Common Stock without the Warrantholsieng in violation of applicable
law, rule or regulation, the receipt of any necesspprovals and authorizations of, filings andisgrgtions with, notifications to, or expiration
or termination of any applicable waiting period endhe Hart-Scott-Rodino Antitrust Improvementd A£1976, and the rules and regulations
thereunder, the Securities Act, and applicable staturities laws.

“ SEC” means the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission

“ Securities Act means the Securities Act of 1933, or any sucaestsute, and the rules and regulations promutgtitereunder.

“ Shares’ has the meaning set forth in Section 2.

“ Warrantholder’ has the meaning set forth in Section 2.

“ Warrant” means this Warrant.

2. Number of Shares; Exercise PricEhis certifies that, for value received, the usdgmed warrantholder whose name appear
on the signature page hereto or its permitted asgitpe “Warrantholder”) is entitled, upon the terms and subject to thsting and other
conditions hereinafter set forth, to acquire frér@a Company, in whole or in part, after the recefpll applicable Regulatory Approvals, if a
up to an aggregate number of 50,000 fully paid momtassessable shares of Common Stock, at a pungheseer share of Common Stock

equal to the Exercise Price. The number of shafr€mmon Stock (the Shares’) and the Exercise Price are subject to adjustrasnt
provided herein, and all references to “Common IgtdShares” and “Exercise Price” herein shall kethed to
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include any such adjustment or series of adjustsent

3. Exercise of Warrant; TermSubject to the restrictions on exercise containgtis Warrant, to the extent permitted by
applicable laws and regulations, the right to pasghthe Shares represented by this Warrant isisable, to the extent vested pursuant to the
terms of Section 3, in whole or in part by the Vdatholder, at any time or from time to time afteg £xecution and delivery of this Warrant by
the Company on the date hereof, but in no eveet thtin 5:00 p.m., New York City time 15 days aftex fifth anniversary of the Deemed
Issue Date (the Expiration Time’), by (A) the surrender of this Warrant and NotafeExercise annexed hereto, duly completed andugzd
on behalf of the Warrantholder, at the principad@xive office of the Company (or such other officeagency of the Company in the United
States as it may designate by notice in writintheoWarrantholder at the address of the Warrantgn@gdpearing on the books of the Compe
and (B) payment of the Exercise Price for the Sh#rereby purchased by tendering in cash, by mettdr cashier's check payable to the ordel
of the Company, or by wire transfer of immediataailable funds to an account designated by thepgaom

If the Warrantholder does not exercise this Wariaits entirety, the Warrantholder will be entitleo receive from the Company
within a reasonable time a new warrant in subsaliptidentical form for the purchase of that numb&Bhares equal to the difference betweer
the number of Shares subject to this Warrant aadhtimber of Shares as to which this Warrant isxeecesed. Notwithstanding anything in
this Warrant to the contrary, the Warrantholdeebgracknowledges and agrees that its exercisef\tarrant for Shares is subject to the
conditions that (x) the Warrantholder will havesfireceived any applicable Regulatory Approvals @hdhe exercise is subject to a valid
exemption from registration under federal and ayalie state securities laws.

In connection with any exercise of the Warrant, k&fatholder agrees to provide the Company with softirmation and confirmatior
as the Company may reasonably request in ordéhéo€ompany to confirm that the exercise is sulifeet valid exemption from registration
under federal and applicable state securities fvisthat the Warrantholder is making an informetisien to exercise the Warrant.

The Warrantholder represents and warrants thaMduweantholder is an “accredited investor” as saehtis defined in Regulation D,
Rule 501, and is acquiring the Warrant, and anye&shiasued pursuant to the Warrant, for investraedtnot for distribution or resale to others
in violation of federal or state securities laws.

4, Issuance of Shares; Authorization; Listin@ertificates for Shares issued upon exercighisfwWarrant will be issued in su
name or names as the Warrantholder may designdteiiroe delivered to such named Person or Peradtiién a reasonable time after the
rights represented by this Warrant shall have Iseegxercised. The Company hereby represents amdnisthat any Shares issued upon the
exercise of this Warrant in accordance with thesjsions of Section 4 hereof will be duly and vajidiuthorized and issued, fully paid and
nonassessable and free from all taxes, liens amdjeh (other than liens or charges created by tweamholder, income and franchise taxes
incurred in connection with the exercise of the kat or taxes in respect of any transfer occurcimgtemporaneously therewith). The
Company agrees that the Shares so issued willéraetbto have been issued to the Warrantholder the @lose of business on the date on
which this Warrant and payment of the ExercisedPai@ delivered to the Company in accordance Wwetdrms of this Warrant,
notwithstanding that the stock transfer books ef@mpany may then be closed or certificates reptegy such Shares may not be actually
delivered on such date. The Company will at alles reserve and keep available, out of its autbdizut unissued Common Stock, solely for
the purpose of providing for the exercise of thiarvéint, the aggregate number of shares of Comnuuk ten

3




issuable upon exercise of this Warrant at any tifhéhe Common Stock is listed on a national siies exchange at the time of exercise of
Warrant, then the Company will use good faith éfféo cause the Shares issuable upon exercisesofdrrant to be listed on such national
securities exchange.

5. Legends The Warrantholder agrees to the imprinting t#geend on the Shares issued upon the exercisésoMarrant
pursuant to this Agreement in substantially théofeing form:

THE ISSUANCE OF THE SHARES OF COMMON STOCK REPRESHD BY THIS CERTIFICATE HAS NOT BEEN
REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933 OR APBABLE STATE LAWS, AND THESE SHARES OF
COMMON STOCK MAY NOT BE SOLD, TRANSFERRED, ASSIGNEDFFERED, PLEDGED OR OTHERWISE
DISTRIBUTED UNLESS THERE IS AN EFFECTIVE REGISTRADON STATEMENT UNDER SUCH ACT AND/OR SUCH
LAWS COVERING THIS CERTIFICATE OR THE COMPANY, UPON'S REQUEST, RECEIVES AN OPINION OF COUNSEL
FOR THE HOLDER OF THIS CERTIFICATE ACCEPTABLE TO BHICOMPANY STATING THAT SUCH SALE, TRANSFER,
ASSIGNMENT, OFFER, PLEDGE OR OTHER DISTRIBUTION EXEMPT FROM THE REGISTRATION AND PROSPECTUS
DELIVERY REQUIREMENTS OF SUCH ACT AND APPLICABLE SATE LAWS.

Certificates evidencing the Shares issued upoethecise of this Warrant may be issued without sutdgend if the Company
determines that such legend is not required unglgicable requirements of the Securities Act (idahg judicial interpretations and
pronouncements issued by the staff of the SECxapticable state laws.

6. Fractional Shares or Scriffhe Company may issue fractional Shares or seppesenting fractional Shares upon any
exercise of this Warrant.

7. No Rights as Stockholders; Transfer BooR#is Warrant does not entitle the Warrantholdearty voting rights or other
rights as a stockholder of the Company prior todate of exercise hereof.

8. Charges, Taxes and Expenséay third party (including transfer agent) isargransfer tax or other incidental expense in
respect of the issuance of certificates for Sharéise Warrantholder upon the exercise of this frshall be paid by the Warrantholder.

9. Transfer/Assignment

(A) This Warrant and all rights hereunder may not be, sssigned, or otherwise transferred withoutekigress written consent
of the Company. If and to the extent that the Canypprovides such consent (which shall be in the digcretion of the Company), this
Warrant and the rights hereunder shall be transteran whole or in part, upon the books of the @amy by the registered holder hereof in
person or by duly authorized attorney, and a newamashall be made and delivered by the Compafijreasame tenor and date as this
Warrant but registered in the name of one or nramesferees, upon surrender of this Warrant, dulipesed, to the office or agency of the
Company described in Section 4. All expenses (dtfen stock transfer taxes) and other chargeshpaym connection with the preparation,
execution and delivery of the new warrants purstathis Section 9 shall be paid by the Warrantaold
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(B) Until any transfer of this Warrant is made in tharmant registry, the Company may treat the War@dér as the absolute
owner hereof for all purposgstovided, however, that if and when this Warrant is properly assayimeblank, the Company may (but shall not
be obligated to) treat the bearer hereof as thelatesowner hereof for all purposes, notwithstagdiny notice to the contrary.

10. Exchange and Registry of Warranthis Warrant is exchangeable, upon the surreinelerof by the Warrantholder to the
Company, for a new warrant or warrants of like tesnad representing the right to purchase the sgygreegate number of Shares. The
Company shall maintain a registry showing the nameaddress of the Warrantholder as the registesielér of this Warrant. This Warrant
may be surrendered for exchange or exercise irrdaooe with its terms, at the office of the Compamd the Company shall be entitled to
rely in all respects, prior to written notice tetbontrary, upon such registry.

11. Loss, Theft, Destruction or Mutilation of Warrart/pon receipt by the Company of evidence reasgredilisfactory to it of
the loss, theft, destruction or mutilation of tiMarrant, and in the case of any such loss, thedestruction, upon receipt of a bond, indemnity
or security reasonably satisfactory to the Companyin the case of any such mutilation, upon sudeg and cancellation of this Warrant, the
Company shall make and deliver, in lieu of such, Istlen, destroyed or mutilated Warrant, a newrdrd of like tenor and representing the
right to purchase the same aggregate number o&Slkarprovided for in such lost, stolen, destrayedutilated Warrant.

12. Saturdays, Sundays, Holidays, ettthe last or appointed day for the taking of action or the expiration of any right
required or granted herein shall not be a busidagsthen such action may be taken or such rightlmeaexercised on the next succeeding day
that is a business day.

13. Adjustments and Other Right§he Exercise Price and the number of Sharesh#sug@on exercise of this Warrant shall be
subject to adjustment from time to time as follomsyvided, that if more than one subsection of this Secti8iis applicable to a single event,
the subsection shall be applied that producesattge$t adjustment and no single event shall causejastment under more than one
subsection of this Section 13 so as to result jplidation:

(A) Stock Splits, Subdivisions, Reclassifications onfbinations. If the Company shall (i) declare and pay a dinidier make a
distribution on its Common Stock in shares of ComrStock, (ii) subdivide or reclassify the outstamgdshares of Common Stock into a
greater number of shares, or (iii) combine or r&sifg the outstanding shares of Common Stock irgmaller number of shares, the number of
Shares issuable upon exercise of this Warrantedirie of the record date for such dividend orritistion or the effective date of such
subdivision, combination or reclassification sl proportionately adjusted so that the Warrant@vaddter such date shall be entitled to
purchase the number of shares of Common Stock vghich holder would have owned or been entitle@dteirve in respect of the shares of
Common Stock subject to this Warrant after suclk 8at this Warrant been exercised immediately poisuch date. In such event, the
Exercise Price in effect at the time of the reataite for such dividend or distribution or the effee date of such subdivision, combination or
reclassification shall be adjusted to the numbeaiabd by dividing (x) the product of (1) the numbé Shares issuable upon the exercise of
this Warrant before such adjustment and (2) therdise Price in effect immediately prior to the netor effective date, as the case may be, fo
the dividend, distribution, subdivision, combinatior reclassification giving rise to this adjustrday (y) the new number of Shares issuable
upon exercise of the Warrant determined pursuatittégmmediately preceding sentence.

(B) Business Combinationdn case of any Business Combination or reclasgifin of Common Stock (other than a
reclassification of Common Stock referred to intier13(A)), the Warrantholder’s right to receiviead®es upon exercise of this Warrant shall
be converted into the right to




exercise this Warrant to acquire the number ofeshaf stock or other securities or property (inslgccash) which the Common Stock issuable
(at the time of such Business Combination or radfigation) upon exercise of this Warrant immediagior to such Business Combination or
reclassification would have been entitled to regeeipon consummation of such Business Combinatisadaassification; and in any such case,
if necessary, the provisions set forth herein wétspect to the rights and interests thereaften@f¥arrantholder shall be appropriately adjuste
so as to be applicable, as nearly as may reasohabtp the Warrantholder's right to exercise Wiarrant in exchange for any shares of stock
or other securities or property pursuant to thimgeaph. Unless otherwise determined by the BoBRirectors in connection with a Business
Combination, in determining the kind and amounstotk, securities or the property receivable upa@rase of this Warrant following the
consummation of such Business Combination, if thddrs of Common Stock have the right to electkihd or amount of consideration
receivable upon consummation of such Business Quatibn, then the consideration that the Warran#radthall be entitled to receive upon
exercise shall be deemed to be the types and amofiobnsideration received by the majority oftallders of the shares of common stock tha
affirmatively make an election (or of all such hatsl if none make an election).

© Rounding of Calculations; Minimum Adjustmentall calculations under this Section 13 shall bad®a to the nearest one-
tenth (1/10th) of a cent or to the nearest one-hadtitl (1/100th) of a share, as the case may bg. pAavision of this Section 13 to the contrary
notwithstanding, no adjustment in the Exercised?oicthe number of Shares into which this Warrarixercisable shall be made if the amount
of such adjustment would be less than $0.01 orten# (1/10th) of a share of Common Stock, butsmsh amount shall be carried forward
and an adjustment with respect thereto shall beeratithe time of and together with any subsequdinsment which, together with such
amount and any other amount or amounts so cawigehfd, shall aggregate $0.01 or 1/10th of a sbh@ommon Stock, or more.

(D) Timing of Issuance of Additional Common Stock Ugoertain Adjustmentsin any case in which the provisions of this
Section 13 shall require that an adjustment shelbme effective immediately after a record dateafoevent, the Company may defer until the
occurrence of such event (i) issuing to the Wahmalder of this Warrant exercised after such rectaig and before the occurrence of such
event the additional shares of Common Stock isguafpbn such exercise by reason of the adjustmeguiresl by such event over and above
shares of Common Stock issuable upon such exdyefeee giving effect to such adjustment and (iipg to such Warrantholder any amount
of cash in lieu of a fractional share of Commonc&i@rovided, however, that the Company upon request shall deliver th $/arrantholder
due bill or other appropriate instrument evidenangh Warrantholder’s right to receive such add#ishares, and such cash, upon the
occurrence of the event requiring such adjustment.

(E) Other Events The Exercise Price or the number of Sharesvititich this Warrant is exercisable shall not be sidid solely
as a result of a change in the par value of ther@@mStock or a change in the jurisdiction of in@yggion of the Company.

(F) Statement Regarding Adjustment#/henever the Exercise Price or the number ofe&hiato which this Warrant is
exercisable shall be adjusted as provided in Sedi®) the Company shall forthwith file at the pipad office of the Company a statement
showing in reasonable detail the facts requirinthsadjustment and the Exercise Price that shall kffect and the number of Shares into
which this Warrant shall be exercisable after sagjustment.

(G) Notice of Adjustment Eventin the event that the Company shall proposeke &y action of the type described in this
Section 13 (but only if the action of the type d#ésed in this Section 13 would result in an adjustinin the Exercise Price or the number of
Shares into which this Warrant is




exercisable or a change in the type of securitiggaperty to be delivered upon exercise of thig\afat), the Company shall give notice to the
Warrantholder, in the manner set forth in Sectid(F}, which notice shall specify the record dateniy, with respect to any such action anc
approximate date on which such action is to takel Such notice shall also set forth the factis mispect thereto as shall be reasonably
necessary to indicate the effect on the ExerciseRind the number, kind or class of shares or atheurities or property which shall be
deliverable upon exercise of this Warrant. Failorgive such notice, or any defect therein, shallaffect the legality or validity of any such
action.

H) Adjustment Rules Any adjustments pursuant to this Section 13 d¥®linade successively whenever an event referred to
herein shall occur. If an adjustment in Exercisged®made hereunder would reduce the Exercise Rriaa amount below par value of the
Common Stock, then such adjustment in ExerciseePnigde hereunder shall reduce the Exercise Prite foar value of the Common Stock.

14, Governing Law This Warrant and all rights, obligations and liabilities hereunder shall be governed by and construed
under the laws of the State of South Carolina withat giving effect to conflicts of laws principles.

15. Dispute Resolution

(A) General. Any claim of, or dispute or controversy involvirthe Company or the Warrantholder (eachPafty " and,

collectively the “Parties”) arising out of, connected with, or relating tost Warrant, the subject matter of this Warrastfarmation or
execution, or any right or obligation created hig #Warrant, irrespective of the legal theory ol underlying such claim, dispute, or
controversy (including tort or statutory claims)ispute”), shall be resolved in accordance with this Seti5.

(B) Dispute Notice The Party asserting the Dispute will give promgtice to the other Party describing the Dispnte i
reasonable detail @ispute Notic€).

© Informal Proceedings Prior to the initiation of formal dispute resttun procedures, the Parties shall first attempeswlve
their dispute informally. Towards that end, prolpptfter receipt of the Dispute Notice, the Partfarsonally or through party representatives
will negotiate in good faith to resolve the Dispufehe specific format for the discussions shalldfeto the discretion of the designated
representatives.

(D) Formal Proceedings Formal proceedings for the resolution of a disgaursuant to this Section 15 may not be commence
until the earlier of:

0] the Parties or designated Party representativeduating in good faith that amicable resolution thgh continued
negotiation of the matter does not appear likety; o

(i) 30 business days from the date of the Dispute Bot{@his period shall be deemed to run notwithditagnany
claim that the process described in this Sectios nad followed or completed).
(E) Mandatory Arbitration .

() Upon demand of any Party (whether made beforeter adstitution of any judicial proceeding), angplute shall be

referred to arbitration, and the final decisiondered shall be binding upon the Parties to thissAgrent. Disputes include, without
limitation, tort




claims, counterclaims, securities law claims, cacttclaims, disputes as to whether a matter isesubg binding arbitration, claims
brought as class actions, or claims arising owtrafonnected with the transaction reflected by\afarrant.

(i) To the extent not specified or modified hereafébjtration shall be conducted under and goveryetthd
Commercial Arbitration Rules (theArbitration Rules’) promulgated by the American Arbitration Assoat (* AAA™), the
Securities Arbitration Supplementary Proceduresmuigated by the AAA, and Chapter 48 of Title 15l Code of Laws of South
Carolina, as amended (the South Carolina Uniforimtéation Act). All arbitration hearings shall benducted in Greenville County,
South Carolina. The Expedited Procedures set fortihie Arbitration Rules shall be applicable taicls of less than $100,000. All
applicable statutes of limitation shall apply tdispute. A judgment upon the award may be enteredy court having jurisdiction
over the Party.

(iii) Where the claim amounts to or exceeds $100,00@&rthigation shall be conducted before three atuts, who
shall be licensed attorneys in the State of Soattokha. All plaintiffs/claimants in the actionalhbe permitted the selection of one
arbitrator and all defendants/respondents shabdmmitted the selection of the second arbitrafbior purposes of selection of the
arbitrators, third-party, counter, or cross claitsashall not be recognized). The two selectedratbis shall then select the third
arbitrator.

(iv) Where the claim is less than $100,000, the artrathall be conducted before a single arbitrattig shall be a
licensed attorney in the State of South Caroliflais arbitrator shall be selected by mutual agregrogthe Parties.

(3] Litigation . In the event that the provisions hereof reqgifdimding arbitration shall for any reason be degmmeenforceable
(or if no Party demands that a Dispute be submttidiinding arbitration), the Parties agree afed:

0] Consent to Jurisdiction. Each Party consentsdaqgutisdiction of the State Courts of Greenvilleu@ity, South
Carolina, or the Federal Courts of South Carolotated in Greenville County. Each Party expreasly irrevocably consents to the
jurisdiction of the aforesaid courts and waives dafenses of lack of personal jurisdiction, improgenue, or forum non conveniens.

(i) Exclusive Selection of Forum The parties agree that any disputes between (imeoontract, tort, statute, or any
other legal theory including claims of fraud, suggsion, misrepresentation, and fraud in the indecgnor any disputes arising under
this Agreement shall bexclusivelyresolved in the State Courts of Greenville CouStyuth Carolina, or the Federal Courts of South
Carolina located in Greenville County.

(iii) Waiver of Right to Jury Trial. Each Party waivlsit respective right to a trial by jury with resp& any Dispute
Each Party acknowledges and understands that #iienis a material inducement to enter into afmess relationship, that each has
relied on this waiver in entering into this Warraamd that each will continue to rely on the waiwvetheir related future dealings.
Each Party represents and warrants that each dakdapportunity of reviewing this jury waiver witegal counsel, and that each
knowingly and voluntarily waives its jury trial figs.

(G) Expiration. The foregoing obligations, contained in thist®ec15, shall indefinitely survive the expirationearlier
termination of this Warrant.




16. Binding Effect. This Warrant shall be binding upon any successoeassigns of the Company and the successors and
permitted assigns of the Warrantholder.

17. Amendments This Warrant may be amended and the observareeydierm of this Warrant may be waived only with t
written consent of the Company and the Warrantholde

18. Notices. Any notice, request, instruction or other docutiterbe given hereunder by any party to the oth#be in writing
and will be deemed to have been duly given (aherdite of delivery if delivered personally, orfagsimile, upon confirmation of receipt, or
(b) on the second business day following the dhthspatch if delivered by a recognized next dayrr service. All notices hereunder shal
delivered to the addresses set forth below, oryauntsto such other instructions as may be designateriting by the party to receive such
notice:

If to the Company:

Scio Diamond Technology Corporation
411 University Ridge Suite D
Greenville, SC 29601

(Address of principal executive offices)

If to the Warrantholder:

Theodorus Strous
Urbaniza¢éo do Barrocal 1
Rua d Tomilho, A22
8365-211 Péra

Portugal

19. Acceptance Receipt of this Warrant by the Warrantholdedist@nstitute acceptance of and agreement to gheterms
and conditions contained herein.

20. Entire Agreement This Warrant is issued in full satisfaction o tBompany’s obligation to issue warrants pursuaite
Lease. This Warrant and the forms attached heweitain the entire agreement between the Partilsrespect to the subject matter hereof
supersede all prior and contemporaneous arrangeroenhdertakings with respect thereto. This Wamaay be executed and delivered in one
or more counterparts (including by means of telexfacsimile or emailed signature pages), anyaivehich need not contain the signatures
of more than one party, but all such counterpaken together shall constitute one and the sanseagnt.

21. Severability If any term, provision, covenant, clause, phrasad, or condition of this Agreement or the Waltre held by a
court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, gkg, or unenforceable, then such term, provisionenant, clause, phrase, word or condition
shall be ineffective to the extent of such invalidillegality or unenforceability, but the remagrdof the Agreement and/or Warrant, as
applicable (including, as an example and withauithtion, the remainder of a provision that corgaam unenforceable clause, phrase or word
shall remain in full force and effect to the fullextent permitted by law and shall be in no wapained or invalidated.
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[Form of Notice of Exercise]
Date:

TO: Scio Diamond Technology Corporation

RE: Election to Purchase Common Stock

The undersigned, pursuant to the provisions s#t farthe attached Warrant, hereby agrees to sibesfor and purchase the numbe
shares of the Common Stock set forth below covbyeslich Warrant. The undersigned, in accordantie 8éction 4 of the Warrant, hereby
agrees to pay the aggregate Exercise Price forshanes of Common Stock in the manner set forttmMaeA new warrant evidencing the

remaining shares of Common Stock covered by suctiaiia but not yet subscribed for and purchaseahyf should be issued in the name se
forth below.

Number of Shares of Common Stc

Aggregate Exercise Pric

Holder:
By:
Name:
Title:
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has caused thisr&iato be duly executed by a duly authorized effic

Dated:

COMPANY: SCIO DIAMOND TECHNOLOGY
CORPORATION

By:

Name: Michael McMahor
Title:  Chief Executive Office

Attest:

By:

Name: Jonathan Pfol
Title:  Chief Financial Office

AGREED AND ACKNOWLEDGED BY
WARRANTHOLDER:

By:
Name: Theodorus Strol

[Signature Page to Warrant]
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Exhibit 10.16

THIS AGREEMENT IS SUBJECT TO ARBITRATION PURSUANT T O THE SOUTH CAROLINA UNIFORM ARBITRATION
ACT: SC CODE ANN. 81548-10ET SEQ. AND THE FEDERAL ARBITRATION ACT: 9 U.S.C.1 ET SEOQ.

THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED BY THIS INSTRUMENT HAVREOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF
1933, AS AMENDED, OR THE SECURITIES LAWS OF ANY STE AND MAY NOT BE TRANSFERRED, SOLD OR OTHERWISE
DISPOSED OF EXCEPT WHILE A REGISTRATION STATEMENTERATING THERETO IS IN EFFECT UNDER SUCH ACT AND
APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS OR THE COMPANY, WN ITS REQUEST, RECEIVES AN OPINION OF COUNSEL FOR
THE HOLDER OF THIS INSTRUMENT ACCEPTABLE TO THE CORANY STATING THAT SUCH SALE, TRANSFER OR OTHER
DISPOSITION IS EXEMPT FROM THE REGISTRATION AND PRBPECTUS DELIVERY REQUIREMENTS OF SUCH ACT AND
APPLICABLE STATE LAWS. THIS INSTRUMENT IS ISSUEDWJECT TO THE RESTRICTIONS ON TRANSFER SET FORTH
HEREIN AND SECURITIES REPRESENTED BY THIS INSTRUMENMAY NOT BE SOLD OR OTHERWISE TRANSFERRED
EXCEPT IN COMPLIANCE WITH SUCH RESTRICTIONS. ANYALE OR OTHER TRANSFER NOT IN COMPLIANCE WITH THIS
WARRANT WILL BE VOID.

WARRANT
to purchase

150,000
Shares of Common Stock of

Scio Diamond Technology Corporation

Deemed Issue Date: March 25, 2013
1. Definitions. Unless the context otherwise requires, when hseein the following terms shall have the meaninggated.
“ AAA" has the meaning set forth in Section 15.
“ Arbitration Rules’ has the meaning set forth in Section 15.
“ Board of Directors’ means the board of directors of the Company uidiclg any duly authorized committee thereof.

“ Business Combinatiohmeans a merger, consolidation, statutory shachange or similar transaction that requires theam of
the Company’s stockholders.

“ b usiness day means any day except Saturday, Sunday and anymdafioh banking institutions in the State of Newrk'generally
are authorized or required by law or other govemtaleactions to close.

“ Charter” means, with respect to any Person, its certifioat@ticles of incorporation, articles of associatior similar organization
document.

“ Common Stockmeans the common stock of the Company.




“ Company’ means Scio Diamond Technology Corporation, a aveorporation.
“Deemed Issue Datetnheans March 25, 2013.

“ Dispute” has the meaning set forth in Section 15.

“ Dispute Notic€ has the meaning set forth in Section 15.

“ Exchange Act means the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, orsartgessor statute, and the rules and regulatronsytgated
thereunder.

“ Exercise Pricé means $1.60.

“ Expiration Time" has the meaning set forth in Section 3.
“ Party” has the meaning set forth in Section 15.

“ Parties” has the meaning set forth in Section 15.

“ Person” has the meaning given to it in Section 3(a)(9)h&f Exchange Act and as used in Sections 13(dj@)L4(d)(2) of the
Exchange Act.

“ Regulatory Approval$ with respect to the Warrantholder, means, to thertapplicable and required to permit the Warralaltr tc
exercise this Warrant for shares of Common Stocktarown such Common Stock without the Warrantholsieng in violation of applicable
law, rule or regulation, the receipt of any necesspprovals and authorizations of, filings andisgrgtions with, notifications to, or expiration
or termination of any applicable waiting period endhe Hart-Scott-Rodino Antitrust Improvementd A£1976, and the rules and regulations
thereunder, the Securities Act, and applicable staturities laws.

“ SEC” means the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission

“ Securities Act means the Securities Act of 1933, or any sucaestsute, and the rules and regulations promutgtitereunder.

“ Shares’ has the meaning set forth in Section 2.

“ Warrantholder’ has the meaning set forth in Section 2.

“ Warrant” means this Warrant.

2. Number of Shares; Exercise PricEhis certifies that, for value received, the usdgmed warrantholder whose name appear
on the signature page hereto or its permitted asgitpe “Warrantholder”) is entitled, upon the terms and subject to thsting and other
conditions hereinafter set forth, to acquire frér@a Company, in whole or in part, after the recefpll applicable Regulatory Approvals, if a
up to an aggregate number of 50,000 fully paid momtassessable shares of Common Stock, at a pungheseer share of Common Stock

equal to the Exercise Price. The number of shafr€mmon Stock (the Shares’) and the Exercise Price are subject to adjustrasnt
provided herein, and all references to “Common IgtdShares” and “Exercise Price” herein shall kethed to
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include any such adjustment or series of adjustsent

3. Exercise of Warrant; TermSubject to the restrictions on exercise containgtis Warrant, to the extent permitted by
applicable laws and regulations, the right to pasghthe Shares represented by this Warrant isisable, to the extent vested pursuant to the
terms of Section 3, in whole or in part by the Vdatholder, at any time or from time to time afteg £xecution and delivery of this Warrant by
the Company on the date hereof, but in no eveet thtin 5:00 p.m., New York City time 15 days aftex fifth anniversary of the Deemed
Issue Date (the Expiration Time’), by (A) the surrender of this Warrant and NotafeExercise annexed hereto, duly completed andugzd
on behalf of the Warrantholder, at the principad@xive office of the Company (or such other officeagency of the Company in the United
States as it may designate by notice in writintheoWarrantholder at the address of the Warrantgn@gdpearing on the books of the Compe
and (B) payment of the Exercise Price for the Sh#rereby purchased by tendering in cash, by mettdr cashier's check payable to the ordel
of the Company, or by wire transfer of immediataailable funds to an account designated by thepgaom

If the Warrantholder does not exercise this Wariaits entirety, the Warrantholder will be entitleo receive from the Company
within a reasonable time a new warrant in subsaliptidentical form for the purchase of that numb&Bhares equal to the difference betweer
the number of Shares subject to this Warrant aadhtimber of Shares as to which this Warrant isxeecesed. Notwithstanding anything in
this Warrant to the contrary, the Warrantholdeebgracknowledges and agrees that its exercisef\tarrant for Shares is subject to the
conditions that (x) the Warrantholder will havesfireceived any applicable Regulatory Approvals @hdhe exercise is subject to a valid
exemption from registration under federal and ayalie state securities laws.

In connection with any exercise of the Warrant, k&fatholder agrees to provide the Company with softirmation and confirmatior
as the Company may reasonably request in ordéhéo€ompany to confirm that the exercise is sulifeet valid exemption from registration
under federal and applicable state securities fvisthat the Warrantholder is making an informetisien to exercise the Warrant.

The Warrantholder represents and warrants thaMduweantholder is an “accredited investor” as saehtis defined in Regulation D,
Rule 501, and is acquiring the Warrant, and anye&shiasued pursuant to the Warrant, for investraedtnot for distribution or resale to others
in violation of federal or state securities laws.

4, Issuance of Shares; Authorization; Listin@ertificates for Shares issued upon exercighisfwWarrant will be issued in su
name or names as the Warrantholder may designdteiiroe delivered to such named Person or Peradtiién a reasonable time after the
rights represented by this Warrant shall have Iseegxercised. The Company hereby represents amdnisthat any Shares issued upon the
exercise of this Warrant in accordance with thesjsions of Section 4 hereof will be duly and vajidiuthorized and issued, fully paid and
nonassessable and free from all taxes, liens amdjeh (other than liens or charges created by tweamholder, income and franchise taxes
incurred in connection with the exercise of the kat or taxes in respect of any transfer occurcimgtemporaneously therewith). The
Company agrees that the Shares so issued willéraetbto have been issued to the Warrantholder the @lose of business on the date on
which this Warrant and payment of the ExercisedPai@ delivered to the Company in accordance Wwetdrms of this Warrant,
notwithstanding that the stock transfer books ef@mpany may then be closed or certificates reptegy such Shares may not be actually
delivered on such date. The Company will at alles reserve and keep available, out of its autbdizut unissued Common Stock, solely for
the purpose of providing for the exercise of thiarvéint, the aggregate number of shares of Comnuuk ten
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issuable upon exercise of this Warrant at any tifhéhe Common Stock is listed on a national siies exchange at the time of exercise of
Warrant, then the Company will use good faith éfféo cause the Shares issuable upon exercisesofdrrant to be listed on such national
securities exchange.

5. Legends The Warrantholder agrees to the imprinting t#geend on the Shares issued upon the exercisésoMarrant
pursuant to this Agreement in substantially théofeing form:

THE ISSUANCE OF THE SHARES OF COMMON STOCK REPRESHD BY THIS CERTIFICATE HAS NOT BEEN
REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933 OR APCABLE STATE LAWS, AND THESE SHARES OF
COMMON STOCK MAY NOT BE SOLD, TRANSFERRED, ASSIGNEDFFERED, PLEDGED OR OTHERWISE
DISTRIBUTED UNLESS THERE IS AN EFFECTIVE REGISTRADN STATEMENT UNDER SUCH ACT AND/OR SUCH
LAWS COVERING THIS CERTIFICATE OR THE COMPANY, UPON'S REQUEST, RECEIVES AN OPINION OF COUNSEL
FOR THE HOLDER OF THIS CERTIFICATE ACCEPTABLE TO BHICOMPANY STATING THAT SUCH SALE, TRANSFER,
ASSIGNMENT, OFFER, PLEDGE OR OTHER DISTRIBUTION EXEMPT FROM THE REGISTRATION AND PROSPECTUS
DELIVERY REQUIREMENTS OF SUCH ACT AND APPLICABLE SATE LAWS.

Certificates evidencing the Shares issued upoethecise of this Warrant may be issued without sutdgend if the Company
determines that such legend is not required unglgicable requirements of the Securities Act (idahg judicial interpretations and
pronouncements issued by the staff of the SECxapticable state laws.

6. Fractional Shares or Scriffhe Company may issue fractional Shares or seppesenting fractional Shares upon any
exercise of this Warrant.

7. No Rights as Stockholders; Transfer BooR#is Warrant does not entitle the Warrantholdearty voting rights or other
rights as a stockholder of the Company prior todate of exercise hereof.

8. Charges, Taxes and Expenséay third party (including transfer agent) isargransfer tax or other incidental expense in
respect of the issuance of certificates for Sharéise Warrantholder upon the exercise of this frshall be paid by the Warrantholder.

9. Transfer/Assignment

(A) This Warrant and all rights hereunder may not be, sssigned, or otherwise transferred withoutekigress written consent
of the Company. If and to the extent that the Canypprovides such consent (which shall be in the digcretion of the Company), this
Warrant and the rights hereunder shall be transteran whole or in part, upon the books of the @amy by the registered holder hereof in
person or by duly authorized attorney, and a newamashall be made and delivered by the Compafijreasame tenor and date as this
Warrant but registered in the name of one or nramesferees, upon surrender of this Warrant, dulipesed, to the office or agency of the
Company described in Section 4. All expenses (dtfen stock transfer taxes) and other chargeshpaym connection with the preparation,
execution and delivery of the new warrants purstathis Section 9 shall be paid by the Warrantaold
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(B) Until any transfer of this Warrant is made in tharmant registry, the Company may treat the War@dér as the absolute
owner hereof for all purposgstovided, however, that if and when this Warrant is properly assayimeblank, the Company may (but shall not
be obligated to) treat the bearer hereof as thelatesowner hereof for all purposes, notwithstagdiny notice to the contrary.

10. Exchange and Registry of Warranthis Warrant is exchangeable, upon the surreinelerof by the Warrantholder to the
Company, for a new warrant or warrants of like tesnad representing the right to purchase the sgygreegate number of Shares. The
Company shall maintain a registry showing the nameaddress of the Warrantholder as the registesielér of this Warrant. This Warrant
may be surrendered for exchange or exercise irrdaooe with its terms, at the office of the Compamd the Company shall be entitled to
rely in all respects, prior to written notice tetbontrary, upon such registry.

11. Loss, Theft, Destruction or Mutilation of Warrart/pon receipt by the Company of evidence reasgredilisfactory to it of
the loss, theft, destruction or mutilation of tiMarrant, and in the case of any such loss, thedestruction, upon receipt of a bond, indemnity
or security reasonably satisfactory to the Companyin the case of any such mutilation, upon sudeg and cancellation of this Warrant, the
Company shall make and deliver, in lieu of such, Istlen, destroyed or mutilated Warrant, a newrdrd of like tenor and representing the
right to purchase the same aggregate number o&Slkarprovided for in such lost, stolen, destrayedutilated Warrant.

12. Saturdays, Sundays, Holidays, ettthe last or appointed day for the taking of action or the expiration of any right
required or granted herein shall not be a busidagsthen such action may be taken or such rightlmeaexercised on the next succeeding day
that is a business day.

13. Adjustments and Other Right§he Exercise Price and the number of Sharesh#sug@on exercise of this Warrant shall be
subject to adjustment from time to time as follomsyvided, that if more than one subsection of this Secti8iis applicable to a single event,
the subsection shall be applied that producesattge$t adjustment and no single event shall causejastment under more than one
subsection of this Section 13 so as to result jplidation:

(A) Stock Splits, Subdivisions, Reclassifications onfbinations. If the Company shall (i) declare and pay a dinidier make a
distribution on its Common Stock in shares of ComrStock, (ii) subdivide or reclassify the outstamgdshares of Common Stock into a
greater number of shares, or (iii) combine or r&sifg the outstanding shares of Common Stock irgmaller number of shares, the number of
Shares issuable upon exercise of this Warrantedirie of the record date for such dividend orritistion or the effective date of such
subdivision, combination or reclassification sl proportionately adjusted so that the Warrant@vaddter such date shall be entitled to
purchase the number of shares of Common Stock vghich holder would have owned or been entitle@dteirve in respect of the shares of
Common Stock subject to this Warrant after suclk 8at this Warrant been exercised immediately poisuch date. In such event, the
Exercise Price in effect at the time of the reataite for such dividend or distribution or the effee date of such subdivision, combination or
reclassification shall be adjusted to the numbeaiabd by dividing (x) the product of (1) the numbé Shares issuable upon the exercise of
this Warrant before such adjustment and (2) therdise Price in effect immediately prior to the netor effective date, as the case may be, fo
the dividend, distribution, subdivision, combinatior reclassification giving rise to this adjustrday (y) the new number of Shares issuable
upon exercise of the Warrant determined pursuatittégmmediately preceding sentence.

(B) Business Combinationdn case of any Business Combination or reclasgifin of Common Stock (other than a
reclassification of Common Stock referred to intier13(A)), the Warrantholder’s right to receiviead®es upon exercise of this Warrant shall
be converted into the right to




exercise this Warrant to acquire the number ofeshaf stock or other securities or property (inslgccash) which the Common Stock issuable
(at the time of such Business Combination or radfigation) upon exercise of this Warrant immediafior to such Business Combination or
reclassification would have been entitled to regeipon consummation of such Business Combinatisadaassification; and in any such case,
if necessary, the provisions set forth herein wétspect to the rights and interests thereaften@f¥arrantholder shall be appropriately adjuste
so as to be applicable, as nearly as may reasohabtp the Warrantholder’s right to exercise Wiarrant in exchange for any shares of stock
or other securities or property pursuant to thimgeaph. Unless otherwise determined by the BoBRirectors in connection with a Business
Combination, in determining the kind and amounstotk, securities or the property receivable upa@rase of this Warrant following the
consummation of such Business Combination, if tddrs of Common Stock have the right to electkihd or amount of consideration
receivable upon consummation of such Business Quatibn, then the consideration that the Warran#raodthall be entitled to receive upon
exercise shall be deemed to be the types and amofiobnsideration received by the majority oftallders of the shares of common stock tha
affirmatively make an election (or of all such hetsl if none make an election).

© Rounding of Calculations; Minimum Adjustmentall calculations under this Section 13 shall bad®a to the nearest one-
tenth (1/10th) of a cent or to the nearest one-hadtitl (1/100th) of a share, as the case may bg. pAavision of this Section 13 to the contrary
notwithstanding, no adjustment in the Exercised?oicthe number of Shares into which this Warrarixercisable shall be made if the amount
of such adjustment would be less than $0.01 orten# (1/10th) of a share of Common Stock, butsmsh amount shall be carried forward
and an adjustment with respect thereto shall beeratithe time of and together with any subsequdinsment which, together with such
amount and any other amount or amounts so cawigehfd, shall aggregate $0.01 or 1/10th of a sbh@ommon Stock, or more.

(D) Timing of Issuance of Additional Common Stock Ugoertain Adjustmentsin any case in which the provisions of this
Section 13 shall require that an adjustment shelbme effective immediately after a record dateafoevent, the Company may defer until the
occurrence of such event (i) issuing to the Wahmalder of this Warrant exercised after such rectaig and before the occurrence of such
event the additional shares of Common Stock isguafpbn such exercise by reason of the adjustmeguiresl by such event over and above
shares of Common Stock issuable upon such exdyefeee giving effect to such adjustment and (iipg to such Warrantholder any amount
of cash in lieu of a fractional share of Commonc&i@rovided, however, that the Company upon request shall deliver th $/arrantholder
due bill or other appropriate instrument evidenangh Warrantholder’s right to receive such add#ishares, and such cash, upon the
occurrence of the event requiring such adjustment.

(E) Other Events The Exercise Price or the number of Sharesvititich this Warrant is exercisable shall not be sidid solely
as a result of a change in the par value of ther@@mStock or a change in the jurisdiction of in@yggion of the Company.

(F) Statement Regarding Adjustment#/henever the Exercise Price or the number ofe&hiato which this Warrant is
exercisable shall be adjusted as provided in Sedi®) the Company shall forthwith file at the pipad office of the Company a statement
showing in reasonable detail the facts requirinthsadjustment and the Exercise Price that shall kffect and the number of Shares into
which this Warrant shall be exercisable after sagjustment.

(G) Notice of Adjustment Eventin the event that the Company shall proposeke &y action of the type described in this
Section 13 (but only if the action of the type d#ésed in this Section 13 would result in an adjustinin the Exercise Price or the number of
Shares into which this Warrant is




exercisable or a change in the type of securitiggaperty to be delivered upon exercise of thig\afat), the Company shall give notice to the
Warrantholder, in the manner set forth in Sectid(F}, which notice shall specify the record dateniy, with respect to any such action anc
approximate date on which such action is to takel Such notice shall also set forth the factis mispect thereto as shall be reasonably
necessary to indicate the effect on the ExerciseRind the number, kind or class of shares or atheurities or property which shall be
deliverable upon exercise of this Warrant. Failorgive such notice, or any defect therein, shallaffect the legality or validity of any such
action.

(H) Adjustment Rules Any adjustments pursuant to this Section 13 d¥®linade successively whenever an event referred to
herein shall occur. If an adjustment in Exercisged®made hereunder would reduce the Exercise Rriaa amount below par value of the
Common Stock, then such adjustment in ExerciseePnigde hereunder shall reduce the Exercise Prite foar value of the Common Stock.

14, Governing Law This Warrant and all rights, obligations and liabilities hereunder shall be governed by and construed
under the laws of the State of South Carolina withat giving effect to conflicts of laws principles.

15. Dispute Resolution

(A) General. Any claim of, or dispute or controversy involvirthe Company or the Warrantholder (eachPafty " and,

collectively the “Parties”) arising out of, connected with, or relating tost Warrant, the subject matter of this Warrastfarmation or
execution, or any right or obligation created hig #Warrant, irrespective of the legal theory ol underlying such claim, dispute, or
controversy (including tort or statutory claims)ispute”), shall be resolved in accordance with this Seti5.

(B) Dispute Notice The Party asserting the Dispute will give promgtice to the other Party describing the Dispnte i
reasonable detail @ispute Notic€).

© Informal Proceedings Prior to the initiation of formal dispute resttun procedures, the Parties shall first attempeswlve
their dispute informally. Towards that end, prolpptfter receipt of the Dispute Notice, the Partfarsonally or through party representatives
will negotiate in good faith to resolve the Dispufehe specific format for the discussions shalldfeto the discretion of the designated
representatives.

(D) Formal Proceedings Formal proceedings for the resolution of a disgaursuant to this Section 15 may not be commence
until the earlier of:

0] the Parties or designated Party representativeduating in good faith that amicable resolution thgh continued
negotiation of the matter does not appear likety; o

(i) 30 business days from the date of the Dispute Bot{@his period shall be deemed to run notwithditagnany
claim that the process described in this Sectios nad followed or completed).
(E) Mandatory Arbitration .

() Upon demand of any Party (whether made beforeter adstitution of any judicial proceeding), angplute shall be

referred to arbitration, and the final decisiondered shall be binding upon the Parties to thissAgrent. Disputes include, without
limitation, tort




claims, counterclaims, securities law claims, cacttclaims, disputes as to whether a matter isesuby binding arbitration, claims
brought as class actions, or claims arising owtrafonnected with the transaction reflected by\afarrant.

(i) To the extent not specified or modified hereafébjtration shall be conducted under and goveryetthd
Commercial Arbitration Rules (theArbitration Rules’) promulgated by the American Arbitration Assoat (* AAA™), the
Securities Arbitration Supplementary Proceduresmuigated by the AAA, and Chapter 48 of Title 15l Code of Laws of South
Carolina, as amended (the South Carolina Uniforimtéation Act). All arbitration hearings shall benducted in Greenville County,
South Carolina. The Expedited Procedures set fortihie Arbitration Rules shall be applicable taicls of less than $100,000. All
applicable statutes of limitation shall apply tdispute. A judgment upon the award may be enteredy court having jurisdiction
over the Party.

(iii) Where the claim amounts to or exceeds $100,00@&rthigation shall be conducted before three atuts, who
shall be licensed attorneys in the State of Soattokha. All plaintiffs/claimants in the actionalhbe permitted the selection of one
arbitrator and all defendants/respondents shabdmmitted the selection of the second arbitrafbior purposes of selection of the
arbitrators, third-party, counter, or cross claitsashall not be recognized). The two selectedratbis shall then select the third
arbitrator.

(iv) Where the claim is less than $100,000, the artrathall be conducted before a single arbitrattig shall be a
licensed attorney in the State of South Caroliflais arbitrator shall be selected by mutual agregrogthe Parties.

(3] Litigation . In the event that the provisions hereof reqgifdimding arbitration shall for any reason be degmmeenforceable
(or if no Party demands that a Dispute be submttidiinding arbitration), the Parties agree afed:

0] Consent to Jurisdiction. Each Party consentsdaqgutisdiction of the State Courts of Greenvilleu@ity, South
Carolina, or the Federal Courts of South Carolotated in Greenville County. Each Party expreasly irrevocably consents to the
jurisdiction of the aforesaid courts and waives dafenses of lack of personal jurisdiction, improgenue, or forum non conveniens.

(i) Exclusive Selection of Forum The parties agree that any disputes between (imeoontract, tort, statute, or any
other legal theory including claims of fraud, suggsion, misrepresentation, and fraud in the indecgnor any disputes arising under
this Agreement shall bexclusivelyresolved in the State Courts of Greenville CouStyuth Carolina, or the Federal Courts of South
Carolina located in Greenville County.

(iii) Waiver of Right to Jury Trial. Each Party waivlsit respective right to a trial by jury with resp& any Dispute
Each Party acknowledges and understands that #iienis a material inducement to enter into afmess relationship, that each has
relied on this waiver in entering into this Warraamd that each will continue to rely on the waiwvetheir related future dealings.
Each Party represents and warrants that each dakdapportunity of reviewing this jury waiver witegal counsel, and that each
knowingly and voluntarily waives its jury trial figs.

(G) Expiration. The foregoing obligations, contained in thist®ec15, shall indefinitely survive the expirationearlier
termination of this Warrant.




16. Binding Effect. This Warrant shall be binding upon any successoeassigns of the Company and the successors and
permitted assigns of the Warrantholder.

17. Amendments This Warrant may be amended and the observareeydierm of this Warrant may be waived only with t
written consent of the Company and the Warrantholde

18. Notices. Any notice, request, instruction or other docutiterbe given hereunder by any party to the oth#be in writing
and will be deemed to have been duly given (aherdite of delivery if delivered personally, orfagsimile, upon confirmation of receipt, or
(b) on the second business day following the dhthspatch if delivered by a recognized next dayrr service. All notices hereunder shal
delivered to the addresses set forth below, oryauntsto such other instructions as may be designateriting by the party to receive such
notice:

If to the Company:

Scio Diamond Technology Corporation
411 University Ridge Suite D
Greenville, SC 29601

(Address of principal executive offices)

If to the Warrantholder:

Filip De Weerdt
Gildelaan 7
2960 Brecht
Belgium

19. Acceptance Receipt of this Warrant by the Warrantholder shafistitute acceptance of and agreement to alleof th
terms and conditions contained herein.

20. Entire Agreement This Warrant is issued in full satisfaction o tBompany’s obligation to issue warrants pursuaite
Lease. This Warrant and the forms attached heweitain the entire agreement between the Partilsrespect to the subject matter hereof
supersede all prior and contemporaneous arrangeroenhdertakings with respect thereto. This Wamaay be executed and delivered in one
or more counterparts (including by means of telexhfacsimile or emailed signature pages), anyafrvehich need not contain the signatures
of more than one party, but all such counterpaken together shall constitute one and the sanseagnt.

21. Severability If any term, provision, covenant, clause, phrasad, or condition of this Agreement or the Waltre held by a
court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, di&, or unenforceable, then such term, provisiongoant, clause, phrase, word or condition
shall be ineffective to the extent of such invalidillegality or unenforceability, but the remagrdof the Agreement and/or Warrant, as
applicable (including, as an example and withauithtion, the remainder of a provision that corgaam unenforceable clause, phrase or word
shall remain in full force and effect to the fullextent permitted by law and shall be in no wapained or invalidated.
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[Form of Notice of Exercise]
Date:

TO: Scio Diamond Technology Corporation
RE: Election to Purchase Common Stock

The undersigned, pursuant to the provisions s#t farthe attached Warrant, hereby agrees to sibesfor and purchase the numbe
shares of the Common Stock set forth below covbyeslich Warrant. The undersigned, in accordantte 8éction 4 of the Warrant, hereby

agrees to pay the aggregate Exercise Price forshanes of Common Stock in the manner set forttmMaeA new warrant evidencing the

remaining shares of Common Stock covered by suctiaiia but not yet subscribed for and purchaseahyf should be issued in the name se
forth below.

Number of Shares of Common Stc

Aggregate Exercise Pric

Holder:
By:
Name:
Title:
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has caused thisr&iato be duly executed by a duly authorized effic

Dated:

COMPANY: SCIO DIAMOND TECHNOLOGY CORPORATION

By:

Name: Michael McMahor
Title: Chief Executive Office

Attest:

By:

Name: Jonathan Pfofr
Title: Chief Financial Office

AGREED AND ACKNOWLEDGED BY
WARRANTHOLDER:

By:
Name: Filip De Weerc

[Signature Page to Warrant]
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Exhibit 10.17
CONSULTING AGREEMENT

This Agreement (“Agreement”), dated March 6, 20%3ntered into by and between Theodorus Stroresident of Portugal
(“Strous”), and Scio Diamond Technology CorporatiarNevada corporation (“Scio” or the “Company”).

RECITALS
WHEREAS, the Company produces laboratory-creatachdnd materials for various industrial, technolagy other applications;

WHEREAS, since its inception in 2011 the Company jmablicly expressed its intention to pursue oppaties for its diamond
producing technology in the diamond gemstone inglust

WHEREAS, Strous and Michael Monahan (“Monahan”yently serve as directors of the Company;

WHEREAS, Strous and Monahan possess certain kngeletland experience with the diamond gemstonesingiu

WHEREAS, the Company desires that Strous and Manehbaote time and attention beyond their dutiedir@stors to identify and
explore opportunities that may exist for the Comptnrealize commercialization of its technologyttie diamond gemstone industry (the
“Purposes™);

WHEREAS, the Company’s board of directors (the “Bipbelieves it is in the best interests of then@any to pursue the Purposes;

WHEREAS, the Board voted, with Messer’s Strous slathahan abstaining, in favor of procuring the segsiof Strous and Monahan
for the Purposes; and

WHEREAS, Strous and Monahan are willing to provideir services to the Company on the terms andittond hereinafter set fort|

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the premiseg#tedcabove and the mutual promises and agreemergghthe parties to this
Agreement hereby agrees as follows:

1. Duties.

1.01  Duties. The Company hereby retains Strous to serve asapendent consultant for the Company and Strous
hereby accepts this position on the terms and tiondiset forth in this Agreement. Strous shallehauch authority and responsibility, and
shall serve in such capacities consistent withstettis, as may from time to time be assignedntollyi the Board of Directors of the Compal
In connection with his role as consultant Strouls pérform those services necessary to the Purpesegcted to include, but not necessaril
limited to: coordinating with Monahan, the Boarttldhe Company’s management to understand the Qorigpeapabilities in light of the
current and anticipated diamond gemstone




market; identify appropriate parties at each st#dgle distribution chain, including diamond poksk, jewelry manufacturers, distributors and
marketers; identify and present the Company torgiatiestrategic partners and/in investors; andxgae opportunities with such strategic
partners and/or investors to commercialize itstetdgy in the diamond gemstone industry.

1.02  Performance of Duties Strous shall serve the Company and its subgigidaithfully and to the best of his ability,
and devote such time as may reasonably be requitde@ Purposes during the term of this Agreement.

2. Term and Termination This Agreement shall be effective on March 112@nd may be terminated by either Strous or the
Company upon thirty (30) days written notice.

3. Location. Strous shall perform his duties from his locatio Portugal. It is expected, however, that it & necessary for
Strous to travel to various locations in pursuithe Purposes.

4, Compensation and Expenses

4.01 Compensation During the Term of this Agreement, the Compamglispay to Strous a monthly fee of $4,000.00.
Payment shall be made by wire transfer from the @omg to the banking institution provided by Stro&ich compensation shall be paid on
the first of every month during the term of thisrAgment, beginning with the first such payment ¢peine and payable on March 1, 2013.

4.02 Expenses The Company shall pay or reimburse Strous faealsonable and necessary out-of-pocket expenses
incurred by him (including, but not limited to, ¥&l, telephone, entertainment and office supplieshe performance of his duties under this
Agreement, subject to the presentment of apprapviatichers in accordance with the Company’s nopulities for expense verification.

5. Miscellaneous

5.01 Indemnification. The Company will pay on behalf of Strous, arsldrecutors, administrators or assigns, any
amount which he is or becomes legally obligategap because of any claim or claims made againsbkitause of any act or omission or
neglect or breach of duty, including any actuahlteged error or misstatement or misleading statémeéhich he commits or suffers while
acting in his capacity under this Agreement. Tagnpents which the Company will be obligated to miageeunder shall include, inter alia,
damages, judgments, settlements and costs, costasftigation and costs of defense of legal actiol@ms or proceedings and appeals
therefrom, and costs of attachment or similar bppdsvided, however, that the Company shall nodhigyated to pay fines or other obligatic
or fees imposed by law or otherwise which it istpibited by applicable law from paying as indemratyfor any other reason. If a claim under
this Agreement is not paid by the Company, or sibéhalf, within ninety (90) days after a writtdaim has been received by the Company
claimant may at any time thereafter bring suit agaihe Company to recover the unpaid amount ofldien and if successful in whole or in
part, the claimant shall be entitled to be paid #ife expense of prosecuting such claim. Costeapdnses (including attorneyees) incurret

by




Strous in defending or investigating any actiont, giroceeding or investigation shall be paid by @ompany in advance of the final disposi
of such matter.

5.02 Assignment Neither party may transfer or assign any rigitdelegate any obligations hereunder, in wholi@ or
part, whether voluntarily or by operation of lawitlvout the prior written consent of the other paryny purported transfer, assignment or
delegation by either party without compliance wis Section 5.02 will be null and void and of mode or effect. This Agreement shall be
binding upon and inure to the benefit of the paritieiccessors and lawful assigns.

5.03  Severability. Whenever possible, each provision of this Agreeiwill be interpreted in such manner as to be
effective and valid under applicable law and shalconstrued in the light most favorable to Straws,if any provision of this Agreement is
held to be prohibited by or unenforceable or invalnder applicable law, such provision will be feefive only to the extent of such
prohibition or invalidity, without invalidating theemainder of such provision or the remaining psmris of this Agreement.

5.04  Complete Agreement This Agreement contains the complete agreemsmtden the parties with respect to the
subject matter hereof and thereof, and supersegegrior understandings, agreements or representaliy or between the parties, written or
oral, which may have related to the subject médeeof or thereof in any way.

5.05 Counterparts This Agreement may be executed in one or mouatesparts, any one of which need not contain the
signatures of more than one party, but all suchtarparts taken together, when delivered, will titute one and the same instrument.

5.06  Governing Law; Choice of ForumThe internal law, without regard to conflictslaivs principles, of the State of
Nevada will govern all questions concerning thestarction, validity and interpretation of this Agraent and the performance of-
obligations imposed by this Agreement. Any andrgVegal proceeding arising out of or in connectiaith this Agreement shall be brought in
the appropriate courts of the State of Minnesatacl. each of the parties hereto consents to thesxeljurisdiction of such courts.

5.07 No Waiver. No term or condition of this Agreement shalldeemed to have been waived, nor shall there by any
estoppel to enforce any provisions of this Agreeimexcept by a statement in writing signed by thgypagainst whom enforcement of the
waiver or estoppel is sought. Any written waivleals not be deemed a continuing waiver unless fipally stated, shall operate only as to the
specific term or condition waived and shall notstitnte a waiver of such term or condition for fhure or as to any act other than that
specifically waived.




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have catisisdAgreement to be executed as of the day andfiysaabove written.

By: Theodorus Strou

COMPANY:

SCIO DIAMOND TECHNOLOGY CORPORATION, a Nevada
corporation

By:

EdWard S. Adam
Its: Chairmar




Exhibit 10.18
CONSULTING AGREEMENT

This Agreement (“Agreement”), dated March 6, 20%3ntered into by and between Michael R. MonahaWijnnesota resident
(“Monahan”), and Scio Diamond Technology Corponatia Nevada corporation (“Scio” or the “Company”).

RECITALS
WHEREAS, the Company produces laboratory-creatachdnd materials for various industrial, technolagy other applications;

WHEREAS, since its inception in 2011 the Company jmablicly expressed its intention to pursue oppaties for its diamond
producing technology in the diamond gemstone inglust

WHEREAS, Monahan and Theodorus Strous (“Strousfjeruly serve as directors of the Company;

WHEREAS, Monahan and Strous possess certain kngeletland experience with the diamond gemstonesingiu

WHEREAS, the Company desires that Monahan and S$titeuote time and attention beyond their dutiedirestors to identify and
explore opportunities that may exist for the Comptnrealize commercialization of its technologyttie diamond gemstone industry (the
“Purposes™);

WHEREAS, the Company’s board of directors (the “Bipbelieves it is in the best interests of then@any to pursue the Purposes;

WHEREAS, the Board voted, with Messer’'s Monahan &trdus abstaining, in favor of procuring the seegiof Monahan and Strous
for the Purposes; and

WHEREAS, Monahan and Strous are willing to provideir services to the Company on the terms andittond hereinafter set fort|

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the premiseg#tedcabove and the mutual promises and agreemergghthe parties to this
Agreement hereby agree as follows:

1. Duties.

1.01  Duties. The Company hereby retains Monahan to serve agapendent consultant for the Company and Mam
hereby accepts this position on the terms and tiondiset forth in this Agreement. Monahan shallhsuch authority and responsibility, and
shall serve in such capacities consistent withstettis, as may from time to time be assignedntollyi the Board of Directors of the Compal
In connection with his role as consultant Monahdhperform those services necessary to the Pugpaseected to include, but not necess
be limited to: coordinating with Strous, the Boart the Company’s management to understand the&uyis capabilities in light of the
current and anticipated




diamond gemstone market; identify appropriate parit each stage of the distribution chain, indgdiiamond polishers, jewelry
manufacturers, distributors and marketers; idertifg present the Company to potential strategitmees and/in investors; and to explore
opportunities with such strategic partners andigestors to commercialize its technology in theviad gemstone industry.

1.02  Performance of Duties Monahan shall serve the Company and its sub@difaithfully and to the best of his
ability, and devote such time as may reasonabhebgeired to the Purposes during the term of thiseAment.

2. Term and Termination This Agreement shall begin on March 1, 2013 imag be terminated by either Monahan or the
Company upon thirty (30) days written notice.

3. Location. Monahan shall perform his duties from his lomatin Minnesota. It is expected, however, thatiltbe necessary
for Monahan to travel to various locations in pirsfithe Purposes.

4, Compensation and Expenses

4.01 Compensation During the Term of this Agreement, the Compamgligpay to Monahan a monthly fee of
$11,000.00. Payment shall be made by wire trarisiar the Company to the banking institution praddy Monahan. Such compensation
shall be paid on the first of every month during term of this Agreement, beginning with the fggth payment being due and payable on
March 1, 2013.

4.02  Expenses The Company shall pay or reimburse Monahanlfaeasonable and necessary out-of-pocket expense:
incurred by him (including, but not limited to, W&, telephone, entertainment and office supplieshe performance of his duties under this
Agreement, subject to the presentment of apprapviatichers in accordance with the Company’s nopulities for expense verification.

5. Miscellaneous

5.01 Indemnification. The Company will pay on behalf of Monahan, arsdexecutors, administrators or assigns, any
amount which he is or becomes legally obligategayp because of any claim or claims made againsbkitause of any act or omission or
neglect or breach of duty, including any actuahlteged error or misstatement or misleading statémehich he commits or suffers while
acting in his capacity under this Agreement. Tagnpents which the Company will be obligated to miakeeunder shall include, inter alia,
damages, judgments, settlements and costs, costasftigation and costs of defense of legal actiol@ms or proceedings and appeals
therefrom, and costs of attachment or similar bppdsvided, however, that the Company shall nodhiegyated to pay fines or other obligatic
or fees imposed by law or otherwise which it istpibited by applicable law from paying as indemratyfor any other reason. If a claim under
this Agreement is not paid by the Company, or siéhalf, within ninety (90) days after a writtdaim has been received by the Company
claimant may at any time thereafter bring suit agaihe Company to recover the unpaid amount ofldien and if successful in whole or in
part, the claimant shall be entitled to be paid #ife expense of prosecuting such claim. Costeapdnses (including attorneyees) incurret

by




Monahan in defending or investigating any actiait, proceeding or investigation shall be paid iy Company in advance of the final
disposition of such matter.

5.02  Assignment Neither party may transfer or assign any rigitdelegate any obligations hereunder, in wholi@ or
part, whether voluntarily or by operation of lawitlvout the prior written consent of the other paryny purported transfer, assignment or
delegation by either party without compliance wis Section 5.02 will be null and void and of mode or effect. This Agreement shall be
binding upon and inure to the benefit of the paritieiccessors and lawful assigns.

5.03  Severability. Whenever possible, each provision of this Agreeiwill be interpreted in such manner as to be
effective and valid under applicable law and shaltonstrued in the light most favorable to Monalan if any provision of this Agreement is
held to be prohibited by or unenforceable or invalnder applicable law, such provision will be feefive only to the extent of such
prohibition or invalidity, without invalidating theemainder of such provision or the remaining psmris of this Agreement.

5.04  Complete Agreement This Agreement contains the complete agreemsmtden the parties with respect to the
subject matter hereof and thereof, and supersegegrior understandings, agreements or representaliy or between the parties, written or
oral, which may have related to the subject médeeof or thereof in any way.

5.05 Counterparts This Agreement may be executed in one or mouatesparts, any one of which need not contain the
signatures of more than one party, but all suchtarparts taken together, when delivered, will titute one and the same instrument.

5.06  Governing Law; Choice of ForumThe internal law, without regard to conflictslaivs principles, of the State of
Nevada will govern all questions concerning thestarction, validity and interpretation of this Agraent and the performance of-
obligations imposed by this Agreement. Any andrgVegal proceeding arising out of or in connectiaith this Agreement shall be brought in
the appropriate courts of the State of Minnesatd,each of the parties hereto consents to the gxeljurisdiction of such courts.

5.07 No Waiver. No term or condition of this Agreement shalldeemed to have been waived, nor shall there by any
estoppel to enforce any provisions of this Agreeimexcept by a statement in writing signed by thgypagainst whom enforcement of the
waiver or estoppel is sought. Any written waivleals not be deemed a continuing waiver unless fipally stated, shall operate only as to the
specific term or condition waived and shall notstitnte a waiver of such term or condition for fhure or as to any act other than that
specifically waived.




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have catisisdAgreement to be executed as of the day andfiysaabove written.

MRM Consulting Services, LLC

By: Michael R. Monaha
Its: Presiden

COMPANY:

SCIO DIAMOND TECHNOLOGY CORPORATION, a Nevada
corporation

By:

Edward S. Adam
Its: Chairmar




Exhibit 31.1
Rule 13a-14(a) Certification of the Principal Exective Officer
I, Michael McMahon, Chief Executive Officer, ceytithat:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-Soib Diamond Technology Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not cor@aynuntrue statement of a material fact or ométate a material fact necessar
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementsoéimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this report;

4, The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) andrke responsible for establishing and maintainirsgldsure controls and procedures (a:
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a—15(e) and 15d-e))&nd internal control over financial reportirag @efined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a—15(f) and 15d—15(f)) for the registramd have:

€) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduregused such disclosure controls and proceduries ttesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatheg to the registrant is made known to us byeagtwithin those entities, particularly during
the period in which this report is being prepared,;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial réipgr, or caused such internal control over finaheporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repodiand the preparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with geneealbepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’sldsire controls and procedures and presentedsimgort our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure conaintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cougyelis report based on such evaluation;

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regigtsanternal control over financial reporting thatcurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regrsts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimeaport) that has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regasit’'s internal control over financial reporting;dan

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) antdve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimiternal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesigethe design or operation of internal contratiofinancial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectriagistrant’s ability to record, process, summaaizd report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significéain the
registrant’s internal control over financial repogt

Date: June 28, 201
By: /s/ Michael McMahot
Michael McMahor
Chief Executive Officer (Principal Executive Offig¢




Exhibit 31.2
Rule 13a-14(a) Certification of the Principal Finartial Officer
I, Jonathan M. Pfohl, Chief Financial Officer, ¢grthat:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-Soib Diamond Technology Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not cor@aynuntrue statement of a material fact or ométate a material fact necessar
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementsoéimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this report;

4, The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) andrke responsible for establishing and maintainirsgldsure controls and procedures (a:
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a—15(e) and 15d-e))&nd internal control over financial reportirag @efined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a—15(f) and 15d—15(f)) for the registramd have:

€) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduregused such disclosure controls and proceduries ttesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatheg to the registrant is made known to us byeagtwithin those entities, particularly during
the period in which this report is being prepared,;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial réipgr, or caused such internal control over finaheporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repodiand the preparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with geneealbepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’sldsire controls and procedures and presentedsimgort our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure conaintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cougyelis report based on such evaluation;

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regigtsanternal control over financial reporting thatcurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regrsts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimeaport) that has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regasit’'s internal control over financial reporting;dan

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) antdve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimiternal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesigethe design or operation of internal contratiofinancial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectriagistrant’s ability to record, process, summaaizd report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significéain the
registrant’s internal control over financial repogt

Date: June 28, 201
By: /s/ Jonathan M. Pfol
Jonathan M. Pfot
Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial OffiQe




Exhibit 32

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

The undersigned, the President and Chief Exec@iffieer and the Chief Financial Officer of Scio Biand Technology Corporation
(the “Company”), each certify that, to his knowledmn the date of this certification:

2. The annual report of the Company for the periodedndarch 31, 2013 as filed with the Securities Brdhange Commission on this
date (the “Report”) fully complies with the requinents of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securitieshange Act of 1934; and

2. The information contained in the Report fairly mets, in all material respects, the financial ctiodiand result of operations of the
Company.

Date:  June 28, 201
By: /s/ Michael McMahot
Chief Executive Officer (Principal Executive Offige

Date:  June 28, 201
By: /s/ Jonathan M. Pfol
Jonathan M. Pfot
Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial OffiQe




